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2019

67,475,590.58 30.75
21,281,997.79 9.70
15,977,217.58 7.28
9,467,712.05 4.32
8,917,370.00 4.06
6,840,648.34 3.12
6,010,551.74 2.74
5,983,881.15 2.73
4,723,033.25 2.15
4,645,218.86 2.12
3,758,845.21 1.71
3,739,434.17 1.70
3,304,705.56 1.51
3,097,112.50 1.41
2,664,062.50 1.21
2,529,975.00 1.15
2,044,350.00 0.93
1,762,390.54 0.80
1,639,157.80 0.75
1,574,250.00 0.72
1,466,376.00 0.67
1,372,525.00 0.63
1,365,234.26 0.62
1,360,125.00 0.62
1,266,993.71 0.58
1,256,812.56 0.57
1,086,718.80 0.50
938,950.00 0.43
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864,698.46 0.39
856,216.00 0.39
826,406.25 0.38
801,362.58 0.37
719,031.25 0.33
563,345.74 0.26
552,498.50 0.25
542,644.21 0.25
414,687.52 0.19
307,125.00 0.14
252,225.00 0.11
120.27 0.00
194,251,600.73 88.54
17,571,201.32 8.01
1,540,795.43 0.70
457,001.88 0.21
5,578,454.98 2.54
(Zlgé?226054-34) 100.00
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2019

SN R -

BRAZIL REP OF 4.25 1/25 4.25 |2025/ 7 | 7,720,000.00 | 0.99 | 7,663,522.76 | 1.06 | 8,163,900.00 | 3.72
TURKEY REP OF 4.25 4/26 4.25 | 20267 714| 7,250,000.00 | 0.94 | 6,830,854.43 | 0.89 | 6,459,460.00 | 2.94
T PHARMACELCY 2.8 2.8 20237 /21| 5,380,000.00 | 0.89 | 4,810,444.04 | 0.87 | 4,687,325.00 | 2.14

e P CRAS GLOB 5.75 5.75 [2029/ 7 | 4,350,000.00 | 0.80 | 3,849,850.00 | 1.07 | 4,668,115.50 | 2.13
DISH DBS CORP 7.75 7/26 7.75 [20267 7 | 3,950,000.00 | 1.04 | 4,006,279.19 | 0.98 | 3,871,000.00 | 1.76

Yok S OCIEDAD A0 8.5 8.5 [ 2025/ /28| 3,650,000.00 | 0.96 | 3,497,829.43 | 1.00 | 3,642,700.00 | 1.66
PETSMART INC TL B2 1L 6.2 (20227 /11| 3,701,868.28 | 0.95 | 3,499,361.77 | 0.98 | 3,642,305.22 | 1.66
LROIL INTL FL 475 4.75 | 20267117 | 3,000,000.00 | 0.99 | 3,068,559.71 | 1.07 | 3,304,705.56 | 1.51
ARGENTINA 5.875 1/28 5.875 | 2028/ /11| 3,640,000.00 | 0.95 | 3,444,740.90 | 0.79 | 2,890,387.50 | 1.32

10| COLOMBIA REP OF 4 2/24 4|20247 26| 2,700,000.00 | 1.02 | 2,759,797.00 | 1.05 | 2,832,327.00 | 1.29
11 | RNERICABLESSF 7375 7.375 | 2026/ 7 | 2,500,000.00 | 1.03| 2,577,005.32 | 1.07 | 2,664,062.50 | 1.21
12 | SHARTER COMIUNICATL 8 4.33 | 2025/ 30| 2,587,778.38 | 0.99 | 2,550,720.68 | 1.00 | 2,596,835.60 | 1.18
13| REPUBLIC OF ECU7.95 7.95 [ 20247 /20| 2,440,000.00 | 0.98 | 2,307,501.64 | 1.04 | 2,529,975.00 | 1.15
14 | 20U BANCONER 5.125 5.125 [ 2033/ /18| 2,430,000.00 | 0.88 | 2,148,255.97 | 0.96 | 2,335,837.50 | 1.06
15 | UKRAINE GOVT 7.375 9732 7.375 | 2032/ /25| 2,150,000.00 | 1.00 | 2,150,000.00 [ 1.02 | 2,192,664.17 | 1.00
16 | FREEPORTIC C66 545 5.45 [ 2043/ /15| 2,325,000.00 | 0.90 | 2,007,832.56 | 0.93 | 2,156,902.50 | 0.98
17| JIDONESTA (REP) 385 3.85 (20277 /18| 2,000,000.00 | 0.96 | 1,922,237.79 | 1.05 | 2,003,940.00 | 0.95
1g | PETROBRAS GLOB 7.375 7.375 [ 2027/ /17| 1,740,000.00 | 1.06 | 1,847,320.92 | 1.18 | 2,061,030.00 | 0.94
19 | ARDAGH PKG FIN 6 2/25 6 [2025/ /15| 1,980,000.00 | 1.00 [ 1,975,912.36 | 1.03 | 2,044,350.00 | 0.93
20| SPRINT CORP 7.875 9/23 7.875 | 2023/ /15| 1,810,000.00 | 1.05 | 1,802,744.82 | 1.12 | 2,018,150.00 | 0.92
21| ARGENTINA 5.625 1/22 5.625 | 2022/ /26| 2,240,000.00 | 1.01 | 2,267,463.04 | 0.87 | 1,944,600.00 | 0.89
22 | MAXEDA DIV 6.125 7/22 6.125 | 2022/ /15| 1,743,000.00 | 1.18 | 2,051,103.76 | 1.10 | 1,920,152.77 | 0.88
23| [oIEC0 PACKIN 7.95 7.95 | 2025712715 1,750,000.00 | 0.97 | 1,700,144.04 | 1.09 | 1,907,500.00 | 0.87
24 | BAZIL REP OF 4625 4.625 | 2028/ /13| 1,750,000.00 | 0.93 | 1,629,529.50 | 1.06 | 1,860,468.75 | 0.85
25 | W TED RENTAL 4.875 4.875 | 2028/ /15| 1,820,000.00 | 0.95 | 1,723,777.10 | 1.02 | 1,856,199.80 | 0.85
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c¢H |crs77) ()
26 gsgz BUENOS Al 9.125 9.125 | 2024/ /16| 2,160,000.00 | 1.05| 2,263,071.29 | 0.85] 1,836,000.00 | 0.84
27 ESEA RES PRTN 5.875 5.875 | 2026/ /15| 1,720,000.00 | 1.02 | 1,755,810.82 | 1.06 | 1,816,234.00 | 0.83
28 E%\ESPORT DE CGA 6.75 6.75 | 2025/ / 1,900,000.00 | 0.97 | 1,851,397.21 | 0.94| 1,779,350.00 | 0.81
29| ECOPETROL SA 5.375 6/26 5.375 | 2026/ /26| 1,500,000.00 | 1.03| 1,547,426.99 | 1.11] 1,661,700.00 | 0.76
30 gﬁgiLLAN HEALT WULTI 4.9 12024/ /22| 1,640,000.00| 0.95] 1,561,318.27 | 1.00 | 1,640,000.00 | 0.75
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2019
2019
2019

2011 138,269,002.59 15,022 10.73 1,166
2012 318,924,429.99 34,648 8.99 977
2013 403,325,905.90 43,817 7.99 868
2014 261,783,217.39 28,440 6.49 705
2015 117,533,637.50 12,769 3.92 426
2016 85,645,607.10 9,305 3.09 336
2017 87,426,829.79 9,498 3.96 430
2018 77,901,344.79 8,463 3.74 406
2019 60,762,139.45 6,601 3.11 338
2018 62,217,036.31 6,759 2.93 318
63,751,842.57 6,926 3.05 331
10 67,476,209.89 7,331 3.23 351
11 63,370,253.35 6,885 3.05 331
12 61,682,823.61 6,701 2.98 324
2019 65,614,042.82 7,128 3.30 359
63,111,826.32 6,856 3.22 350
60,762,139.45 6,601 3.11 338
59,771,944 .99 6,494 3.08 335
59,744,643.72 6,491 3.07 334
61,816,415.44 6,716 3.23 351
63,729,147.91 6,924 3.30 359
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2011 159,293,130.71 17,306 10.47 1,137
2012 264,715,190.71 28,759 9.52 1,034
2013 175,305,475.69 19,045 9.20 999
2014 74,256,153.53 8,067 7.99 868
2015 54,146,652.95 5,882 5.84 634
2016 41,589,849.10 4,518 5.11 555
2017 33,348,364.89 3,623 5.43 590
2018 35,283,254.87 3,833 4.92 535
2019 28,697,314.48 3,118 4.62 502
2018 31,485,744.01 3,421 4.46 485
31,087,401.47 3,377 4.46 485

10 29,610,866.40 3,217 4.28 465

11 30,319,303.60 3,294 4.48 487

12 27,629,670.17 3,002 4.30 467

2019 29,725,221.95 3,229 4.68 508
29,291,710.37 3,182 4.67 507

28,697,314.48 3,118 4.62 502

29,166,074.12 3,169 4.64 504

28,593,172.65 3,106 4.58 498

29,575,159.66 3,213 4.76 517

29,876,242 .41 3,246 4.82 524
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2011 25,605,629.96 2,782 10.28 1,117
2012 36,615,697.70 3,978 10.05 1,092
2013 71,583,867.69 7,777 10.55 1,146
2014 90,885,645.24 9,874 10.37 1,127
2015 100,154,244.83 10,881 9.24 1,004
2016 80,275,269.89 8,721 7.90 858
2017 71,877,177.61 7,809 8.35 907
2018 46,263,397.95 5,026 7.83 851
2019 33,164,634.90 3,603 7.48 813
2018 36,760,197.19 3,994 7.52 817
37,753,222.32 4,102 7.59 825

10 36,427,738.99 3,958 7.43 807

11 35,161,156.86 3,820 7.32 795

12 33,076,907.06 3,593 7.14 776

2019 34,412,123.40 3,739 7.45 809
34,310,700.13 3,728 7.48 813

33,164,634.90 3,603 7.48 813

33,057,425.24 3,591 7.47 812

32,493,031.84 3,530 7.40 804

33,416,333.44 3,630 7.61 827

33,307,453.19 3,619 7.62 828
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2011 1,922,639.58 254 10.28 1,357
2012 5,168,047.17 682 10.06 1,328
2013 2,469,249.26 326 10.44 1,378
2014 2,233,895.42 295 10.26 1,354
2015 2,801,781.61 370 9.15 1,208
2016 1,593,587.84 210 7.79 1,028
2017 2,807,992.08 371 8.19 1,081
2018 3,358,308.87 443 7.55 996
2019 1,284,241.84 169 7.06 932
2018 2,688,663.97 355 7.18 948
2,712,588.26 358 7.24 955

10 2,447,037.39 323 7.07 933

11 2,405,363.41 317 6.95 917

12 1,881,370.62 248 6.75 891

2019 1,959,550.41 259 7.03 928
1,884,166.04 249 7.06 932

1,284,241.84 169 7.06 932

1,229,581.71 162 7.07 933

1,218,751.37 161 7.00 924

1,234,182.93 163 7.21 952

1,192,656.06 157 7.23 954
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2011 2,043,626,036 10,225
2012 3,529,753,838 9,967
2013 7,471,538,004 10,544
2014 5,826,345,309 10,330
2015 8,582,166,655 9,169
2016 6,750,721,735 7,776
2017 6,717,770,631 8,061
2018 3,270,576,807 7,371
2019 2,035,134,083 6,827
2018 2,574,922,932 6,983
2,395,559,570 7,038

10 2,205,040,525 6,866

11 2,111,051,437 6,743

12 2,018,748,780 6,548

2019 2,092,964,898 6,799
2,077,303,348 6,829

2,035,134,083 6,827

1,981,853,744 6,822

1,942,352,216 6,754

1,865,587,774 6,939

1,792,951,379 6,948
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2012 3,919,488.02 426 9.51 1,033
2013 34,904,429.46 3,792 9.67 1,051
2014 21,303,805.03 2,314 8.61 935
2015 32,060,682.97 3,483 4.81 523
2016 26,896,449.12 2,922 3.76 408
2017 62,923,858.66 6,836 4.96 539
2018 38,909,270.53 4,227 4.80 521
2019 23,759,667.35 2,581 4.06 441
2018 31,479,445.72 3,420 3.97 431
31,900,933.57 3,466 4.13 449

10 30,044,964.15 3,264 4.02 437

11 28,433,495.87 3,089 3.89 423

12 24,929,084.95 2,708 3.65 397

2019 27,549,421.16 2,993 4.06 441
25,806,651.92 2,804 4.05 440

23,759,667.35 2,581 4.06 441

24,287,447.96 2,639 4.12 448

23,709,525.83 2,576 4.07 442

25,061,343.49 2,723 4.32 469

24,693,121.28 2,683 4.31 468
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2012 17,169,989.94 1,865 9.08 986
2013 23,414,998.54 2,544 9.19 998
2014 16,607,832.15 1,804 7.48 813
2015 5,943,175.49 646 5.46 593
2016 4,455,616.89 484 4.51 490
2017 8,560,308.84 930 3.91 425
2018 49,616,522.31 5,390 3.62 393
2019 31,130,142.62 3,382 2.65 288
2018 28,344,540.03 3,079 2.13 231
31,668,874.53 3,441 2.37 257

10 32,518,577.01 3,533 2.52 274

11 33,854,667.90 3,678 2.71 294

12 31,849,286.24 3,460 2.65 288

2019 34,435,565.43 3,741 2.85 310
33,003,165.16 3,585 2.81 305

31,130,142.62 3,382 2.65 288

30,280,211.87 3,290 2.58 280

31,239,261.90 3,394 2.65 288

32,589,372.75 3,541 2.78 302

33,215,914.89 3,609 2.94 319
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2012 1,947,028.74 212 8.65 940
2013 2,136,192.87 232 7.44 808
2014 474,215.45 52 6.10 663
2015 806,657.49 88 4.58 498
2016 542,650.49 59 3.24 352
2017 650,626.98 71 3.88 422
2018 1,256,946.96 137 4.37 475
2019 1,120,824.54 122 3.57 388
2018 1,089,843.24 118 3.47 377
1,144,185.35 124 3.64 395

10 1,075,411.29 117 3.42 372

11 1,131,902.15 123 3.60 391

12 1,066,373.52 116 3.39 368

2019 1,209,459.55 131 3.85 418
1,146,784.09 125 3.65 397

1,120,824.54 122 3.57 388

1,129,370.93 123 3.59 390

1,101,012.33 120 3.50 380

1,170,352.98 127 3.73 405

1,123,094.01 122 3.72 404
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2014 25,684,631.66 2,790 10.24 1,112
2015 20,168,131.42 2,191 7.61 827
2016 7,797,564 .86 847 5.78 628
2017 14,153,716.71 1,538 5.60 608
2018 17,344,361.70 1,884 5.64 613
2019 14,376,001.48 1,562 5.25 570
2018 15,918,253.01 1,729 5.24 569
16,390,611.99 1,781 5.43 590

10 13,566,579.52 1,474 4.92 535

11 14,345,353.20 1,558 4.84 526

12 13,935,972.44 1,514 4.91 533

2019 14,452,956.99 1,570 5.30 576
14,262,756.97 1,550 5.27 573

14,376,001.48 1,562 5.25 570

11,552,535.14 1,255 5.39 586

12,682,290.69 1,378 5.18 563

13,356,733.23 1,451 5.45 592

13,433,070.31 1,459 5.55 603
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2014 2,064,126.13 154 10.24 764
2015 1,171,409.50 87 9.91 739
2016 4,736,159.67 353 8.37 624
2017 5,257,893.85 392 8.71 650
2018 3,824,743.75 285 7.99 596
2019 3,242,430.09 242 7.41 553
2018 3,417,579.96 255 7.55 563
3,448,418.09 257 7.61 568

10 3,369,831.65 251 7.43 554

11 3,401,756.20 254 7.29 544

12 3,269,390.23 244 7.08 528

2019 3,405,956.87 254 7.37 550
3,304,979.71 247 7.41 553

3,242,430.09 242 7.41 553

3,135,182.16 234 7.41 553

2,953,289.35 220 7.34 547

3,038,249.66 227 7.55 563

2,970,154.62 222 7.56 564
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0.39 42 0.30 33

1.56 169 1.20 130

1.56 169 1.20 130

1.47 160 1.20 130

1.20 130 1.20 130

0.58 63 0.70 76

0.36 39 0.60 65

0.36 39 0.60 65

0.34 37 0.58 63
2018 0.03 2018 0.05
0.03 0.05
10 0.03 10 0.05
11 0.03 11 0.05
12 0.03 12 0.05
2019 0.03 2019 0.05
0.02 0.04
0.02 0.04
0.02 0.04
0.02 0.04
0.02 0.04
0.02 0.04

2019 7.90 2019 7.74
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0.18 20 0.18 24

0.72 78 0.72 95

0.72 78 0.72 95

0.72 78 0.72 95

0.72 78 0.72 95

0.72 78 0.72 95

0.72 78 0.72 95

0.72 78 0.72 95

0.70 76 0.66 87
2018 0.06 2018 0.06
0.06 0.06
10 0.06 10 0.06
11 0.06 11 0.06
12 0.06 12 0.06
2019 0.06 2019 0.06
0.05 0.03
0.05 0.03
0.05 0.03
0.05 0.03
0.05 0.03
0.05 0.03

2019 6.12 2019 6.00
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180 0.56 61
720 0.96 104
720 0.96 104
720 0.96 104
720 0.67 73
720 0.48 52
720 0.48 52
720 0.48 52
660 2018 0.04
2018 60 0.04
60 10 0.04
10 60 11 0.04
11 60 12 0.04
12 60 2019 0.04
2019 60 0.04
30 0.04
30 0.04
30 0.04
30 0.04
30 0.04
30 2019 5.71
2019 6,000
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0.77 84 0.63 68
1.32 143 1.08 117
1.26 137 1.02 111
1.08 117 0.84 91
0.63 68 0.50 54
0.48 52 0.36 39
0.48 52 0.36 39
0.46 50 0.36 39
2018 0.04 2018 0.03
0.04 0.03
10 0.04 10 0.03
11 0.04 11 0.03
12 0.04 12 0.03
2019 0.04 2019 0.03
0.03 0.03
0.03 0.03
0.03 0.03
0.03 0.03
0.03 0.03
0.03 0.03

2019 6.60 2019 5.27
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0.45 49 0.40 30
1.08 117 0.32 24
0.69 75 0.96 72
0.60 65 0.96 72
0.60 65 0.96 72
0.58 63 0.88 66
2018 0.05 2018 0.08
0.05 0.08
10 0.05 10 0.08
11 0.05 11 0.08
12 0.05 12 0.08
2019 0.05 2019 0.08
0.04 0.04
0.04 0.04
0.04 0.04
0.04 0.04
0.04 0.04
0.04 0.04

2019 4.16 2019 4.64
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2010 10 2011 31 11.20
2011 2012 31 1.68
2012 2013 31 6.23
2013 2014 31 0.38
2014 2015 31 21.11
2015 2016 31 6.38
2016 2017 31 39.81
2017 2018 31 3.54
2018 2019 31 775
2010 10 2011 31 7.70
2011 2012 31 2-39
2012 2013 31 9.24
2013 2014 31 0.11
2014 2015 31 11.89
2015 2016 31 0.51
2016 2017 31 18-00
2017 2018 31 1.66
2018 2019 31 5-69
2010 10 2011 31 4.60
2011 2012 31 471
2012 2013 31 12.14
2013 2014 31 5.12
2014 2015 31 3.95
2015 2016 31 6.71
2016 2017 31 14.81
2017 2018 31 2-40
2018 2019 31 4.41
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2010 10 2011 31 4-60
2011 2012 31 4-86
2012 2013 31 10.93
2013 2014 31 517
2014 2015 31 3.80
2015 2016 31 6.99
2016 2017 31 14.38
2017 2018 31 0.98
2018 2019 31 2-25
2010 10 2011 31 4-05
2011 2012 31 4.52
2012 2013 31 13.01
2013 2014 31 4-80
2014 2015 31 4.21
2015 2016 31 /.34
2016 2017 31 12.92
2017 2018 31 0.37
2018 2019 31 1.57
2011 11 2012 31 0.70
2012 2013 31 11.78
2013 2014 31 1.03
2014 2015 31 32.98
2015 2016 31 7-90
2016 2017 31 44.68
2017 2018 31 6.45
2018 2019 31 5.42
2011 11 2012 31 1.50
2012 2013 31 15.75
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2013 2014 31 490
2014 2015 31 12.57
2015 2016 31 5-86
2016 2017 31 2-66
2017 2018 31 4-86
2018 2019 31 14.09
2011 11 2012 31 7-20
2012 2013 31 1.50
2013 2014 31 4-30
2014 2015 31 11.15
2015 2016 31 18.34
2016 2017 31 30.86
2017 2018 31 21.91
2018 2019 31 10.07
2013 27 2014 31 6.90
2014 2015 31 15.14
2015 2016 31 14.98
2016 2017 31 7-27
2017 2018 31 11.43
2018 2019 31 3.37
2013 27 2014 31 6.40
2014 2015 31 0.10
2015 2016 31 5-85
2016 2017 31 15.53
2017 2018 31 2-16
2018 2019 31 3.75
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13,521,713 633,196 12,888,517
13,521,713 633,196 12,888,517
32,345,858 9,775,971 35,458,404
32,345,858 9,775,971 35,458,404
31,319,297 16,063,199 50,714,502
31,319,297 16,063,199 50,714,502
16,690,152 27,097,896 40,306,758
16,690,152 27,097,896 40,306,758
8,112,457 18,404,095 30,015,120
8,112,457 18,404,095 30,015,120
4,797,008 7,206,117 27,704,277
4,797,008 7,206,117 27,704,277
1,263,489 6,896,524 22,071,242
1,263,489 6,896,524 22,071,242
2,467,571 3,696,913 20,841,900
2,467,571 3,696,913 20,841,900
1,610,704 2,925,782 19,526,822
1,610,704 2,925,782 19,526,822
16,487,250 1,267,255 15,219,995
16,487,250 1,267,255 15,219,995
22,390,140 9,816,052 27,794,083
22,390,140 9,816,052 27,794,083
4,277,418 13,031,557 19,039,944
4,277,418 13,031,557 19,039,944
1,825,697 11,569,540 9,296,101
1,825,697 11,569,540 9,296,101
2,657,514 2,680,068 9,273,547
2,657,514 2,680,068 9,273,547
1,130,217 2,265,433 8,138,331
1,130,217 2,265,433 8,138,331

547,230 2,565,597 6,119,964

547,230 2,565,597 6,119,964
2,833,587 1,787,223 7,166,328
2,833,587 1,787,223 7,166,328

459,478 1,360,969 6,264,837

459,478 1,360,969 6,264,837
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2,861,007 369,826 2,491,181
2,861,007 369,826 2,491,181
3,685,969 2,534,697 3,642,453
3,685,969 2,534,697 3,642,453
6,733,018 3,514,293 6,861,178
6,733,018 3,514,293 6,861,178
6,133,209 4,233,635 8,760,752
6,133,209 4,233,635 8,760,752
7,630,294 5,552,523 10,838,523
7,630,294 5,552,523 10,838,523
5,085,815 5,759,342 10,164,996
5,085,815 5,759,342 10,164,996
1,518,677 3,080,619 8,603,054
1,518,677 3,080,619 8,603,054
665,002 3,361,051 5,907,005
665,002 3,361,051 5,907,005
194,574 1,667,146 4,434,433
194574 1,667,146 4,434,433
214,370 27,338 187,032
214,370 27,338 187,032
559,486 232,826 513,692
559,486 232,826 513,692
156,218 433,450 236,460
156,218 433,450 236,460
40,555 59,279 217,736
40,555 59,279 217,736
206,179 117,757 306,158
206,179 117,757 306,158
5,182 106,785 204,555
5,182 106,785 204,555
261,657 123,152 343,060
261,657 123,152 343,060
474,032 372,133 444,959
474,032 372,133 444,959
1,675 264,823 181,811
1,675 264,823 181,811
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210,393 10,520 199,873
210,393 10,520 199,873
321,930 167,660 354,143
321,930 167,660 354,143
593,480 236,941 710,682
593,480 236,941 710,682
314,961 461,595 564,049
314,961 461,595 564,049
745,772 373,856 935,965
745,772 373,856 935,965
287,467 355,320 868,112
287,467 355,320 868,112
184,299 219,082 833,329
184,299 219,082 833,329
52,848 442,495 443,682
52,848 442,495 443,682
20,017 165,599 298,100
20,017 165,599 298,100
426,920 14,811 412,109
426,920 14,811 412,109
3,570,981 260,438 3,722,652
3,570,981 260,438 3,722,652
1,664,875 2,914,157 2,473,370
1,664,875 2,914,157 2,473,370
6,187,869 1,996,723 6,664,516
6,187,869 1,996,723 6,664,516
4,665,568 4,223,444 7,154,700
4,665,568 4,223,444 7,154,700
9,133,723 3,598,999 12,689,424
9,133,723 3,598,999 12,689,424
2,361,878 6,951,855 8,099,447
2,361,878 6,951,855 8,099,447
1,331,760 3,638,412 5,792,795
1,331,760 3,638,412 5,792,795
2,305,998 414,988 1,891,010
2,305,998 414,988 1,891,010
1,986,605 1,347,398 2,530,217
1,986,605 1,347,398 2,530,217
1,317,911 1,628,716 2,219,412
1,317,911 1,628,716 2,219,412
130,676 1,262,091 1,087,997
130,676 1,262,091 1,087,997
551,906 651,922 987,981
551,906 651,922 987,981
1,362,293 160,564 2,189,710
1,362,293 160,564 2,189,710
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13,648,610 2,118,426 13,719,894
13,648,610 2,118,426 13,719,894
2,671,334 4,730,071 11,661,157
2,671,334 4,730,071 11,661,157
243,988 18,920 225,068
243,988 18,920 225,068
198,256 147,711 275,613
198,256 147,711 275,613
30,700 228,563 77,750
30,700 228,563 77,750
125,024 26,766 176,008
125,024 26,766 176,008
2,056 10,494 167,570
2,056 10,494 167,570
0 0 167,570
0 0 167,570
141,683 21,685 287,568
141,683 21,685 287,568
26,592 0 314,160
26,592 0 314,160
2,556,246 47,296 2,508,950
2,556,246 47,296 2,508,950
1,224,767 1,083,941 2,649,776
1,224,767 1,083,941 2,649,776
144,163 1,443,747 1,350,192
144,163 1,443,747 1,350,192
1,765,409 588,624 2,526,977
1,765,409 588,624 2,526,977
2,572,857 2,023,423 3,076,411
2,572,857 2,023,423 3,076,411
558,499 896,368 2,738,542
558,499 896,368 2,738,542
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434,018 232,493 201,524
434,018 232,493 201,524
118,715 201,524 118,175
118,715 201,524 118,175
497,582 50,137 565,619
497,582 50,137 565,619
293,741 255,907 603,454
293,741 255,907 603,454
243,445 367,919 478,980
243,445 367,919 478,980
55,162 96,623 437,519
55,162 96,623 437,519
2010 10 2011 31
2011 11 2012 31 2013

27 2014 31
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2019 31
2019 31
219,254,351 213,802,968 23,227,554
3,979,213 432,302
333,541 329,532 35,800
822,830 89,392
3,012,641 327,293
2,088,495 226,894
1,755,143 190,679
724,263 78,684
11,108 1,207
226,526,193 24,609,806
6,637,673 721,117
2,380,000 258,563
1,021,077 110,930
386,430 41,982
441,604 47,976
510,851 55,499
11,377,635 1,236,066
215,148,558 23,373,739
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60,717,197 19,526,822 3.109 338
18,384,850 298,100 61.673 6,700
1,673,391 181,811 9.204 1,000
33,166,210 4,434,433 7.479 813
28,924,633 6,264,837 4.617 502
23,528,498 5,792,795 4.062 441
30,947,357 11,661,157 2.654 288
1,121,187 314,160 3.569 388
14,381,879 2,738,542 5.252 571
2,303,356 437,519 5.265 572
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2019 31

16,923,938 1,838,617
22,221 69,604 7,562
16,993,542 1,846,178
1,978,603 214,955
1,731,302 188,089
208,231 22,622
137,033 14,887
123,664 13,435
120,258 13,065
66,957 7,274
24,733 2,687
76,540 8,315
4,467,321 485,330
12,526,221 1,360,849
(5,994,048) (651,193)
87,334 9,488
(21,572,017) (2,343,584)
(27,478,731) (2,985,289)
1,896,381 206,023
(6,050) (657)
(674,177) (73,243)
1,216,154 132,123
(26,262,577) (2,853,166)
(13,736,356) (1,492,318)
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2019

31
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12,526,221 1,360,849
(27,478,731) (2,985,289)
1,216,154 132,123
(13,736,356) (1,492,318)
(7,100,872) (771,439)
(2,101,498) (228,307)

(310, 136) (33,693)
(3.480,377) (378,108)
(4,003,335) (434,922)
(3,584,834) (389,456)
(5,932,427) (644,499)

(111,364) (12,099)
(1,733,692) (188,348)

(294,093) (31,950)

(28,652,628) (3,112,822)
(47,529,690) (5,163,626)
(89,918,674) (9,768,765)
305,067,232 33,142,504
215,148,558 23,373,739
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3.5
2019 31
Tokyo Stock Exchange
2019 31
2019 31
15
2018 2018-13
Topic 820
2018-13 2019 12 15

2018-13 2018
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199,808,646 1,293,780 201,102,426

11,798,777 11,798,777

840,424 61,341 901,765
1,755,143 1,755,143

840,424 213,362,566 1,355,121 215,558,111
6,637,673 6,637,673

2019 31
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2019 31
131,120 0.8

0.70

0.01 15,000

30
0.02 15 0.0125 45 0.0050
45,000
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10,000
8,400
0.80
0.05
2019 31
2019 31
1,610,704 5,431,275 20,017 1,225,528 1,675 16,153 194,574 1,461,221

(2,925,782)  (9,284,463) (165,599)  (10,579,621) (264,823)  (2,466,183)  (1,667,146) (12,618,502)
(1,315,078)  (3,853,188) (145,582)  (9,354,093) (263,148)  (2,450,030)  (1,472,572) (11,157,281)

459,478 2,166,595 1,331,760 5,586,144 2,671,334 7,651,036 26,592 105,133
(1,360,969)  (6,144,047)  (3,638,412) (14,784,933)  (4,730,071) (13,203,543) - -
(901,491)  (3,977,452)  (2,306,652)  (9,198,789)  (2,058,737)  (5,552,507) 26,592 105,133
558,499 2,833,267 55,162 301,270 6,929,795 26,777,622
(896,368)  (4,683,410) (96,623) (542,610) (15,745,793) (74,307,312)
(337,869)  (1,850,143) (41,461) (241,340)  (8,815,998) (47,529,690)
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9
2019 31
3.739 69.311 10.588 7.833 4.925
a 0.163 3.193 0.480 0.381 0.230
(0.453) (4.885) (0.997) (0.035) 0.042
(0.290) (1.692) (0.517) 0.346 0.272
(0.340) (5.946) (0.867) (0.700) (0.580)
3.109 61.673 9.204 7.479 4.617
@ (7.76) (2.44) (4.88) 4.42 5.52
1.81 1.80 1.80 1.80 1.79
5.09 5.05 5.04 5.05 5.02
2019 31
4.806 3.619 4.373 5.640 6.126
a 0.211 0.142 0.192 0.262 0.281
(0.475) (0.647) (0.636) (0.070) (0.499)
(0.264) (0.505) (0.444) 0.192 (0.218)
(0.480) (0.460) (0.360) (0.580) (0.643)
4.062 2.654 3.569 5.252 5.265
@ (5.49) (13.95) (10.15) 3.40 (3.56)
1.82 1.82 1.84 1.79 1.81
5.08 5.08 5.16 5.02 5.09
¢
Q@
10

2019 31
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1,755,143
a
6,637,673
a
2019 31
(21,572,017)
(674,177)
2019 31
a (250,774,339)
e 440,481,402
d
@
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11
2019 31
1,755,143 6,637,673
1,755,143 6,637,673
@
Citibank, N.A. @ 102,626 (102,626)
Goldman Sachs International(® 1,280,615 (1,280,615)
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. @ 314,267 (314,267)
Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc® 27,078 (27,078)
UBS AG@® 30,557 (30,557)
1,755,143 (1,755,143)
1
(¢
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@

Barclays Bank PLC® 4,284 - 4,284
Citibank, N.A.® 192,044 (102,626) 89,418
Goldman Sachs International® 5,396,639 (1,280,615) 4,116,024
HSBC Bank plc® 25,137 — 25,137
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.® 401,359 (314,267) 87,092
Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc® 48,007 (27,078) 20,929
UBS AG® 570,203 (30,557) 539,646
6,637,673 (1,755,143) 4,882,530
@
@
12
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22,500,000 364

1.25
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2019 31
- 93.5%
- 7.1%
- 0.4%
$ 980,000 Pampa Energia SA 144A 7.500% 2027 1 24 989,050 863,674
- 0.5%
1,220,000 Autonomous City of Buenos Aires Argentina 144A 7.500 2027 6 1 1,222,979 1,085,800
- 1.7%
3,650,000 YPF SA 144A 8.500 2025 7 28 3,492,203 3,581,563
- 0.8%
1,900,000 Transportadora de Gas del Sur SA 144A 6.750 2025 5 2 1,839,555 1,787,900
- 1.0%
2,160,000 Provincia de Buenos Aires/Argentina 144A 9.125 2024 3 16 2,269,141 1,846,800
330,000 Provincia de Buenos Aires/Argentina 144A 7.875 2027 6 15 339,222 242,024
2,608,363 2,088,824
- 2.T%
2,240,000 Argentine Republic Government International Bond 5.625 2022 1 26 2,270,945 1,935,360
1,390,000 Argentine Republic Government International Bond 7.500 2026 4 22 1,468,538 1,179,728
3,640,000 Argentine Republic Government International Bond 5.875 2028 1 11 3,439,001 2,800,470
7,178,484 5,915,558
17,330,634 15,323,319
- 0.0%
- 0.0%
1,202,654 Midwest Vanadium Pty Ltd. 144A 11.500 2018 2 15 1,186,339 120
1,186,339 120
- 0.6%
- 0.6%
1,310,000 VOC Escrow Ltd. 144A 5.000 2028 2 15 1,291,672 1,273,975
1,291,672 1,273,975
- 4.8%
- 0.4%
800,000 Itau Unibanco Holding SA/Cayman Island MTN 5.650 2022 3 19 818,073 830,720
- 4.4%
7,720,000 Brazilian Government International Bond 4.250 2025 1 7 7,660,488 7,840,625
1,750,000 Brazilian Government International Bond 4.625 2028 1 13 1,625,675 1,766,240
9,286,163 9,606,865
10,104,236 10,437,585
- 2.9%
- 0.1%
320,000 GFL Environmental Inc. 144A 5.375 2023 3 1 324,539 302,400
- 0.3%
535,000 First Quantum Minerals Ltd. 144A 7.000 2021 2 15 543,225 544,028
- 0.9%
760,000 MEG Energy Corp. 144A 6.375 2023 1 30 704,594 703,000
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« )
1,240,000 MEG Energy Corp. 144A 7.000% 2024 3 31 1,276,226 1,156,300
1,980,820 1,859,300
- 1.5%
3,330,000 Bausch Health Cos Inc. 144A 6.125 2025 4 15 3,149,210 3,296,700
- 0.1%
261,000 1011778 BC ULC/New Red Finance Inc. 144A 4.250 2024 5 15 258,488 258,390
6,256,282 6,260,818
- 0.7%
- 0.7%
1,492,000 UPCB Finance 1V Ltd. 144A 5.375 2025 1 15 1,494,569 1,514,380
1,494,569 1,514,380
- 1.9%
- 0.9%
220,000 Ecopetrol SA 4.125 2025 1 16 215,129 223,438
1,500,000 Ecopetrol SA 5.375 2026 6 26 1,549,440 1,614,750
1,764,569 1,838,188
- 1.0%
2,200,000 Colombia Government International Bond 4.000 2024 2 26 2,235,758 2,268,222
4,000,327 4,106,410
- 0.3%
- 0.3%
700,000 Costa Rica Government International Bond 144A 7.000 2044 4 4 679,064 678,755
679,064 678,755
- 0.3%
- 0.3%
530,000 Croatia Government International Bond 144A 6.625 2020 7 14 552,107 555,175
552,107 555,175
- 0.8%
- 0.3%
620,000 Dominican Republic International Bond 144A 6.850 2045 1 27 631,951 668,438
- 0.5%
1,000,000 Dominican Republic International Bond 144A 5.500 2025 1 27 1,032,398 1,032,500
1,664,349 1,700,938
- 1.4%
- 1.4%
3,090,000 Ecuador Government International Bond 7.950 2024 6 20 3,008,843 3,107,119
3,008,843 3,107,119
- 0.7%
- 0.7%
300,000 Egypt Government International Bond 144A 5.577 2023 2 21 304,226 297,375
510,000 Egypt Government International Bond 144A MTN 7.600 2029 3 1 509,999 524,663
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$ 680,000

400,000

3,850,000

EUR 550,000

680,000
500,000

1,350,000

1,000,000

1,120,000

1,000,000
2,000,000
400,000

Egypt Government International Bond MTN 6
0.2%
- 0.2%
El Salvador Government International Bond 144A 6.
- 1.8%
- 1.8%
Altice France SA/France 144A 7.
- 0.3%
- 0.3%
Nidda BondCo GmbH 5.
- 0.6%
- 0.6%
Ghana Government International Bond 144A 10.
Ghana Government International Bond 144A 8.
- 0.6%
- 0.6%
Guatemala Government Bond 144A 4.
- 0.5%
- 0.5%
Honduras Government International Bond 144A 6.
- 2.1%
- 0.5%
Perusahaan Listrik Negara PT 5.
- 1.6%
Indonesia Government International Bond 2

Indonesia Government International Bond 144A MTN 3.
Indonesia Government International Bond MTN 3.

166/332

.125%

375

375

000

750
125

375

250

500

-950

850
750

2022

2027

2026

2025

2030
2032

2027

2027

2021

2023
2027
2022

10

11

31

18

30

14
26

19

22

11
18
25

699,560 691,050
1,513,785 1,513,088
1,513,785 1,513,088

400,000 394,800

400,000 394,800
3,987,123 3,773,000
3,987,123 3,773,000

670,477 590,530

670,477 590,530

748,232 830,875

499,958 497,540
1,248,190 1,328,415
1,248,190 1,328,415
1,341,941 1,297,080
1,341,941 1,297,080
1,016,247 1,057,500
1,016,247 1,057,500
1,170,558 1,178,974

997,727 992,185
1,919,513 1,998,926

412,844 405,834
3,330,084 3,396,945
4,500,642 4,575,919
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- 0.9%
- 0.9%
Ardagh Packaging Finance PLC / Ardagh Holdings

$ 1,980,000 USA Inc. 144A 6.000% 2025 2 15 1,921,152 1,980,000
1,921,152 1,980,000
- 0.3%
- 0.3%
720,000 UniCredit SpA 144A MTN ~ 7.296 2034 4 2 720,000 725,587
720,000 725,587
- 0.3%
- 0.3%
262,450  lvory Coast Government International Bond 5.750 2032 12 31 262,450 250,312
330,000 lIvory Coast Government International Bond 144A 6.125 2033 6 15 326,153 306,075
588,603 556,387
588,603 556,387
- 0.6%
- 0.3%
910,000 Adient Global Holdings Ltd. 144A 4.875 2026 8 15 816,539 666,575
- 0.3%
EUR 470,000 LHC3 PLC PIK 4.125 2024 8 15 554,341 536,315
1,370,880 1,202,890
- 4.2%
- 0.3%
EUR 700,000 Monitchem HoldCo 2 SA 6.875 2022 6 15 881,217 714,371
- 0.3%
EUR 700,000 Garfunkelux Holdco 3 SA 7.500 2022 8 1 841,527 725,167
- 2.0%
4,250,000 Altice SA 144A 7.750 2022 5 15 4,291,242 4,250,000
- 0.5%
1,010,000 Ultrapar International SA 144A 5.250 2026 10 6 994,881 1,016,313
- 0.9%
1,410,000 ARD Securities Finance SARL PIK 144A 8.750 2023 1 31 1,321,429 1,332,449
EUR 480,000 Hercule Debtco SARL PIK 6.750 2024 6 30 604,051 506,360
1,925,480 1,838,809
- 0.2%
480,000 Intelsat Jackson Holdings SA 5.500 2023 8 1 490,304 426,000
9,424,651 8,970,660
- 0.4%
- 0.4%
1,000,000 /T?EJTZ.ﬁ?ZAtETﬁaﬁﬁguﬁ?f;ﬁ” (13222'/ Navios 8.125 2021 11 15 1,012,765 790,000
1,012,765 790,000
- 1.4%
- 1.0%
2,430,000 BBVA Bancomer SA/Texas 144A ~ 5.125 2033 1 18 2,140,104 2,234,385
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- 0.4%
$ 740,000 Cemex SAB de CV 5.700% 2025 1 11 749,454 759,980
2,889,558 2,994,365
- 10.0%
- 0.3%
EUR 590,000 CBR Fashion Finance BV 5.125 2022 10 1 711,996 630,426
- 0.3%
620,000 NatWest Markets NV 7.750 2023 5 15 658,829 685,513
- 0.3%
EUR 540,000 IPD 3 BV MTN 4.500 2022 7 15 640,295 626,480
- 0.3%
650,000 Minejesa Capital BV 144A 4.625 2030 8 10 596,526 630,404
- 0.2%
520,000 UPC Holding BV 144A 5.500 2028 1 15 526,143 518,700
- 0.8%
810,000 Alcoa Nederland Holding BV 144A 7.000 2026 9 30 828,695 873,277
800,000 Alcoa Nederland Holding BV 144A 6.125 2028 5 15 807,212 823,999
1,635,907 1,697,276
- 5.1%
3,090,000 Lukoil International Finance BV 144A 4.750 2026 11 2 3,067,747 3,137,895
1,740,000 Petrobras Global Finance BV 7.375 2027 1 17 1,851,083 1,918,959
950,000 Petrobras Global Finance BV 5.999 2028 1 27 870,319 961,400
4,350,000 Petrobras Global Finance BV 5.750 2029 2 1 3,837,766 4,308,675
580,000 Petrobras Global Finance BV 6.900 2049 3 19 580,000 573,852
10,206,915 10,900,781
- 2.1%
1,660,000 Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands 111 BV 2.200 2021 7 21 1,554,600 1,582,600
3,210,000 Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands 111 BV 2.800 2023 7 21 2,907,809 2,863,782
4,462,409 4,446,382
- 0.6%
EUR 1,243,000 Maxeda DIY Holding BV 6.125 2022 7 15 1,414,271 1,369,631
20,853,291 21,505,593
- 0.4%
- 0.2%
300,000 Nigeria Government International Bond 144A 7.875 2032 2 16 312,763 312,750
- 0.2%
530,000 Nigeria Government International Bond MTN 6.500 2027 11 28 532,810 525,031
845,573 837,781
- 0.4%
- 0.4%
750,000 Paraguay Government International Bond 144A 5.000 2026 4 15 774,008 789,375
774,008 789,375
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- 0.6%
- 0.6%
$ 1,200,000 Transportadora de Gas del Peru SA 144A 4.250% 2028 4 30 1,222,068 1,220,250
1,222,068 1,220,250
- 0.1%
- 0.1%
300,000 Tﬁﬁg?;gilg‘;j"gm dAf”Ca Government 4.875 2026 4 14 300,933 297,089
300,933 297,089
- 0.4%
- 0.4%
EUR 590,000 Tendam Brands SAU ~ 5.250 2024 9 15 705,679 660,242
EUR 250,000 Tendam Brands SAU 5.000 2024 9 15 305,739 282,100
1,011,418 942,342
1,011,418 942,342
- 0.8%
- 0.8%
550,000 Sri Lanka Government International Bond 6.250 2020 10 4 558,911 558,663
490,000 Sri Lanka Government International Bond 6.250 2021 7 27 491,211 498,582
280,000 Sri Lanka Government International Bond 144A 6.850 2024 3 14 280,000 287,175
280,000 Sri Lanka Government International Bond 144A 7.850 2029 3 14 280,000 293,539
1,610,122 1,637,959
1,610,122 1,637,959
- 0.4%
- 0.4%
890,000 UBS Group Funding Switzerland AG 144A Q ~ 7.000 - 890,000 903,377
890,000 903,377
- 3.9%
- 0.6%
700,000 TC Ziraat Bankasi AS 144A MTN 5.125 2022 5 3 677,455 633,923
690,000 TC Ziraat Bankasi AS 144A MTN 5.125 2023 9 29 603,603 604,685
1,281,058 1,238,608
- 2.8%
7,250,000 Turkey Government International Bond 4.250 2026 4 14 6,814,558 6,089,188
- 0.5%
1,130,000 Turk Telekomunikasyon AS 144A 6.875 2025 2 28 1,123,256 1,086,213
9,218,872 8,414,009
- 1.6%
- 1.6%
2,150,000 Ukraine Government International Bond 7.375 2032 9 25 2,150,000 1,922,100
1,500,000 Ukraine Government International Bond 144A 7.750 2020 9 1 1,492,119 1,494,375
3,642,119 3,416,475
3,642,119 3,416,475
- 5.2%
-2.2%
1,200,000 Barclays Bank PLC 7.625 2022 11 21 1,255,296 1,305,000
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$ 560,000 Barclays PLC Q ~ 8.000% - 561,384 572,600
620,000 HSBC Holdings PLC Q ~ 6.500 - 588,079 613,800
770,000 Royal Bank of Scotland Group PLC 6.000 2023 12 19 784,343 821,938
570,000 Royal Bank of Scotland Group PLC Q ~ 8.625 - 571,655 607,050
GBP 560,000 Santander UK Group Holdings PLC Q ~ 7.375 - 790,410 753,104
4,551,167 4,673,492
- 0.4%
GBP 764,000 Marston®s Issuer PLC ~ 5.641 2035 7 15 889,716 815,340
- 0.2%
GBP 310,000 Jerrold Finco PLC 6.125 2024 1 15 454,266 407,091
- 0.1%
GBP 190,000 Vue International Bidco PLC 7.875 2020 7 15 287,213 247,858
- 0.3%
GBP 580,000 IDH Finance PLC 6.250 2022 8 15 790,394 647,883
- 0.2%
GBP 323,000 Co-operative Group Holdings 2011 Ltd. 6.875 2020 7 8 488,805 441,824
- 0.6%
GBP 220,000 Pinnacle Bidco PLC 6.375 2025 2 15 307,705 295,630
GBP 930,000 Saga PLC 3.375 2024 5 12 1,152,802 1,092,582
1,460,507 1,388,212
- 0.9%
GBP 1,386,000 Virgin Media Secured Finance PLC 5.500 2025 1 15 1,991,523 1,853,436
- 0.3%
GBP 500,889 Tesco Property Finance 6 PLC 5.411 2044 7 13 727,373 764,225
11,640,964 11,239,361
- 33.8%
- 0.0%
105 _(It_(;zgnental Airlines 2000-1 Class B Pass Through 8.388 2020 11 1 106 115
- 0.4%
860,000 Hanesbrands Inc. 144A 4.875 2026 5 15 874,248 848,476
- 0.4%
803,000 JB Poindexter & Co. Inc. 144A 7.125 2026 4 15 810,936 805,272
- 0.5%
1,230,000 American Axle & Manufacturing Inc. 6.500 2027 4 1 1,160,735 1,190,393
- 0.7%
870,000 Citigroup Inc. Q ~ 6.300 - 842,664 885,225
720,000 Citigroup Inc. Q ~ 5.950 - 688,325 734,400
1,530,989 1,619,625
- 0.6%
140,000 Standard Industries Inc./NJ 144A 5.000 2027 2 15 133,952 135,492
1,150,000 Standard Industries Inc./NJ 144A 4.750 2028 1 15 1,066,898 1,098,250
1,200,850 1,233,742
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- 2.9%
500,000 Carriage Services Inc. 144A 6.625% 2026 6 1 506,325 511,250
1,000,000 Hertz Corp./The 5.875 2020 10 15 1,000,000 999,750
210,000 E;;gﬁciefﬁgfthiirv'ces Borrover LLC/Prime 5.250 2024 4 15 210,000 210,000
680,000 E;;gﬁciefﬁgfthiirv'ces Borrover LLC/Prime 5.750 2026 4 15 680,000 680,143
321,000 Service Corp. International/US 7.500 2027 4 1 344,723 369,150
810,000 ServiceMaster Co. LLC/The 144A 5.125 2024 11 15 835,104 813,038
210,000 United Rentals North America Inc. 6.500 2026 12 15 210,739 221,025
440,000 United Rentals North America Inc. 5.500 2027 5 15 418,159 444,400
1,820,000 United Rentals North America Inc. 4.875 2028 1 15 1,712,007 1,770,314
290,000 Weight Watchers International Inc. 144A 8.625 2025 12 1 285,691 260,275
6,202,748 6,279,345

- 0.5%
1,090,000 Western Digital Corp. 4.750 2026 2 15 996,213 1,040,950
- 0.2%
315,000 ASP AMC Merger Sub Inc. 144A 8.000 2025 5 15 309,046 141,749
380,000 Navient Corp. 6.750 2026 6 15 380,000 363,850
689,046 505,599
- 0.6%

180,000 Pilgrim®s Pride Corp. 144A 5.750 2025 3 15 177,189 181,800
1,150,000 Pilgrim®s Pride Corp. 144A 5.875 2027 9 30 1,082,192 1,158,625
1,259,381 1,340,425

- 0.6%
1,150,000 Mercer International Inc. 144A 7.375 2025 1 15 1,155,872 1,207,500

- 0.4%
780,000 NGL Energy Partners LP/NGL Energy Finance Corp. 7.500 2023 11 1 803,038 806,988
- 0.5%
968,000 BioScrip Inc. ~ 9.500 2020 8 15 961,706 1,011,560
- 3.0%

190,000 Air Medical Group Holdings Inc. 144A 6.375 2023 5 15 193,404 159,599
1,300,000 Centene Corp. 144A 5.375 2026 6 1 1,339,433 1,356,875
620,000 CHS/Community Health Systems Inc. 144A 8.000 2026 3 15 612,506 595,200
740,000 DaVita Inc. 5.000 2025 5 1 714,515 709,105
1,000,000 HCA Inc. 5.000 2024 3 15 1,017,206 1,060,193
270,000 HCA Inc. 5.875 2026 2 15 284,645 291,600
430,000 HCA Inc. 5.625 2028 9 1 425,769 454,725
1,440,000 Magellan Health Inc. 4.900 2024 9 22 1,363,331 1,370,160
420,000 Tii/ionaICare Hospital Partners Holdings Inc. 8.250 2023 5 1 446,271 446,775
6,397,080 6,444,232

- 0.5%
1,170,000 Lennar Corp. 4.750 2027 11 29 1,170,000 1,170,547

- 0.2%

380,000 Spectrum Brands Inc. 5.750 2025 7 15 387,867 382,850
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-1.1%
$ 1,080,000 Cogent Communications Group Inc. 144A 5.375% 2022 3 1 1,082,644 1,104,300
370,000 Match Group Inc. 144A 5.000 2027 12 15 365,026 372,775
280,000 Netflix Inc. 144A 5.875 2028 11 15 276,927 295,750
440,000 Twitter Inc. 1.000 2021 9 15 413,253 414,023
220,000 Twitter Inc. 144A 0.250 2024 6 15 199,682 203,584
2,337,532 2,390,432
- 0.3%
214,000 ?:;zgzeWSE:gvlde Finance LLC/Hilton Worldwide 4,625 2025 4 1 213,290 216,140
330,000 E:;;ggeWEE:gvlde Finance LLC/Hilton Worldwide 4.875 2027 4 1 331,084 333,713
544,374 549,853
- 5.0%
160,000 American Media LLC 144A 10.500 2026 12 31 154,119 156,999
585,000 CCO Holdings LLC/CCO Holdings Capital Corp. 144A 5.125 2027 5 1 551,964 588,656

1,235,000 CCO Holdings LLC/CCO Holdings Capital Corp. 144A 5.000 2028 2 1 1,165,764 1,217,895

1,530,000 CSC Holdings LLC 144A 6.625 2025 10 15 1,581,236 1,621,800
300,000 CSC Holdings LLC 144A 5.375 2028 2 1 282,399 300,750
550,000 CSC Holdings LLC 144A 6.500 2029 2 1 553,886 585,750

1,750,000 DISH DBS Corp. 5.875 2024 11 15 1,663,200 1,470,000

4,200,000 DISH DBS Corp. 7.750 2026 7 1 4,352,624 3,654,000
490,000 DISH Network Corp. 2.375 2024 3 15 430,317 404,187
960,000 DISH Network Corp. 3.375 2026 8 15 939,989 815,520

11,675,498 10,815,557
- 1.9%

2,070,000 Freeport-McMoRan Inc. 3.875 2023 3 15 2,007,602 2,040,213
475,000 Freeport-McMoRan Inc. 4.550 2024 11 14 447,137 467,875
940,000 Freeport-McMoRan Inc. 5.400 2034 11 14 785,365 855,400
900,000 Freeport-McMoRan Inc. 5.450 2043 3 15 833,284 787,509

4,073,388 4,150,997
- 0.1%

350,000 General Electric Co. Q ~ 5.000 - 296,666 326,900
- 2.3%

1,340,000 Berry Petroleum Co. LLC * 6.375 2022 9 15 - -

2,150,000 Chesapeake Energy Corp. 8.000 2027 6 15 2,059,304 2,117,750
350,000 Oasis Petroleum Inc. 144A 6.250 2026 5 1 352,318 333,375

1,560,000 Range Resources Corp. 4.875 2025 5 15 1,436,552 1,446,900

1,050,000 Whiting Petroleum Corp. 6.625 2026 1 15 1,009,424 1,029,000

4,857,598 4,927,025
- 1.2%
770,000 Greif Inc. 144A 6.500 2027 3 1 773,340 787,325

1,750,000 Pactiv LLC 7.950 2025 12 15 1,698,191 1,741,250

2,471,531 2,528,575
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-1.2%
325,000 E:)l:'g_RiZj/: Midstream LLC/Blue Racer Finance 6.625% 2026 7 15 315,641 331,500
80,000 ;::%ﬁesgsﬁf;;ﬁiepgg;ers LP/Targa Resources 5.000 2028 1 15 76,062 78,900
1,720,000 ;Z:,g(ﬁefgs‘;:‘;gﬁiepggtgeri 45&/ Targa Resources 5.875 2026 4 15 1,748,316 1,818,040
130,000 lz:ﬁes:sggggﬁi epgg':g‘_"i 42/2/ Targa Resources 6.500 2027 7 15 130,326 140,238
160,000 ;::%ﬁesgsﬁf;;ﬁiepgg;eri 422/ Targa Resources 6.875 2029 1 15 160,188 173,800
2,430,533 2,542,478
- 0.4%
1,000,000 CoreCivic Inc. 4.750 2027 10 15 1,001,053 850,630
- 2.0%
1,420,000 Beacon Roofing Supply Inc. 144A 4.875 2025 11 1 1,359,816 1,341,900
590,000 Carrols Restaurant Group Inc. 8.000 2022 5 1 602,804 603,570
1,370,000 Party City Holdings Inc. 144A 6.625 2026 8 1 1,352,109 1,363,150
1,110,000 ﬁ‘:gg;ggncz:gpa”e Partners LP/Suburban Energy 5.875 2027 3 1 1,110,715 1,051,725
4,425,444 4,360,345
- 0.3%
590,000 Amkor Technology Inc. 144A 6.625 2027 9 15 587,489 598,850
- 0.2%
330,000 ﬁ4§loud Services LLC/j2 Global Co-Obligor Inc. 6.000 2025 7 15 340,174 342,787
- 3.5%
2,350,000 United States Treasury Note/Bond 1.750 2022 3 31 2,310,228 2,316,770
1,500,000 United States Treasury Note/Bond 1.625 2022 8 15 1,456,449 1,470,352
1,150,000 United States Treasury Note/Bond 1.875 2022 8 31 1,127,226 1,136,344
750,000 United States Treasury Note/Bond 2.500 2023 3 31 749,859 757,559
1,250,000 United States Treasury Note/Bond 2.750 2023 8 31 1,263,764 1,276,758
480,000 United States Treasury Note/Bond 2.125 2024 2 29 472,600 477,169
7,380,126 7,434,952
- 1.6%
1,280,000 Sprint Capital Corp. 6.875 2028 11 15 1,261,205 1,230,400
340,000 Sprint Communications Inc. 11.500 2021 11 15 313,610 391,850
1,470,000 Sprint Corp. 7.875 2023 9 15 1,543,380 1,539,825
280,000 Sprint Corp. 7.125 2024 6 15 282,027 284,200
3,400,222 3,446,275
- 0.3%
720,000 E'isg;r'lie"gg:;f'ii‘ierv'Ces LLC/SPL Logistics 8.875 2020 8 1 670,682 684,000
- 0.4%

820,000 DAE Funding LLC 144A 5.750 2023 11 15 824,236 842,550
72,917,361 72,679,825
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- 0.2%
- 0.2%
710,000 Venezuela Government International Bond + 7.750% 2019 10 13 $ 177,500 $ 207,675
1,000,000 Venezuela Government International Bond + 8.250 2024 10 13 478,500 302,500
656,000 510,175
656,000 510,175
205,757,165 201,102,426
- 5.5%
- 0.4%
- 0.4%
834,986  Avolon TLB Borrower 1 (US) LLC Term B-3 4.488 2025 1 15 832,684 829,626
832,684 829,626
- 5.1%
- 1.5%
3,346,326 Charter Communications Operating LLC Term B 4.500 2025 4 30 3,316,927 3,328,089
- 0.1%
217,591 TOMS Shoes LLC Initial Term 8.000 2020 10 30 210,692 170,809
- 0.5%
1,008,140 Aramark Services Inc. US Term B-3 4.249 2025 3 11 1,013,088 1,001,829
- 0.5%
1,000,000 Hilton Worldwide Finance LLC Term B-2 4.236 2023 10 25 992,710 997,950
- 0.3%
613,800 Lamar Media Corp. Term B 4.250 2025 3 14 618,459 613,027
- 0.4%
881,955 ?zigolds Group Holdings Inc. Incremental U.S. 5.249 2023 2 6 885,707 872,738
- 1.8%
4,430,507 PetSmart Inc. Tranche B-2 5.490 2022 3 11 4,152,749 3,984,709
11,190,332 10,969,151
12,023,016 11,798,777
- 0.4%
- 0.4%
- 0.4%
72,827 Berry Petroleum Co. LLC 671,420 840,424
803 MWO Holdings LLC =* 802,750 61,341
1,474,170 901,765
1,474,170 901,765
1,474,170 901,765
- 99.4% 219,254,351 213,802,968
- 0.6% 1,345,590

- 100.0 215,148,558
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Morgan Stanley & Co.

2019 4 2 International plc AUD 3,172,816  USD 2,262,449 8,640
2019 4 2 UBS AG AUD 68,139  USD 48,000 (402)
2019 4 2 Citibank, N.A. BRL 14,335,650 USD 3,678,922 4,727)
2019 4 2 Citibank, N.A. BRL 14,335,650 USD 3,700,000 16,353
2019 5 3 Citibank, N.A. BRL 614,800 USD 158,558 893
2019 4 2 Goldman Sachs International BRL 231,684,313  USD 59,456,543 (76,389)
2019 4 2 Goldman Sachs International  BRL 231,684,313  USD 59,857,467 324,535
2019 5 3 Goldman Sachs International BRL 5,958,000 USD 1,500,000 (27,920)
2019 5 14 Citibank, N.A. EUR 3,439,882  USD 3,944,150 67,078
2019 5 14 Goldman Sachs International EUR 818,721  USD 941,518 18,742
2019 5 14 JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. EUR 4,114,514  USD 4,722,112 84,665
2019 5 14 UBS AG EUR 199,585 USD 229,147 4,196
2019 5 14 Citibank, N.A. GBP 5,307,626  USD 6,909,309 (22,284)
2019 5 14 Citibank, N.A. GBP 770,165 USD 1,019,387 13,575
2019 4 2 Goldman Sachs International GBP 53,022  USD 70,552 1,462
2019 4 2 Tﬁ;giﬂa:gmyp%cco' GBP 1,284,220  USD 1,691,842 18,438
2019 4 2 UBS AG GBP 588,137  USD 780,000 13,627
2019 4 2 Goldman Sachs International IDR 430,177,333,000 USD 30,194,210 (14,872)
2019 4 2 Goldman Sachs International IDR 401,507,333,000 USD 28,265,212 69,472
2019 4 2 Goldman Sachs International JPY 2,020,427,940 USD 18,320,901 67,045
2019 4 2 UBS AG JPY 44,676,960 USD 400,000 (3,641)
2019 4 2 JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. MXN 258,057,781  USD 13,533,264 229,602
2019 4 2 UBS AG MXN 12,546,997 USD 657,328 10,492
2019 4 2 Goldman Sachs International  RUB 169,284,015 USD 2,550,000 (26,719)
2019 4 2 Goldman Sachs International RUB  1,582,487,016  USD 24,610,996 523,519
2019 4 30 Goldman Sachs International RUB 15,895,845  USD 245,000 4,250
2019 4 2 Goldman Sachs International TRY 5,707,500 USD 1,000,000 (10,248)
2019 4 2 Goldman Sachs International TRY 7,336,000 USD 1,330,000 31,501
2019 4 2 UBS AG TRY 168,148,276  USD 29,396,598 (366,266)
2019 4 30 UBS AG TRY 1,359,059  USD 230,000 (2,475)
2019 4 2 UBS AG ZAR 15,546,421  USD 1,080,264 2,242

954,384
2019 4 2 Goldman Sachs International AUD 1,003,727 USD 720,143 (7,146)
2019 4 2 HSBC Bank plc AUD 1,220,479 USD 875,471 (8,503)
2019 4 2 JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. AUD 271,866  USD 194,982 (1,862)
2019 4 2 Tﬁ;giﬂaifgﬂgfypf‘cco' AUD 390,096  USD 279,858 2,754)
2019 4 30 Tﬁ;gizaﬁiz;‘;ypfcco' AUD 3,172,816  USD 2,263,590 (8,447)
2019 4 2 UBS AG AUD 354,786  USD 254,527 (2,505)
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2019 4 2 Citibank, N.A. BRL 14,335,650 USD 3,815,601 (131,954)
2019 4 2 Citibank, N.A. BRL 14,335,650 USD 3,678,921 4,727
2019 4 2 Goldman Sachs International BRL 231,684,313  USD 61,937,741 (2,404,808)
2019 4 2 Goldman Sachs International BRL 231,684,313  USD 59,456,543 76,389
2019 5 3 Goldman Sachs International BRL 231,684,313  USD 59,743,247 (328,147)
2019 4 17 Barclays Bank PLC EUR 120,736  USD 140,046 (4,284)
2019 5 14 Citibank, N.A. EUR 2,400,000 USD 2,736,029 (31,002)
2019 5 14 Citibank, N.A. GBP 170,695 USD 225,000 (2,077)
2019 4 2 Goldman Sachs International GBP 218,568  USD 291,001 (6,196)
2019 4 2 HSBC Bank plc GBP 617,340 USD 821,059 (16,634)
2019 4 2 JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. GBP 401,869  USD 534,597 (10,941)
2019 4 2 Tg;giza:gz;fypf‘cco' GBP 687,603  USD 914,533 (18,552)
2019 4 30 “I"g;giﬂaifgﬂéfypf‘cco' GBP 1,284,220  USD 1,694,189 (18,254)
2019 4 2 Goldman Sachs International IDR 415,842,333,000 USD 29,551,047 (348,636)
2019 4 2 Goldman Sachs International IDR 415,842,333,000 USD 29,194,211 8,201
2019 4 30 Goldman Sachs International IDR 401,507,333,000 USD 28,173,976 (85,737)
2019 4 30 Goldman Sachs International IDR 2,864,600,000 USD 200,000 399
2019 4 2 Goldman Sachs International JPY 1,598,451,101 USD 14,515,090 (73,648)
2019 4 26 Goldman Sachs International JPY 2,018,450,285 USD 18,337,112 (58,137)
2019 4 2 JPMorgan Chase Bank, N_A. JPY 466,653,799  USD 4,238,620 (22,567)
2019 4 2 JPMorgan Chase Bank, N_A. MXN 258,057,781  USD 13,397,177 (93,515)
2019 5 3 JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. MXN 258,057,781  USD 13,470,523 (237,118)
2019 4 2 UBS AG MXN 12,546,997  USD 651,403 (4,567)
2019 5 3 UBS AG MXN 20,295,790  USD 1,054,256 (13,472)
2019 4 2 Goldman Sachs International RUB 29,468,700  USD 450,000 (1,449)
2019 4 2 Goldman Sachs International RUB  1,722,302,331 USD 26,060,545 155,100
2019 4 30 Goldman Sachs International RUB  1,582,487,016  USD 24,515,678 (548,171)
2019 4 2 Goldman Sachs International TRY 162,810,955 USD 30,163,024 (1,344,886)
2019 4 30 Goldman Sachs International TRY 5,659,000 USD 1,000,000 (31,996)
2019 4 2 UBS AG TRY 18,380,821  USD 3,400,675 (147,202)
2019 4 30 UBS AG TRY 168,148,276  USD 28,787,628 (24,912)
2019 4 2 Goldman Sachs International ZAR 583,622  USD 42,003 (1,534)
2019 4 2 JPMorgan Chase Bank, N_A. ZAR 14,078,278  USD 1,011,573 (35,356)
2019 4 2 UBS AG ZAR 884,521  USD 63,619 (2,284)
2019 4 30 UBS AG ZAR 15,546,421  USD 1,076,628 (2,477)
(5,836,914)
(4,882,530)
AUD MXN
BRL RUB
EUR TRY
GBP usD
IDR ZAR
JPY
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund
(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Statement of Assets and Liabilities
March 31, 2019
(Expressed in U.5. Dollars)

Assels
Investments in securities, at value (cost $219,254,351)
Cash equivalents
Foreign currency, at value (cost $333,541)
Due from broker
Interest receivable
Receivable for investments sold
Unrealized gain on forward foreign currency contracts
Receivable for units subscribed
Dividend receivable
Total assets

Linbilities
Unrealized loss on forward foreign currency coniracts
Payahile for investments purchased
Redemptions payable
Accrued management fees
Accrued distributor fees
Accrued expenses
Total liabilities
Met assets attributable to redeemable unitholders

BRL Class
$60,717,197/19,526,822 units ~ §

3.109
JPY Class
$18.384,850/298,100 units § 61673
GBP Class
51,673,391/181,811 units 5 9.204
USD Class
$33,166,210v4,434,433 units 5 7.479
IDR Class
528,924 633/6,264,837 units s 4.617

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

2
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RLUTE Class
£23,528,498/5,792,795 units  §
TRY Class
530,547,357/11,661,157 units $

ZAR Class ,
$1,121,187/314,160 units

MXM Class
514,381,879/2,738,542 units 3

ALD Class
§2,303,356/437,519 units

£213,802,968
3,979,213
329,532
822,830
3,012,641
2,088,495
1,755,143
724,263
11,108

226,526,193

6,637,673
2,380,000
1,021,077
386,430
441,604
510,851

11,377,635
$215,148,558

4.062

2,654
s 3.569
5.252
8 5.2635
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Operations

For the Year Ended March 31, 2019

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Investment mecome
Interest 516,523 938
Dividends (net of foreign tax withholdings $22,221) 65,604
Total investment income 16,993,542
Expenses
Distributor fees 1,978,603
Management fees 1,731,302
Custody 208,231
Administrative, accounting, and transfer agent 137,033
Agent company fees 123,664
Professional 120,258
Loan servicing 66,957
Trustee fees 24,733
Other 76,540
Total expenses 4467321
Met investment income 12,526,221

Net realized and unrealized gain (loss) on investments, foreign corrency
translation/transactions and derivative contracts

Met realized gain (loss)
Investments (5.994,048)
Foreign currency transactions 8734
Forward foreign currency contracts (21,572,017
Net realized (loss) (27478,731)
Met change in unrealined gain (loss)
Investments 1,886,381
Foreign currency transactions {6,050)
Forward foreign currency contracts (674,177)
Net change in unrealized gain (loss) 1,216,154
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss) on investments, foreign currency
translation/iransactions and derivative contracts (26,262,577)
Met (decrease) in net assets resulting from operations £(13,736,356)

The accompanying notes are an intégral part of these financial statements.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Changes in Net Assets

For the Year Ended March 31, 2019

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

From operations
Net investment income § 12,526,221
Met realized (loss) {27,478,731)
Net change in unrealized gain (loss) _M
Met (decrease) in net assets resulting from operations (13,736,356)
From distributions to nnitholders
BRL Class (7.100,872)
TPY Class (2,101 458)
GBP Class {310,136)
USD Class (3.480377)
IDR Class (4,003,335)
RUB Class (3,584,834}
TRY Class (5932427
ZAR Class (111,364}
MXN Class (1,733,692)
AUD Class (294,093)
Total distributicns (28.652,628)
From participant transactions
Met {decrease) in net assets resulting from participant transactions (Mote 8) {47,529 650)
Net (decrease) in net assets (89.918,674)
Met assets
Beginning of year 305,067,232
End of year £215,148,558

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
17
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2019

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

1. Organization and Investment Objective

WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund (the “Fund™) was formed on October 4,
2010 as a sub-trust of the Western Asset Offshore Funds (“Trust™), a unit trust established by a trust
deed under the Trusts Law (as amended) of the Cayman Tslands and registered under the Mutual Punds
Law (2013 revision) of the Cayman Islands. The Trust is structured as an umbrella unit trust, which
allowe it to create multiple sub-trusts, with the aim of segregating assets and liabilities of each sub-trust.
Ag of March 3], 2019, there were 10 sub-trusts of Western Asset Offshore Funds. Western Asgset
Managemnent Compary Limited (“WAMCT ") iz the Trust's Manager. Western Asset Management Compary,
LLC{("WAM™), formerly kmown as Western Asset Management Company, Western Asset Management
Company Pre, Lid. (“Western Asset Singapore™), Western Asset Management Company Lid. (“Westem
Agset Tokyo™), Western Asset Management Company Distribuidora de Titulos ¢ Valores Mobilifirios
Limitada (“Western Asset Brazil™), and Western Asset Management Company Pty. Lid. (*Western
Asset Melbourne™) are the sub-investment managers to the Fund (collectively the “Trvestment Manager™).
BMY Mellon Fund Management {Cayrman ) Limited iz administrator and trustee to the Fund. The Bank
of New York Mellon, a2 wholly-owned subsidiary of The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation, is
the custodian and sub-administrator to the Fund. The Bank of New York Mellon (Singapore Branch)
is the registrar and transfer agent to the Fund. Mitsubishi UF] Morgan Stanley PB Securities Co. Ltd.
{Japan) is Agent Company and Distributor to the Fund.

The investment objective of the Fund is to seek to provide unitholders with a long-term total return
consisting of income and capital gains through a diversified portfolio of investments mainly consisting
of global corporate bonds, including high yield bonds and bonds of emerging markets issuers. The
Fund may also invest in securities or asset classes that are outside traditional high yield or emerging
markets benchmarks, such as non-agency mortgage-backed securitics, preferred securities and subordinated
securities, The Fund offers multiple hedged classes.

AtMarch 31, 2019, the Fund had one unaffiliated unitholder who held 8% of the Fund's units outstanding.
The Fund may be materially impacted by the actions of this unithalder.

2, Sammary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Accounting
In conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America ("US.
GAAP™), the Fund uses the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, income and expenses are recorded
as carned and incurred, respectively.

The Fund is an investment company which follows accounting and reporting guidance in the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (*“FASB") Accounting Standards Codification 846, Financial Services
— Investment Companies.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with 118, GAAP, requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and labilities, disclosure of contingent
assets and labilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of mcreases and
decreases in net assets from operations during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2019

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continned)

Cash Equivalents and Foreign Currency
Cash equivalents and foreign currency consist of cash and foreign currency on deposit with financial
ingtinetiong. Cash equivalents are carried at cost, plus accrued interest, which approximates fair value,

The Fund considers all highly liquid investrents with a maturity of three months or less when purchased
to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalenis include 53,979,213 in money market accounts. Cash held in
banks periodically exceeds the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation’s (“FDIC") insurance coverage
of $250,000, and as a result, there is a concentration of credit risk related to amounts in excess of the
FDIC insurance coverage.

Due to/from Broker

The Fund records restricted cash on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities within “Due from Broker™
which represents balances required by brokers for collateral on certain derivative positions. “Due to
Broker” includes restricted cash and cash held with brokers. Due to/from Broker is reported on a
net-by-counterparty basis as there isa valid right to offset with each of the brokers. The Fund continually
monitors the creditworthiness of the financial instibutions with which it conducts business.
Security Transactions and Investment Tncome

Security transactions are accounted for as of trade date. The cost of securities delivered and the net
gain or loss on securities sold are determined using the first-in, first-out method. Interest income eamed
on securities is recorded net of applicable withholding taxes on the accrual basis. Interestincome includes
accretion of discounts and amortization of premiums which are recorded using the effective vield method.
Dividend income is recorded on the ex-dividend date net of applicable withholding taxes.
Functional and Presemiation Currency

Ttems included in the Fund’s financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which it operates. The meajorty of 1ssuances, redemptions, and valuations
of the units are effected and denominated in the UL.5.Dollars (*LJSD™).

Foreign Currency Translation/Transactions

Investment securities and other assets and habilites denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into UTSD amounts based upon prevailing exchan ge rates on the date of valuation, Purchases and sales
of imvestment securities, income and expen se items, and issuance and redemptions of units denominated
in foreign currencics are translated into USD amounts based upon prevailing exchange rates on the
respective dates of such transactions.

The Fund does notisolate that portson of the results of operations resulting from fluctuations in foreign
exchange rates on imvestments from the fluctuations ariging from changes in market prices of securities
held. Such fluctuations are inchuded within the net realized and unrealized gain or loss on investments
on the Statement of Operations.

Met realized foreign exchange gains or losses arise from sales of foreign currencies, including exchange
gaing and losses on the settlement of forward foreign currency contracts, curréncy gains or losses
realized between the trade and settlement dates on securities tranzactions, and the difference between
the amounts of dividends, interest, and forgign withholding taxes recorded on the Fund’s books and
the USD equivalent of the amounts actually received or paid. Net unrealized foreign exchange gaing
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2019

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Foreign Currency Translation/Transactions (Continuned)
or logses arigs from changes in the fair values of assets and liabilities, other than inmvestments in securities
and derivative contracts, on the date of valuation, resulting from changes in exchange rates.

Certain foreign security and currency transactions may imvolve considerations and risks not typically
associated with those of USD denominated transactions as aresult of, among other factors, the possibility
of lower levels of governmental supervision and regulation of foreign securities markets and the possibility
of political or economic instability.,

Income Tazes

According to the current laws of the Cayman Islands, there is no income, estate, corporation, capital

gains or other taxes payable by the Fund. As a result, no provision for income taxes has been made
in the financial statements.

The Fund intends to conduct its affairs so that it will not be deemed to be engaged in trade or business
in the US. and, therefore, none of its income will be treated as “effectively connected™ with a US.
trade or business carried on by the Fund. Effectively connected income is subject to ULS, federal income
tax at the graduated rates applicable to U.S. domestic corporations. Certain categories of income that
are not “effectively connected” but are derived from ULS. sources, including dividends and interest
income, are subject to a ULS, tax of thirty percent. However, under the portfolio interest exemption,
the thirty percent tax does not apply to portfolio interest eamned. For the year ended March 31, 2019,
interest earned by the Fund qualifies under the portfolio interest exemption.

The Fund is subject to the authoritative guidance with respect to accounting for and disclosure of
uncertainty in tax positions, which requires the Fund to determine whether a tax position is more likely
than not to be sustained upon examination. Management has analyzed the Fund's tax positions for
all open tax years and has concluded that as of March 31, 2019, there are no uncertain tax positions
that would require financial statement recognition or disclosure. The Fund's policy is to recognize
interest and penalties, if any, related to uncertain tax positions as a component of income tax expense,

Issuances and Redemptions of Units of Participation

Fund units are issued in multiple classes (each a “Class” and, collectively, the “Classes™). The Fund
currently offers a Brazilian Real (“BRL") Class, Japanese Yen (“IPY™) Class, British Pound (“GBP™)
Class, United States Dallar (“USD™) Class, Indonesian Rupiah (“TDR") Clasg, Russian Ruble (“RLB™)
Class, Turkagh Lira (“TRY ") Class, South African Rand (“ZAR"™) Class, Mexican Peso (“WXN'T) Class, and
Australian Dollar (“AUD™) Class (each, except the USD Class, is a“Hedged Class™). The BRI Class, USD
Class, IDR Class, RUB Class, TRY Class, ZAR Class and the MXN Class are denominated in TISD,
the GBP Class in GBE, the JPY Class in JPY and the AUD Class in AUD (each a “Denomination
Currency™), in which issuances, redemptions, and valuation of units are ¢ffected and in which units
are denominated.

The net asset value of each Class is determined in the Dénomination Currency on the relevant Dealing

Day. A Dealing Day is every buginess day on which federal, state or local banks are open for business
in New York, London, Japan and the Cayman Islands and the New York Stock Exchange, London
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2019

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Issuances and Redemptions of Units of Participation {(Continned)

Stock Exchange and Tokyo Stock Exchange are open for trading, Issuances and redemptions of Fund
unitg are made on such days, based upon the cloging net asset value, A gales charge of up to 3.5% of
the net asset value may be charged and retained, by the Distributor. For the year ended March 31,
2019, the Distributor has waived the sales charge.

The Trustee, in consultation with the Investment Manager, may temporarily suspend the determination
of the net asset value of the Fund, and the issuance and redemption of the Fund's units, and may postpone
the date of payment of redemption proceeds if, among other reasons, during any period when it is not
reasonably practicable for the Investment Manager to fairly determine the value of the Fund’s net
assets. There were no such occurrences during the year ended March 31, 2019.

Allocation of Income, Expenses, Gains and Losses

Income, expenses, and realized and unrealized gaing and losses are allocated on a daily basis to each
Class of units based upon the relative portion of net assets of each Class. The Fund will apply adjustments
to the valuation of its Classes in order to specifically credit or charge to the relevant Class of units
any applicable gains, losses and expenses generated by hedging transactions with respect to such Classes (e.g.,
all coste associated with hedging trangactions relating to the JP'Y Clasgs of units are borne by the JPY
Class of unitg), All Classes of umits will bear ratably amy gains, losses and expenses generated by hedging
non-USD denominated investments to the functional currency.

Redemptions Payable

Redemptions are recognized as labilities when the amount requested in the redemption notice becomes
fized. This will generally occur ither at the time of the receipt of the notice or on the last day of a
fiscal period, depending on the nature of the redemption request. As a result, redemptions paid after
the end of the year, but based upon year end net asset values, are reflected as redemptions payable on
the Statement of Assets and Liabilities at March 31, 2019. Redemption notices received for which the
LLS. dollar and unit amounts are not fixed remain in capital until the net asset value used o determing
the redemption and wnit amounts are determined.

Distributions to Unitholders

Distributions from net investment income, net realized or unrealized gains and/or capital are declared
by the Fund on the fifteenth (15™) day of each month. Distributions are paid in cash or in-kind, as
may be determined by the Investment Manager, unless the unitholders elect to reinvest in additional
units, Cash distributions with respect to a Class are paid in the Class Denomination Currency.

Recent Accounting Pronouncement

In August 2018, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU™) No. 2018-13, Fair Value
Measurement (Topic 820): Disclosure Framework - Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for Fair
Value Measurement. The standard modifies the disclosure requirements for fair value measurements
by removing, modifying, or adding certain disclosures. ASU Mo, 2018-13 15 effective for annual reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2019, including interim perieds within that reporting period.
Early adoption 15 permitted upon issuance of this ASTL The Fund is permitted to earhy adopt anmy rémoved
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2019

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Recent Accounting Pronouncement (Continned)
or modified disclosures upon issuance of this ASL and delay adoption of the additional disclosures
until their effective date. The Fund adopted ASU No. 2018-13 on April 1, 2018.

3 Valoation

The Fund has adopted procedures for determining the fair value of its investments each Dealing Day.
Under these procedures, the Fund has delegated its authority to a pricing committes governed by the
Investment Manager to determine the value of the Fund’s investments each Dealing Day. The notes
below describe in greater detail the methodologies used to value the Fund's investments.

The Fund uses both the income and market approaches to establish the farr value of its investments.
Use of particular techniques and inputs may vary over time based on availability and relevance as
market and economic conditions evolve.

The Investment Manager considers pricing techniques it deems relevant and appropriate when making
owned by the Fund, the Investment Manager, among other things, conducts due diligence reviews of
pricing vendors, monitors the daily change in prices, and reviews transactions amon g market participants.
In addition, prices which change from the prior day by greater than a pre-established threshold will
be werified against additional pricing sources, when available, or by evaluation of verifiable changes
to the mode] inputs that impacted the resulting fair value.

Exchange traded options, warrants, and publicly traded LS. and non-ULS. equity securities are generally
valued at the official closing price of, or the last reported sale price on, the exchange or market on
which such securities are traded, as of the close of business on the day the securities are being valued
or, lacking any sales, at the last available bid price. Futures contracts are valued at the last settlement
price at the end of each day on the board of trade or exchange upon which they are traded.

Fixed-income securities, including short-term securities purchased with more than 60 days left to maturity,
are general by valued at prices obtained from one or more pricing vendors, Vendors value such securitics
based on one or more inputs described in the following table. The table provides examples of mputs
that are commonly relevant for valuing particular classes of fixed-income securities, in which the Fund
is authorized to invest, However, these classifications are not exclusive, and any of the inputs may be
used to value any other class of fixed-income security,

185/332



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2019

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

3 Valuation (Continued)

Fized-income class and Derivatives Examples of inpuis

All All benchmark yields, transactions, bids, offers,
quotations from dealers and electronic trading
systems, spreads, and other relationships observed in
the markeis among comparable securities; and
proprietary pricing models such as yield measures
caleulated using factors such as cash flows, financial
or collateral performance, and other reference data
{collectively refarred to as “standard inputs™),

Corporate bonds and notes Standard inputs and new issue data.

Bonds and notes of government and povernment | Standard inputs.

agencies

Mortgage-backed and asset-backed obligations Standard inputs, prepayment information, defanlt

rales, delinguency and loss assumptions, collateral
characteristics, credit enhancements and specific
deal information.

Structured products (including Infersst Only and|Standard inputs, plus new issue data, monthly
Principal Only securities and Collateralized Mortgage | payment information and collateral performancs,
and Collateralized Debt Obligations)
Loans, loan participations and loan assignments Transactions, bids, offers, and quotations from

dealers,

Student loans Standard inputs including the weighted average life
of the loans.

Swaps and other derivatives Standard inputs and interest rate corves, interest rate

volatilities, credit spreads and recovery rates on the
foreign exchange spot and forwand curves, and
foreign exchange volatilities,

Where the Imvestment Manager deems it appropriate to do so{such as when vendor prices are unavailable
or not deemed to be representative), fixed income securities will be valued in good faith at the mean
quoted bid and asked prices that are reasonably and timely available or at prices for secunties of comparable
maturity, quality and type.

Short-term securiies purchased within 60 deys to maturity are valued at amortized cost, which approcimates
fair value,

Securities and investments for which representative market quotations are not readily available or are
considersd unreliahle are fair valued in good faith by the Investment Manager. Various inputs may be
reviewed in onder to make a good faith determination of a security's fair value. These inputs include,
but are not limited to, the type and cost of the security; contractual or legal restrictions on resale of
the security; relevant financial or business developments of the issuer; actively traded similar or related
gecurities; conversion or exchange rights on the security; related corporate actions; sigmificant events
occurring after the close of trading in the security; and changes in overall market conditions. Fair
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2019

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

3 Valuation (Continued)

valuations and valuations of investments that are not actively trading involve judgment and may differ
materially from valuations that would have been used had greater market activity occurred.

If third party evaluated vendor pricing is neither available nor deemed to be indicative of fair value,
the Investment Manager may elect to obtain indicative market quotations {“broker quotes™) directly
from a broker-dealer. Indicative market quotations are typically received from established market participants.
The Investment Manager has requested transparency to view the underlying inputs which support these
market quotations. When transparency to the underlying inputs is received from the broker then the
security may be considered Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy if the inputs are observable, Ifthe inputs
are not ransparent or are found to be unobservable, then the securities are categorized as Level 3 of
the fair value hicrarchy,

If broker quotations are not received as of the valuation date, the most recent available broker quotation(s)
may be used. However, adjustments are made to the most recent broker quotation(s) based on interpolated
changes in the yields of associated benchmark securities from the date upon which the broker quotation
was received to the valuation date. Typically, benchmark securities are comprised of certain treasury
securities with standard maturities. Specifically, the interpolated change in the yicld is calculated using
an interpolation factor which meagures the duration of the security being priced versus the duration
of the benchmark securities with durations immediately greater than and less than the security being
priced. The interpolated yield change is then applied to the duration of the security to calculate the
implied change in price.

Over-the-counter financial derivative instruments, such as forward foreign currency contracts, options
contracts, swaptons contracts, or swap agrecments, derive their value from underlying asset prices,
indices, reférencerates, and other inputs or a combination of these factors, These contracts ang normally
valued on the basis of pricing service providers or broker dealer quotations, Depending on the product
and the terms of the transaction, the valug of financial derivative instruments can be estimated by a
pricing service provider using a series of techniques, including simulation pricing models. The pricing
models use inputs that are observed from actively quoted markets such as issuer details, indices, spreads,
interest rates, yield curves, and exchange rates.

Centrally cleared swaps transacted on a multilateral or trade facility platform, such as a registered
exchange, are valued at the daily settlement price determined by the respective exchange, For centrally
cleared credit default swaps, the clearing facility requires its members to provide actionable price levels
across complete term structures, These levels along with external third party prices are used to produce
daily settlement prices. Centrally cleared interest rate swaps are valued using a pricing madel that
references the underlying rates including the overnight index swap rate and London Interbank Crffered
Rate ("LIBOR™) forward rate to produce the daily settlement price. These securities are categorized
as Level 2 of the fair valus hierarchy,
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(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2019
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3 Valuation (Continued)

The various inputs that are used in determining the fair value of the Fund’s assets and liabilities are
summarized into the broad levels listed below:

@ Level | - quoted prices in active markets for identical investments

® Level 2 other significant observable inputs (including quoted prices for similar investments,
interest rates, prepayment speeds, credit risk, etc.)

® Level 3 - significantunobservahle inputs, including the Investment Manager's own assumptions
in determining the fair value of investments. Level 3 fair value techniques include (i)
the use of proprietary models that require the use of judgment and the application of
various assumption sinchuding, but not limited to, prepayment assumptions and default
rate asgumptions, and (ii) the solicitation of valuations from third parties (typically,
broker-dealers). Third-party valuation providers often utilize proprietary models that
nmhpmemdahummeﬂnmnfpﬂgmmmmidmagﬁmmcfmw
including, but not limited to, prepayment assumptions and default rate assumptions.

The valuation levels are not necessarily an indication of the risk or liquidity associated with investing
in those sacurities.

The following is & summary of the levels within the valuation hierarchy used in valuing the Fund's
assets and liabilities carried at fair value:

Assits
Significan Significant
1
Quoted Obscrvablc Unohservahlc
Prices Inputs Inputs
Description {Level 1} (Level 2) {Level 3} Total
Motes and Debentures 8 — 5199808646 S 1,293,780 5 201,102,426
Term Loans (Funded) - 11,798,777 — 11,798,777
Common Stocks 840,424 — 61,341 901,765
Forward Forgign Currency
Contracts - 1,755,143 — 1,755,143
Total 8 840,424 8 213362566 S 1,355,121 § 215,558,111
Liabilitics
Significant Significant
md Observable Unobservahle
lnputs Tnputs
Description (Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Forward Foreign Currency
Contracts b1 — § 6637673 § — § 6,637,673
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4, Louns, Loan Participations and Loan Assignments

The Fund may acquire loans, by acting as a member of the original lending syndicate of the loans or
through an assignment from another lender, and may also purchase loan participations (i.e., participation
interests in other lenders’ portions of lpans), The underying portfolio may also include loans, loan
participations and other types of loans, including bridge loans and debtor-in-possession facilities.

Investments in loans and loan participations may subject the Fund to liquidity risk. Loans and loan
participations may be ransferable armong financial ingtinutions, but ey not have the bquidity of comentional
debt securities and are often subject to restrictions on resale, such as the need for the consent of the
lead or agent bank of the loan or the borrower, thereby making them potentially illiquid.

Certain of the loan participations or assignments acquired by the Fund may involve unfunded commitments
of the lenders or revolving credit facilities under which a borrower may from time to time borrow and
repay amounts up to the maximum amountof the facility. In such cases, the Fund would have an obligation
to advance its portion of such additional borrowings upon the terms specified in the loan documentation,
Such an obligation may have the effect of requiring the Fund to increase its imvestment in a company
at a time when it might not be desirable to do so, including at a time when the company”s financial
condition males it unlikely that such amounts will be repaid.

At March 31, 2019, the Fund did not have any unfunded loan commitments.

5. Payment-Tn-Kind Securities
The Fund may invest in payment-in-kind securities (“PIEK"). PIKs give the issuer the option at each
interest payment date of making interest payments in either cash or additional debt securities. Those
additional debt securities usually have the same terms, including maturity dates, interest rates, and
associated risks as the original bonds. The daily market quotations of the original bonds may inclede
the accrued interest and require a pro rata adjustment from the unrealized gain or loss on investments
to interest receivable on the Smatement of Asscts and Liabilities.

For the vear ended March 31, 2019, with respect to in-kind payments from FIK securities, the Fund
received 5131, 120 or(.8% of total investment income. This amount is included within interest income
on the Statement of Operations.

6. Forward Foreign Currency Contracts

The Fund may enter into a forward foreign currency contract to hedge against foreign currency exchange
rate risk on its non-UST) denominated securities and units or to facilitate settlement of a foreign currency
denominated portfolio transaction. A forward foreign currency contract is an agreement between two
parties to buy and sell a currency at a set price with delivery and settlement at a future date, The contract
is marked to market daily and the change in value is recorded by the Fund as an unrealized gain or
loss, When a forsard foreign currency contract is closed, through either delivery of the currencies or
offset by entering into another forward foreign currency contract, the Fund recognizes a realized gain
or loss equal to the difference between the value of the confract at the time it was opened and the value
of the contract at the time it is closed.
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(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

6. Forward Foreign Currency Contracts (Continaned)
Forward foreign currency contracts involve elements of market rigk in excess of the amounts reflected
on the Staterment of Assets and Liabilities. The Fund bears the risk of an unfavorable change in the
foreign exchange rate underlying the forward foreign currency contract. Risks may also arise upon
entering into these contracts from the potential inability of the counterparties to meet the terms of
their contracts.

7. Charges and Fees

Investment Manager Fee
The [nvestment Manager's fee is accrued daily and payable quarterly in arrears at an annual rate of
0.70% of the average daily net assets of the Fund.

Trustee Fee
The Trustee fee is accrued daily and payable quarterly in arrears at an annual rate of 0.01% of the
average daily net assets of the Fund or a minimum of $15,000 per year.

Administrator Fee

The Administrator fee is accrued daily and payable quarterly in arrears at an annual rate of 0.02% on
the first $3 billion or less, 0.0125% on the next $1.5 billion and 0.0050% on the amount over 54.5
billion of the average daily net assets of the Fund or a minimum of $45,000 per year.

Registrar and Transfer Agent Fee
The annual Registrar and Transfer Agent fee for the Fund is $10,000. The annual maintenance fee for
each Class iz 58,400,

Distributor Fee
The Diistributor fee is accrued daily and payvable quarterly in arrears at an annual rate of 0.80% of the
average daily net assets of the Fund.

Agent Company Fee
The Agent Company fee is accrued daily and payveble quarterty in arrears at an anmual rate of 0.05%
of the average daily net assets of the Fund.

B. Units of Participation
The following represents the Fund s unit activity for the year ended March 31, 2019;

‘Veur Ended Murch 31, 2019
EBRL I GEF 05D
L] Amouat Uuita Ampunt Cuita Amouat Caits Amoust

Units insoed 1610704 § 5431275 17§ 1,225,558 1675 §  IGI53 104574 § 1461331
Unit redeemed _ amelm’ () (esme Usea)  oelsz) aseisy o611 (1sis
Nt (decreane) —_(ISOTBE  (3BSLISH _ (145SE0§ (B,34,090) (6,145 340000 _(1,472,5T2)§11,15728)
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8 Units of Participation (Continned)

TR RIR TRY FAR
Unite Ampnnt TUakia Ampunt Dnit Ampnst Caits Amonst

Units mpsed 450478 & 16595  LITLTG0 5 5585144 z,a'n,sh 5 T,ﬁslms M,m % mi,m
Utsits: redermiod (1360960 (6,144,047 (3508417 (14,784,503)

Net increase (docrease) (901, 891)3 _ (3.97457) _(2,306,652)3 (9,198,789 ) —Gosrsni st T ioE

— MXN AQD Tptal
Dnits Amgunt Uaits Amount Units Amomnt

Units inmaed S5RA50 § 2 A3¥3267 35,162 § 301,270 GE20T08 § 26T
LUinis mdeemed (B2, 16H) (4,683 410) (96,523} (H26100 (L5,745,79%) (T4307.313)

Mt (decrmasc) (337,869 5 {1,850, 143} (4146115 (241, 3400 (BELIS00)S  (47.520,600)
9. Financial Highlights

Year Ended March 31, 2019
Selected Per Unit Data HRL JFY GHF UsD IDR
Wt assct value, beginning of year 5 3795 69.311 § 10.58% § 78338 4915
Net investment income!™! 0163 3.193 0.450 0281 0.230
Wt realized and unreal ived gain (loss) {0453) {4.BRS) {0.997) {0.035) 0.042
Total income (loss) from investment opemtions (0.290) (1.692) {0.517) 0346 0272
Drigtritations to unitholders: {03400 {5.544) {0.857) {0.700) (0.5 80)
Net aasct value, end of yoar 5 3.109 § 61673 § 9.204 § 7479 5 4617
Total return %5 (7. 44) (4.28) 442 552
Ratios to Average Net Amets ad e
Expenses % 1.81 1.80 180 1.80 1.79
Het investment income % 509 505 504 505 b ir]
Year Ended March 31, 3019

Selected Per Unit Dats RUE TRY TAR MXN ALD
Met assct value, beginning of year s 4506 5 3619 § 43731 § 5640 5 6.125
Wet investment income™” 0211 0142 0.192 0.262 0281
Net realized and unrealired gain (loas) {0.475) {0.647) (0.636) (0,070 (0.499)
Total income (loss) from investment operations (D264) {0.505) (0.444) 0192 (0218)
Digtributions o unitholders {0480) (0460 (0.350) {0.560) {0.643)
Net assct value, end of year 5 4062 5 24654 5 3,569 § 52528 3265
Total retzrm %5 (35.49) (13.95) (10.15) 140 {3.56)
Ratios to Average Net Amets
Expenses % 1.582 1.582 1584 1.79 1.81
‘Net investment income % 508 508 5146 502 509

) Wet impestment income per wnit has boen calculaied hased upon average units outstanding for the year.
! Total retwrn calculation is based on the value of 4 single unit of participation outstanding throughout the year. Tt represents the
percentage change in the net asset value perunit between the beginning and end of the year, exchuding distributions to unitholders.

The above ratios are calculated for the participating units as a whole. An individual unitholder's total
return and ratios may vary from these ratios based on the timing of capital unit transactions.
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(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

10. Derivative Instruments

The Fund may ransact in a variety of derfvative instruments including forwands for trading purposes
with each instrument’s primary risk exposure being foreign exchange risk. The fair value of these
derivative ingtruments is included as a separate line item within the Statement of Assets and Liabilities
by contract type.

The following tables provids information about the fair values and the location of derivatives notaccounted
for as hedging instruments which are ingluded within the Statement of Assets and Liabilities at March
11, 2019 and are grouped by derivative type:

Asact
Derivaiives™

Foreign
Exchange Risk

Forward Foreign Currency
Contracts 5 1,755,143

Lisbility

Foreign
Exchange Risk

Forward Foreign Currency
Contracts 5 6,637,673

) Generally, the location fior asset derivatives is receivabiles/unrealined gain and for liahility derivatives is payabies and
unrealized (loss).

The following tables provide information about the effect of derivatives within the Fund’s Statement
of Operations for the year ended March 31, 2019. The first table provides additional detail about the
amounts and sources of gains or losses realized on derivatives during the period. The second table
provides additional information about the change in unrealized gain (loss) resulting from the Fund's
derivatives during the year. The realized and unrealized gaing and losses from derivatives are presented
as separate ling items on the Statement of Operations.

Amount of Realized
(Low)

on Derivatives
Recognized
Forelgn
FExchange Risk
Forward Foreign Currency
Contracts 5 {21,572017T)
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10,  Derivative Instruments (Continned)

C in Unreatized
ain {L.oss)
on Derivatives
Recognized
Exchange Risk
Forward Foreign Currency Contracts 5 {674,177)

Dwuring the year ended March 31, 2019, the volume of derivatives activity for the Fund was as follows:
Muonthly
Average
Valucs

Forward Currency Contracts to Delivert? 5 (250,774,339)
Forward Currency Contracts to Receive™ 440,481 402

3 This amount, converted to preseatational currency where applicable, corresponds to the representative average payable
walue at settlement date based on the monthly activity of the Fund,

2 Thisamount, corveried to presentational currency where applicatie, corresponds to the representative sverage rooeivable
value at sctthement date based on the monthly activity of the Fund.

11, Offsetting Assets and Liabilities

By using derivative ingtruments, the Fund is exposed to the counterparty’s credit risk, the risk that
derivative counterparties may not perform in accordance with the contractual provisions offset by the
value of any collateral received. The Fund’s exposure to credit risk associated with counterparty
non-performance is limited to the unrealized gains inherent in such transactions that are recognized
within the Statement of Assets and Liabilities. The Fund minimizes counterparty credit risk through
credit limits and approvals, credit monitoring procedures, executing master netting arrangements, and
managing margin and collateral requirements, as appropriate, The Fund records counterparty credit
risk valuation adjustments, if material, on certain derivative assets in order to appropriately reflect
the credit quality of the counterparty. These adjustments are also recorded on the market quotes received
from counterparties or other market participants since these quotes may not fully reflect the credit
risk of the counterparties to the derivative instruments,

For financial reporting purposes, the Fund does not offset derivative assets and liabilities that are subject
to netting arrangements within the Statement of Assets and Liabilities. Information is presented below
for all derivative assets and liabilities that are subject to an enforceable Master Netting A greement
(“MNA™.
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11,  Offsetting Assets and Liabilities (Continned)
Offsetting of Derivative Assets and Liabilities at March 31, 2019

Amounts Presented in the
Statement of Asscts and Liabilitics
Asacta Liabilities
Forward Foreign Currency Contracts 5 1,755,143 § 6637673
Total derivative assets and liabilitics in the Statement of Asscts &
Liahilities subject to a MNA 5 1,755,143 & 6,637,673

Derivative Assets and Collateral Received

Gross
Amgunts of
Asacts
Presented in
the Statement
of Asscts and Fingncial Cash Recrived
Liahilitics Instrument as Collateral  Net Amount™
Citibark, N.A.™ 5 02626 § (l02.626) S — & —
Goldman Sacks Internagional™ 1,280,615 (1,280,615) - —_
TPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A™ 314,267 (314.267) -
Morgan & Co.
uum plc®? 27078 (27,078) — —
URS AG™ 30,557 {30,557) — —
Towl 5 1,755,143 §  (1785143) S — 5 —

) Net amount represents the net amouwnt receivable from the counterparty in the event of default.
& Owerthe Counter.

Derivative Liabilities and Collateral Pledged

Gross
Amonnts of
Liabilitkes
Preseated in
?{e Statement
Agscts and Fingncigl Cash Pledged
Liabilitics Instrument as Collateral  Net Amount™
Barclzys Bank PLC™? 5 4284 § — 3 — 5 43184
Citibank, N_A 192,044 (102.626) — B3418
Gualdman Sachs International™ 5396639 (1,280,615) — 4,116,024
HSBC Bark ple™ 25,137 - - 25,137
TPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. ™ 401,359 (314,267) = B7,002
Morgan & Co.
Inu:-um plc™! 48,007 (27.078) = 0929
URS AG™ 570,203 (30,557) e 539 646
Tatal 5 6637673 5§ (L755143) § 5 4,582 530

B} Mot amount represents the net amount pavable doe to the counterparty in the event of defimly
& Owver the Counter.

il
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12, Fund Investment Risks

Lower-Rated Securities Rigk

The Fund may invest in lower-rated securities, which are commonly referred to as “junk bonds™ or
“high yield" bonds. Lower-rated securities reflect a greater possibility that adverse changes in the
financial condition of the izsuer or in general economic conditions, or an unanticipated rise in interest
rates, may impair the ability of the issuer to make payments of interest and principal. Additionally,
lower-rated securities are generally less liquid than higher-rated securities. The inability or perceived
inability of issuers to make timely payments of interest and principal and limitations in liquidity would
likely make the values of securities held by the Fund more volatile and could limit the Fund's ability
to sell its securities at prices approximating the vahues placed on such securities.

I in ing M I

The Fund may invest in emerging market instruments which are subject to certain credit and market
risks. The securities and currency markets of emerging market countries are generally smaller, less
developed, less liquid and more volatile than the securities and currency markets of the United States
and other developed markets. Disclosure and regulatory standards in many respects are less stringent
than in other developed markets. There also may be a lower level of monitoring and regulation of
securities markets in emerging market countries and the activities of mvestors in such markets and
enforcement of existing regulations may be extremely limited. Political and economic structures in
many of these countrics may be in their infancy and developing rapidly, and such countries may lack
the social, political and economic stability characteristics of more developed countries.

I in Mon-

The Fund invests in securities of non-118. issuers which present certain special risks, inchuding those
resulting from future political, legal, and economic developments, which could mclude changes in
currency exchange rates or exchange conftrol regulations, expropriation of assets, confiscatory taxation,
nationalization of assets, imposition of withholding or other taxes, adverse changes in investment capital
or exchange control regulations, political changes, diplomatic developments, difficulty in obtaiming
and enforcing judgments against non-1L1L5, entities, the possible imposition of the applicable country's
governmental laws or restrictions, and the reduced availability of public information concerning issuers,
Additionally, issuers of non-U.5, securities are not generally subject to uniform accounting, auditing
and financial reporting standards or other regulatory practices and requirements comparable to those
applicable to ULS. issuers. In the event of nationalization, expropriation or other confiscation of assets,
the Fund could lose its entire investment in a security.

The costs associated with investment in debt securities of non-L1L5. issuers, including withholding
taxes, brokerage commissions and custodial fees, may be higher than those associated with investment
in debt securities of U5, issuers. In addition, non-115. securities transactions may be subject to difficulties
associated with the settlement of such transactions, Won-1L5, markets have different clearance and
settlement procedures which in some markets have at times failed to keep pace with the volume of
trangactions, thereby creating substantial delays and settlement failures. Delays in settlement could
result in temporary periods when assets of the Fund are uninvested and no return is earned thereon.
Settlement failures could also adversely affect the Fund's performance. The inability of the Fund o
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12,  Fund Investment Risks (Continued)

5 -qllml-ri

malke intended security purchases due to settlernent problems could cause it to miss attractive investrnent
opportunities. Inability to dispose of a portfolio security due to settlement problems could result in
losses to the Fund due to subsequent declines in value of the portfolio security.

g ign Deb Risl

The Fund may invest in sovereign debt instrumenis which can imvohve a high degree of risk. The governmental
entity that controls the repayment of soversign debt may not be able or willing to repay the principal
and/or interest when due in accordance with the terms of the debt. A governmental entity’s willingness
or ability to repay principal and interest when due may be affected by, among other factors, its cash
flow situation, the extent of its reserves, the availability of sufficient foreign exchange on the date a
payment is due, the relative size of the debt service burden to the economy asa whole, the governmental
entity’s policy toward the International Monetary Fund, the political constraints to which a governmental
entity may be subject, and changes in governments and political systems.

-Publicly Traded and Rule 1444 ities Ri

The Fund may investin non-publicly traded and Rule 144 A securities which may invole a high degree
of business and financial risk and may result in substantial losses. These securities may be less liquid
than publicly traded securities, and the Fund may take longer to liquidate thess positions than would
be the case for publichy traded securities. Although these securities may be resold in privately negotiated
transactions, the prices realized from these sales could be less than those originally paid by the Fund.
Further, companies whose securities are not publicly traded may not be subject to the disclosure and
other investor protection requirements that would be applicable if their securities were publicly traded.
Consequently, these securities may be difficult to value.

Hedging Transactions Risk

Hedging strategies in general are usually intended to limit or reduce investment risk, but can also be
expected to Emit or reduce the potential for profit. Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent that
assets of the Fund attributable to a particular Class of units are insufficient to satisfy the liabilites
associated with a hedging transaction with respect to such Class of wnits, such amount ofthe liabilites
that exceed such assets may be borme by the other Classes of umits of the Fund.

Ini Ri

Interest rate risk is the risk that fixed income securities will decline in value because of changes in
interest rates. As nominal interest rates nse, the value of certain fized mcome securities held by the
Fund is likely to decrease. A nominal interest rate can be described as the sum of a real interest rate
and an expected inflation rate, Fixed income securities with longer durations tend to be more sensitive
to changes in interest rates, usually making them more volatile than securities with shorter durations,
Duration is used prmarily as 8 measure of the sensitivity of a fized income’s market price to interest
rate {1.¢e., yield) movements.
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12,  Fund Investment Risks (Continued)
Liquidity Rig)
The Fund may invest in assets and derivatives that may not be readily available to sell or dispose of,
including securities whose disposition is restricted by securities laws. The effect of liquidity risk is
particularly pronounced when low trading volume, lack of a market maker, large position size, or legal
restrictions (including daily price fluctustion limits or *circuit breakers” or an affiliation with the issuer
of a security) limit or prevent the Fund’s ability to initiate a ransaction, sell assets, or unwind derivative
positions at desirable prices. The Fund is also exposed to liquidity risk when it has an obligation to
purchase particular securities (for example, as a result of entering into reverse repurchase agreements,
writing a put, or closing out a short position).

c ion of Rish
To the extent the Fund concentrates its investments in one or more countries, the value of the Fund's
assets will be especially affected by economic, political and other factors affecting such couniry or
countries, and may fluctuate more widely than the value of a fund that invests in a greater number of
countrics,

Derivative Instruments Risk

The Fund may invest in various derivatives which may present additional risks and costs thatare different
from and, in certain cases, greater than the risks and costs presented by investing directly in securities
and other more traditional investments. Following are additional risk factors concemning the use of
derivatives:

® Mangpement Rizk: Derrvative products are specialized instruments that require imvestment techmiques
and risk analyses different from those associated with stocks and bonds. The successful use of
derivatives requires sophisticated management and an understanding not only of the underlying
instrument but also of the derivative itself. In particular, the use and complexity of denvatves
require the maintenance of adequate controls to monitor the ransactions entered into, and the
ghility to assess the risk that a derivative adds to the Fund's portfolio,

® Counterparty Credit Risk: The use of derivatives subjects the Fund to the risk that the counterparty
will not be able or willing to make tmely settement payments or otherwise meet its ohligations,
especially during unusually adverse market conditions, If the counterparty defaults, the Fund
will have contractual remedies, but the Fund may be unable to enforce its confractual rights.
Counterparty risk is more pronounced if a counterparty’ s obligations exceed the amount of collateral
held by the Fund (if any), the Fund is unable to exercise its interest in collateral upon default by
the counterparty, or the termination valug of the instrument varies significantly from the
marked-to-market value of the instrument.

197/332



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2019

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

12,  Fund Investment Risks (Continued)

Derivative In Risk (Continued)
® Documeniation Risk: Many derfvative instruments have documentation risk. Because the contract

for each over-the-counter derivative transaction is individually negotisted with a specific counterparty,
there exists the rigk that the parties may interpret contractual terms differently. If that occurs,
the cost and unpredictability of the legal proceedings required for the Fund to enfiorce its contractual
rights may lead the Fund to decide not to pursue its claims against the counterparty. The Fund,
therefore, assumes the risk that it may be unable to obtain payments the Investrment Manager
believes are owed to them under derivatives instruments or those payments may be delayed or
made only after the Fund has incurred the costs of litigation.

13,  Contingencies and Commitments

In the normal course of business, the Fund enters into contracts that contain a variety of representations
and warrantics, which provide general indemnifications. The Fund's maximum exposure under these
arrangements is unknowmn, as this would involve future claims that may be made against the Fund that
have not yet occurred. Based on experience, management is of the view that the risk of loss in connection
with these potential indemnification obligations is remaote; however, there can be no assurance that
material liahilities related to such obligations will not arise in the future that could adversely impact
the business of the Fund.

14,  Lime of Credit

The Fund participated in an unsecured, 364-day, committed credit agreement (*Credit Agreement™)
up to 522,500,000 with The Bank of New York Mellon (*BMNYM™). The Credit Agreement was made
available to finance temporarily the repurchase or redemption of units of the Fund, failed trades, payment
of dwvidends, ssttlement of trades and for other short-term, temporary or emergency general business
purposes. Loans under the Credit A greement are charged interest at a fluctuating rate per annum equal
to the sum 1.25% plus the Federal Funds Rate. The Credit Agreement also requires the Fund to pay
0.12% per annum commitment fee based on the average undrawm amount of the Credit Agreement.
The Credit Agreement expired on its own terms as of December 4, 2018 and was not renewed. For
the period April 1, 2018-December 4, 2018, the Fund did not utilize the Credit Agreement.

15. Subsequent Events

As of May 29,2019, the date the financial staterments were available to be issued, no subsequent events
or transactions had occurred that would have materially impacted the financial statements as
presented.

i3
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FRINCIPAL INTEREST MATURITY
AMOTUNT** RATE DATE COST YALUE
NOTES AND DEBENTURES = 91.5%
ARGENTINA - T.1%
Flectric — RLd%
] 930,000 Paeps Frergis SA 1444 7.500% l-24-2027 0gs,050 § BE3.6T4
Masicipal — 0.5%
1,220,000 Autonomins City of Huenos Aires Argentina 1444 7.500 Tun01-2027 1,222,979 1,085,800
Ol & Gaa — LT%
650000 YFFSA 1444 B.500 Jul-28- M2 3,492,200 3581563
Pipeing — 0.5%
1,900,000 Transportadora de Gas del Sur SA 1A 6750 May-2- 2025 1,839,555 1, 787900
Reglonal (SiateProvisce ) — L0%
3,160,000 Provincia de Froenos Aires/Argenting 1444 5,135 Moz 162024 2,268,141 1,846,800
330,000 Provincia de Huenos Alrs’Argenting 1444 TETS Jun-15-2027 I39,202 AL024

1,608,363 2088524

Severcign & Agency — 1.T%
2240000 Argenting Republic Goversenest Intemational
Feond 5625 Jao-26-2022 1,270,545 L935.360
1300000 Argentine Republic Goversment Inematicnal
Bgnd

7500 Apr- 22206 L 468,538 179,728

3640000 Argenting Bepublic Govermment Intemational

Fuosd 5475 Jem-11-2028 3,439,001 LE00470
7.178.484 5015558
TOTAL ARGENTIMNA 17,330,604 15323318
ADSTRALTA = 00%
Mislag — 0L0%

1,202,654 Widhwest Vanadium Py Lad. Ldda, & 11500 Feb-15-2018 1,186,339 130
TOTAL AUSTRALIA 1,186,335 120
BERMUDA = 0.6%

Lelyure Thme — 0L6%

1I0000 VOO Facow Lad. 1444 1000 Feb-15-2028 1,201,672 1273978
TOTAL BERMUDA 1,300,672 127,975
BRAZIL = 4.8%

Banky — 0L.4%
BOGOO0  Tewy Uinibanco Hedding 5 A aymmn [glend MTH 5650 Mar- 152022 BLE.073 B30, 720
Savercign — 4.4%
7,720,000 HResilan Goverament Intermational Rond 4250 Jaa-07-2025 7,660,458 TR40625
1,750,000 Beazilisn (overnment International Bond 4625 Jao-13-2028 1,515,675 1,766,240
9,286,163 9,606,865
TOTAL BRAFIL 10, 104,236 10437585
CANADA - 19%
RBariron mestal Contrel — 8.1%
F20,000 GFL Envirceenentsl Ing, 1444 5378 Mar-0l-2023 F4539 A0
Mising — 0L3%
535000 First Qoantum Minerals Lid. 1444 7.000 Feb-15-3021 543,005 S44,008
Ol & Gaa —09%
TEQH00  WEQ Energy Corp, 1444 6375 Joow- 302023 T, 504 000

The accompanying notes are an intégral part of these financial statements.
3
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PRINCIPAL INTEREST MATURITY
AMOTUNT** RATE DATE COST YALUE
NOTES AND DEBENTURES (Con tinned)
CANADA (Comtfnmed)
(Ol & Gua (Continmed)
5 1240000 WEG Energy Clorp. 1444 T.000% Mardl-2024 5§ LITETE 5§ L1SE300
1,980, 620 1,859,300
Fharmaceaticaly — 15%

3330000 Hapsch Heakh Cea Ing, 1444 6.125 Ape 152025 3,145,210 3296, 700
Feetall — 0.1%

261,000 1011778 BC ULCMew Rod Finance Tnc, 1A 4150 Iy 15-20024 255,458 158,390
TOTAL CAMADA 6,256,282 6260818
CAYRAN [SLANDS = 0.7%

Medin—0.7%

1452000 UPCH Fisance TV Lid, 1ddA 5375 Jao- 15-2025 1,404, 569 1514360
TOTAL CAYMAN [SLANDS 1,454,565 1514380
COLOMBIA ~ 1.9%

il & Gaa — 05 %

20000 Foopetrol SA 4125 Jao-16-2025 15,129 123438

1500000 Ecopetml 5A 5373 Jun-26- 2026 1, 549,440 1,614,750

1,764, 569 1,436,188
Severcign — 1.0%

1200000 Coleenbia Gevemment Internasicaal Rond 4,000 Feb-265-2024 LB LGB
TOTAL COLOMEIA 4,000,327 4106410
COSTA RECA - 0.3%

Severciga — 0.3%

To0000  Costa Rice Government International Bond 1444 7000 g Q- 204 BTG50 GTRTEE
TOTAL COSTA RICA T, e 678,758
CROATTA - 13%

Sovercign & Agmey —03%

510000 Croatin Covernment International Bond 1444 6525 Tud= 142020 S5L107 555,175
TOTAL CROATIA S5L107 558173
DOMINICAN REFURLIC - 0.8%

Severciga — 0.3%

E20,000  Deminice Repuilic I ticnal Fond LA G850 Too- 272045 631,051 GER438
Severcign & Apency — 0.5%

1000000 Domisice Republic Inmational Bond 1444 5.500 Jan-37-20025 1,032,398 1,052,500
TOTAL DOMINICAN REFUBLIC 1,664,345 1,700,538
BECTADOR - 14%

Soverclgn — 1.4%

1090000 Fousdor Government International Fund 7550 Tun-20- 2024 3,008, 43 3,107,119
TOTAL BCUADOR 3,008,843 3,107,118
ECYPT - L7%

Soercign & Agmey — 0.7
J00,000  Egypt Government International Hond 1444 5 Feh-21-3023 304,225 WA
510,000 Egypt Government International Hond 1444 MTN 7600 Mfar-01- 3029 509,995 Sl 563

The accompanying notes are an intégral part of these financial statements.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund
(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Schedule of Investments (Continued)

March 31, 2019
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)
PRINCIPAL INTEREST MATURITY
AMOTUNT** RATE DATE COST VALUE
MOTES AND DERENTURES (Con tinned)
BCYPT {(Contimnod)
Sovercign & Apency (Comtinned )
] 630,000 Egypt Governmest International Hond MTH 6125% Im32002  § 9560 5 £41,050
1,513,785 1,513,088
TOTAL EGYPT 1,513,785 1513088
EL SALVADDR = B.1%
Servercign & Apency — 0.1%
400,000  El Salvador G T icmal Bond L44A 6375 Jao-18-2027 400,000 04,500
TOTAL EL SALYVADOR 4000, D0 104,800
FRAMCE = 1L8%
Telecommunicntiony — LE%

JA50000 Alice Prance SA/France 1A 7375 Way-01-2026 1987183 3,773,000
TOTAL FRANCE 3.997,123 3773000
GERMANY = 03%

Pharmacentienls — 13 %

EUR 550,000 Nidds BondCo GrubH 5000 Sep-30-200%5 GT04TT 590,530
TOTAL GERMANY T ATT 00,530
GHAMA = L§%

Sovercign — 06%
620,000 (Fhana Cevernmest [ssernational Fond 1444 10750 Oet-14-2030 T48202 E30875
500,000 Ghana Chovernment [nternational Bond 1444 B125 hiar-26- 2132 459,958 497,540
1,248,190 1328415
TOTAL GHANA 1,248,199 1328415
GUATEMALA —0L6%
Sovercign & Agency — 06%

1350000 Chstenals (hovernment Hond 1444 4375 Jun-05-2027 1,341,541 1,297,080
TOTAL GUATEMALA 1,341,541 LA97080
HONDURAS - 0.5 %

Severcign & Apency — 0.5%

1,000,000 Hondurss Govemnnsent [ntemational Hond 1444 6250 Jan-19-2027 1,016,247 1,057 500
TOTAL BONDURAS 1,016,247 1,857.500
TNDONESTA = L1%

Eleciric — L%

1,120,000 Perusteas Ltk Megam PT 5.500 e 22- 2021 1,170,558 1178574
Severcign — 14%

L0000  Tadonesia O I ional Bond 1950 Jao-11-2023 907,727 990185

2000000 Indonesis Governmens Intermational Fomd 1444

MTH 14850 Tid-18-20027 1,918,513 1,998,926

400,000 Indonesta Governnsent Internathonal Rend MTH 1750 Ape-25-2002 A1, B 405834
1. 730,084 3306545

TOTAL INDONESIA o, 5000, 642 4575519

The accompanying notes are an intégral part of these financial statements.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund
(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Schedule of Investments (Continued)

March 31, 2019
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)
FRINCIPAL INTEREST MATURITY
AMOTUNT** RATE DATE COST YALUE
NOTES AND DEBENTURES (Con tinned)
TRELAND - 0.59%
Packeging & Containery — 0.5%
] 1980000 Ardagh Paclmging Finance PLC / Ardagh Holdings
USA Ing, 1444 G000 Feb-13-302F § 192,152 § 1,980,000
TOTAL IRELAND 1,921,152 1,980,000
TTALY - 0L3%
Banks — L.3%
TUL000  UniCredit SpA. 14dA MTN = 7296 Apr-(12-2074 720,000 725,587
TOTAL ITALY T, TIEET
TVORY COAST = 0L3%
Severchgn — 0.3%
22A0  Tvory Coast Government Inenational Bond 4 5750 Diec-31-2032 26T 450 150,312
330,000 Tvory Coast Governmest Inemational Rond 1444 6125 Jun-15- 5033 316,153 06075
Se.e F56I87
TOTAL IVORY COAST 558,60 556,387
JERSEY CHANNEL ISLANDS = L%
Anto Parts & Fqpipment — 0.3%
0000  Adiet (Hlobal Foldings Lid. 1444 4575 Aug-15-2006 BL1E,535 BE6ATE
Diversified Financial Services — 3%
ELR 4AT0000 LEC PLCPIK 4125 Aug-15-2004 554,341 536,315
TOTAL JERSEY CHANNEL ISLANDS 1,370,580 1202590
LUXEMBOURG —4.2%
Chemicals — 03%
ELUR 00,000 Meonixchens HoldCo 2 SA 6875 Jun-15-3022 BELILT T14371
Diversified Financial Services — 3%
ELR TOO000  Garfanielux Holdoo 3 5A 7500 Agg-01-2002 B4 527 T25,167
Medin — 10%
4250000 Aldce SA T44A 7.750 Wy 15202 4,200,242 4,150,000
0l & Gaa — 0.5%
LOL0000  Litrepar International SA L&A 5250 Oict-06-10 26 904 BE1 L0613
Puclaging & Contninery — L%
1,410,000 ARD Secarities Fingnce SARL PIE 1444 B8.750 Je-31-2003 1AL A28 1352449
EUR 430000 Mercule Debeco SARL PIE 6.750 Tun-30-2024 04,051 $06.360
1,925 450 1,538,809
Telecommemications — 0L2%
40,000  Taielsas Tackson Hobdings SA 5500 Aug-01-2023 400,304 426,000
TOTAL LUXEMBOURG § 424,651 B ME60
MARSHALL ISLANDS — 84 %
Trangportation — (L4%
1,000,000 Mados Masitime Acquisition CorpuMavios
Acquisition Finance US Ine, 1444 Bazs Mo 152021 1013768 T0,000
TOTAL MARSHALL ISLANDS 1,013,768 T, 0
MEXICO - 14%
Banky — 1.0%
2470000 BAVA Rancomer A/ Teas 1444, =~ 5125 Tan-18-2033 2,140,104 2234385

The accompanying notes are an intégral part of these financial statements.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Schedule of Investments (Continued)

March 31, 2019

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

PRINCIPAL INTEREST MATURITY
AMOTUNT** RATE DATE COST YALUE
NOTES AND DEBENTURES (Continned)
MEXICOD
‘Build g Muterinly — 0.4%
5 T4 000  Cemex SAR de OV 5.T00% Je-11-2025 % Ta9 454§ 759,980
TOTAL MEXTOO 1505, 558 1904365
NETHERLANDS = 10.0%
Appard — 03%
EUR 590,000 CHR Fashion Pirance BY EAFL] OG-0z TLL99G E30426
Banky — @L3%
G000 MatWest Markets WV 7.750 Imy- 1520023 658,829 685,513
Commercial Services — 01.3%
ELR J0000 TPD 3 BV MTH 4.500 Tul- 152022 0,200 GREARD
Flecirie — 0.3%
£50,000 Minsjes Capital BY 1444 4628 Aug-10-2030 596,526 630,404
Medin— 0.2%
520,000 UPC Folding BY 1444 5.500 Jon-15-2028 426,143 S18,700
Mining — 0L5%
0000 Akca Nodertand Holding BV 1444 7000 Sep-30-2028 B8, 655 gmamn
BO0000  Alkoa Nedertmd Holding BV L44A 6,125 MMay-15-2028 BOT.212 23500
1,635,507 LESTATE
0l & Gaa — 51%
3,090,000 Lukoil International Finance BY L44A 4,750 Ww-02- 2026 3,067,747 1,137,895
1,740,000  Petrobms Global Rnance BY 7375 Jao- 172027 1,851,083 1918959
BS0000  Petrobms Global Fingnce BV 5599 Jun-T7-20028 B39 51,400
4350000 Potrobras (Global Finance BY 5750 Feb-01-2029 3BT 766 4308675
580,000  Petrohre (lobal Fsance BY 6500 Mar- 153048 580,000 §MB51

10206915 10,500,781

Fharmacentieals — L1%

1,660,000 Teva Prarmaceutical Finance Metherlands ITT BY 2.200 Tul-21-4021 1,554,600 1,582,600
3210000 Teve Prarmaceutical Fingece Metherlands [T BY 2500 Tud-21-H023 2,907, 809 2,863, TH2
4 46T 409 A 446,781

Betail — 0.6%

EUR 1,243,000 Maxeds DIY Holding BY 6.125 Jul-15- 2022 1,414,271 1,369,631
TOTAL NETHERLANDS H), 853,251 21,504 503
NIGERIA = 0.4%

Severcign — 0.2%

300,000 Migeria Government Internatiosal Bond 1444 1875 Feb-16-1032 NLM nyTs
Severcign & Agency — 0.31%

510,000 Migeria Government International Bond MTH 6.500 Mo 18- 1027 S3ILB10 525,031
TOTAL NIGERIA BAITY #3781
PARAGUAY —0.4%

Severcign & Agemcy — 0A4%

T50,000 Paragusy Government Intemational Rond 144A 5000 Ape-15-2006 TT4, 008 TRAATS

TOTAL PARAGUAY T 008 TEATE

The accompanying notes are an intégral part of these financial statements.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund
(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Schedule of Investments (Continued)

March 31, 2013
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)
PRINCIPAL INTEREST MATURITY
AMOTUNT** RATE DATE COST YALUE
NOTES AND DEBENTURES (Con tinned)
FRRD - 6%
Pipelines — L%
H 1,200,000 Trasapormdors de Gaa del Pera 54 1444 4350%  AprI0IME 5 LZ0068 § 1220080
TOTAL FERD 1,222,068 1,220,250

SOUTH AFRICA =0.1%
Severcign & Agency — 0.1%
300,000 Republic of South Africs Government [ntersational
Fep=d

44575 Apr-14-2006 300,953 107,089
TOTAL SOUTH AFRICA 300,533 297,005
SPATH —0L4%
Retall — 0.4%
ELR 590000  Tendamn Pirands SALT ~ 3250 Sep-15-2024 TS G042
ELR 250,000 Tendasm Rrands SAL 5000 Sep-15-2024 308,739 1HL100
1,011,418 942 742
TOTAL SPATN L001,418 paLIA
SRI LANKA = L§%
Severciga — 0L0%

550,000  Sri Lanle Government niemational Rond 6150 Oxct-04-3020 o 558,663

490,000  Sri Lanka Governmsent Intermational Rond 6150 Tul-27-2021 491,211 498, 562

280,000  Sri Lamlos Corvernmeent International Bond 1444 6850 Mar-14-3024 280,000 287,175

280,000  Sri Lanks Government International Rond 1444 7850 Mar- 143029 280,000 193,559

1,610,172 1,537,050
TOTAL SRT [ANKA 1.618,122 LENT S5
SWITTERLAND = 0.4%
Banks — L%

R90.000 URS Group Punding Switrerland AGH L4 A £ ~ 7000 - B0, 000 ST
TOTAL SWITZERLAND 0,000 AT
TURKEY = 15%

Banks — LE%
To0000 TC Zirmst Basicsi AS 184A MTH 5128 Way-03- 2022 ETTASS £33,623
0000  TC Zirmat Raskasi A5 1444 MTH 5115 Sep-19-2023 6,600 B, ER5
1,281,098 1138608
Severcign — 18%

7250000 Tudey Government Inieraaticea] Hond 4150 Apr- 142026 6,814,558 6,089,188
Telocommenications — 0.5%

1,130,000  Turk Telekoomumikmsyon AS L44A 6575 Feb-18-H25 1,123,256 1,086,213
TOTAL TURKEY 215872 BA LA DI
THRAINE — L%

Severclgn & Agency — 1.6%
2150000 UMerpine Chovernment [nternational Bond 7375 Sep-25-2032 1,150,000 1,522,100
1300000 Ueraine Government [sternationad Blond 1444 7.750 Sep01-2020 1,492,118 1484375
3,642,119 JALBATS
TOTAL UTKRAINE 16119 3416478
ONITED KINGDOM - £.3%
Banky — 13%
1,200,000 Rarclays Rank PLC 7625 Wre-21-2022 1,255,296 1,305,000

The accompanying notes are an intégral part of these financial statements.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund
(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Schedule of Investments (Continued)

March 31, 2013
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)
PRINCIPAL INTEREST MATURITY
AMOTUNT** RATE DATE COST VALUE
NOTES AND DEEENTURES (Con tinned)
UNITED KTSCDOM (Continned)
Banks {Comtimmed)
5 560,000 Haerclsys PLCO ~ Bo0c — 5 561,384 5 STLE00
620,000  HSBC Holdings PLCG ~ 6500 = 588,079 613,800
TIO000  Royel Bk of Scothsd Geoup PLC 6000 Diec-159-20123 Thd, 343 521938
570,000 Hoysl Bank of Scothisd Group FLC QL ~ 8625 — 5T1,655 £07,050
Omp 560,000  Santander UK Croup Heldings PLC O ~ 7975 — To0.410 753,104
4 551 167 [ R
Bererapn — 0L4%
GHE TE4000 Mammton®s Taveer PLC ~ S5 I 152035 B, T1E §L3340
Diiversificd Financial Services — 0L1%
Onp 310,000  Jerrold Finco PLC 6.125 Jaor-15-2024 A5 266 407,091
Enterislument = §.1%
GRE 190,000 Ve Internationad Rideo PLC 1475 Tud- 155020 287,213 247858
HealthesreProdacts — L3%
GRP 580,000 T Finasce PLC 6250 Aug-15-2002 o0, 304 47883
Halding Companics-IHversified — 0.1%
GRP F23000 Co-operstive Group Hobdings 2011 Lad, 4 6475 Tud-08-120 453, oS 441524
Lelyure Thme — 0L.6%
GRE 20,000 Pinsacks Rideo FLC 6375 Feb-15-2025 307,705 195,630
GRp 0000 Sage FLC 3373 Mgy 122024 1,152,502 1,002 582
1,460,507 1388212
Medin— 0.9%
GRp LIBG00D  Virgin Media Seoured Finance PLC 5500 Jan-15-2025 1,991,513 1,553,436
Feeal Eytate — 0L3%
GRP 500889  Tesco Property Fiamee 6 PLO s411 Tul-13- 2044 T3 Ted 205
TOTAL UNITED KINGDOM TG40, 5 11,239 341
TUNITED STATES = 33.8%
Adrlines — L0%
105 Continensl Alrkines 2000-1 Clam B Pass Theough
Trast 8388 Mo 011-2020 106 115
Apparel — QA%
BEO000  Haneshoueds Ing, 1444 4575 Wiy 152025 B74,248 BABATE
Anto Mannfsctarers — 0A4%
BO3000 TR Peindener & Co. Inc. 1444 7128 Ape- 152006 BL0.536 BOS2TL
Aniy Party & Fqoipment — 0L.5%
T230000  Americen Axle & Maufachring Inc, 6500 Ape-01-2027 1, L&, T35 1,190,393
Bamky — ILT%
BT0000  Chigroup Ine. £1 - 6300 — B LA
TU000  Ctigroup Inc. £ = 5950 - 8,315 T34 400
1,530,989 1619625
Bullding Materisls — 0.6%
140,000  Standard Industries Tne /M L&A 5000 Feb-15-2027 133,952 135482
LLSQO00  Stenderd Industries Tng /M1 L44A 4,750 Tan- 1520024 1065, RS 1,008,250
1,200,850 1,231,742

The accompanying notes are an intégral part of these financial statements.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund
(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Schedule of Investments (Continued)

March 31, 2019
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)
PFRINCIPAL INTEREST MATURITY
AMOTNT* RATE DATE COST YALUE
NOTES AND DEBENTURES (Continned)

UNTTED STATES {Costinsed)
Commerginl Services— 2.9%

] 500000 Cariage Services Ine. 1444 662 5% Jm01-3026  § 56315 § 511250
1,000,000 Hertr Corp/The 5875 Oct-15-2020 1,000,000 999,750
210,000 Prime Security Services Hormpwer LI CPrime
Fizance Inc. 14dA 5250 Apr-15-2024 210,000 210,000
E30,000 Prime Security Services Bormgwer LLCPrime
Fisance Tnc. 14dA 5750 Apr-15-2006 E80,000 GBO,143
F,000 Service Corp. InternaSicnal U5 7500 Apr-01-2027 34.TO EL R
BLO000  Servicehaster Co, LLC/The 144A 5125 o 152024 B35, 104 E13,008
210,000 United Rentds Maorth America Inc. 6.500 Tec-1 52026 216,79 121,025
440,000 Unied Hentals Marth Americs fnc. 5300 May- 152007 418,159 444400
1,500,000 Unied Rentsls Morth America Ine, 4575 T 152028 1,713,007 1L.770314
200,000  Weight Watchen International Tnc. 1444 8525 Dec-01-2025 285,691 160,275
6,200, 4% 6,279,345
Compaters — L5%
1,000,000 Weatern Digial Corp. 4.750 Feb-15-2026 996,213 1,040,950
Diiversified Financial Services — 0L1%
FLE5000  ASPAMC Merger SubIng, T4dA B.000 Muy-15-202% 309,045 141,749
380,000  Mmdent Corp. 6.750 Jun-15-H026 380,000 363,850
G 46 05,599
Food — L§%
180000  Pilgring's Pride Ciorp, 1444 5750 Mar- 153125 177,189 181,500
1,150,000 Pilgrim's Pride Corp. 1444 5875 Sep-30-2007 1,082,192 1,158,525
1,259,381 1,340,425
Forest Product & Paper — L%
1,150,000 Mercer International Inc. 1444 7375 Tan-15-2025 1,155,872 1,207,500
G —04%
70,000 MOL Energy Partnens LPMNGL Energy Finance
Camp. 7500 Tae-01- 2003 BO3,03% B06, 988
Healthears — 0L5%
SER000 BioScrip Inc, ~ 9.500 Aug-15-2000 01,706 1,011,560
Henltheuwre-Services — 30%
190000 Ak Medical Group Floldings Tac, 1444 6375 Mazy-15-2023 199,404 159,599
1,300,000 Centene Corp. 14dA 53715 Jun-01-2026 1,339,433 LA56875
E20,000  CHS Cormenymity Health Systeres Ine, 1444 8000 Mar- 152026 12,506 505200
Ta0000  DaVitanc. 5.000 May-01-2025 Ti4 515 709,105
1,000,000  FICA Inc, 5.000 Mar- 153024 1,017,206 1,060,193
ATO000  FHCA Ing, 5E75 Feb-15-H026 24,645 11600
A30000 HCA Inc, 5625 Bep-01-2028 415, Teh 454725
1,440,000 WMagellan Fleakh Inc, 4900 Sep-12-2004 1,363,331 1,370,160
420,000 RegionsiCare Hospital Partners Holdimgs Inc,
LddA Bas0 Mpy-01-20013 A4E2TL 446,775

6.397.080 GA84.232

Heme Belders — 0.5%

LIT0000 Lennar Corp, 4.750 B 289-2027 1, 170,000 1,170,547
Honsehold Prodoctsy Wares — 0L1%
JRO000  Spectrum Firends Inc, 5.750 Tul-15-2125 JET.BET IELES

The accompanying notes are an intégral part of these financial statements.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund
(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Schedule of Investments (Continued)

March 31, 2019
{Expressed in U.S. Dollars)
PRINCIPAL INTEREST MATURITY
AMOUNT** RATE DATE COST VALUE
NOTES AND DEBENTURES (Continned)
UNITRD STATES (Costinsed)
Tntornet — 11%
$ 1,080,000 Cogest Commmmications Group Ine. 14A 5375% Mar0l-ME2 05 L0SLEM § 1104300
FTOO00  Match Group Inc. 1444 5.000 Drec-15-2027 365,006 ITLTTS
0000 Wetdin Inc, 1444 575 Fow- 152028 276,927 95,750
440,000  Toriter Enc. 1.000 Sep-15-2001 413,253 Ald0n
20,000 Twitter Enc. 1444 0250 Tumel 52024 199,652 20,584
1.117.512 1300432
Lodgiag— 03%
214000 Filien Workdwide Finance LLC/Hilicn Worldwide
Fisance Coep, 4629 Apr-01-2025 213,200 216,140
30,000  Hilton Woridwide Finance LLCTiilton Worldwide
Fisance Corp, 4575 Ape-01-2007 331,084 33,713
54,374 549,853
Medin— 0%
160,000  Ameikan Media LLC 1444 10,500 Doc-31-2026 154,118 1565909
SE5000 OO0 Haldings LLCACCO Holdings Capital Corp,
[rrey 5125 My 01-2037 551,964 SHB.656

1235000 CCO Holdings LLCACCO Holdings Capital Corp,

T4dA 5000 Feb-01-2028 1,165,764 1,217,895

1,530,000 CSC Holdings LLC 1444 6625 Oct-15-2025 1,581,236 1521500
00000 CSC Holdings LLC 1444 5375 Feb-01-3028 28,359 00,750
E30000 CSC Heldings LLC 1444 6500 Feb-l-2029 553,886 SRS.T50

1,750,000 DISH DBS Corp. 5875 Hov-15-2024 1,663,200 1470,000

4200000 DISH DRS Corp. 7.750 Tud-0L-2026 435,604 1,554,000
450,000 DISH Neteork Corp. 1375 Mar-15- 3024 430,317 404,187
60,000 DISH Network Corp. 1375 Aug-15-2006 019,989 15,520

11675458 10815557
Miming — 1.9%

2,070,000 Feeeport-hchoRan In. 1575 Mar-15-2023 2,007,602 2,040,213
475000  Feeport-WMchiokm Inc, 4550 W 142024 447,157 dGTETS
M0,000  Fereport-McMcham Ing, 5400 oy 142034 RS 365 55,400
SO0000  Peeepost-Mehollam Ine, 5450 Maz- 152043 833,284 THT.509

4,073,388 4150997
Mipcellancons Masnfacturing — 0L.1%
50,000 General Fleetric Co. £ ~ 5000 - 206,686 T26.500
Ol & G —23%

1340000 Ferry Petroleum Cp. LLC 4 6375 Sep-15-2022 — —

2150000 Chempeaics Energy Corp. 8000 Tun-15-2027 2095,304 217,750
150,000 Chsis Petroleum Inc. 144A 6250 Wiay-01-2026 152,918 IS

1,560,000 Bange Resgurces Corp, 4575 My 152025 1,436,552 1,446,500

1,050,000 Whiting Petroleum Corp, 6.625 Tane 1520026 1,009,424 1,029,000

4,057,598 4021038
Puckaping & Containers — 1.3%
TIO000  Greif Inc. 14dA £.500 hfar01-2027 773,340 THT 325

1,750,000 Pactv LLC 7950 Dec-152025 1,698,191 1,741,250

AT 1528575

The accompanying notes are an intégral part of these financial statements.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund
(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Schedule of Investments (Continued)

March 31, 2019
{Expressed in U.S. Dollars)
PRINCIPAL INTEREST MATURITY
AMOTUNT** RATE DATE COST VALUE
NOTES AND DEEENTURES (Con tinned)
UNTTED STATES (Coatinned)
Pipeliney — 1.2%
$ FI5000 Rloe Racer Midstresss LLCRloe Racer Fizasce
Caorp. 144 GE2EN Tl-13-H@28 § FRed § 131,300
B0000 Taga Resources Partners LP/Targa Resources
Pariners Finance Corp. 5000 Jan-15-2028 T6.062 TB.500
1,720,000 Tega Resources Pertners LP/Targa Resources
Pariners Finsnce Corp, 1444 5475 Apr- 152026 1,748,316 LE1B040
130000  Targa Resources Partaens LP/Targa Resources
Pariners Finance Corp. 1444 6.500 Tul-15-2027 130,326 140,238
160,000 Terga Resources Partners LFTargs Resources
Partnera Finance Corp. LA % k1 e 15-2029 160,158 173,500
2,430,533 LHIATE
REITS — L4%
1000000 CoreCivic I, 4750 Oct-15-2027 1,000,053 BE0.630
Retall — 20%
1,420,000 Beacon Roofing Supply Inc, 1444 4575 How-01-2025 1,359,816 1,341,900
590,000  Cerrols Reswrant Group [ne, 8000 wy-01-2022 600,504 603,570
1,370,000  Party City Floldings Inc. 144 6625 Aug-01-2036 1,352,109 1,363,150
1110000  Suburien Propne Partners LP/Suburban Enegy
Finance Corp. 5575 War-0il-2127 1,110,715 1,051,725

4,425, 444 4360345

Semicosductors — 0.3%

590,000 Armkor Techeology Inc, 144A G62s Sep-15-2027 557,489 595,550
Softeare — Q2%
30000 2 Cloud Services LLCAR Global Co-Obiliger fne.
1d4A 6000 Tul-15-2025 340,174 J4LTET
Sowrcign & Agemcy —35%
1350000 United Sttes Tressury MoteBond 1750 Mar-31-20122 10,28 LIETH
1,500,000 Unied States Treasury MotMond 1625 Aug-15-2002 1,456,449 1470352
1,150,000 United States Treagury Note/Bond 1§75 Aug-3 1-2002 1,127,236 L1634
TI0,000 Unied States Tressury Mo flond 1500 Mapr-31-H023 T4, 059 751559
1,250,000 United States Treasury Mote/Bond 1750 Aug-31-2003 1,263,764 LATET58
430,000 Unied States Treasury Mo /Bond 18 Feb-29-3024 AT 600 477,168

7,300, 126 TAMIT

Telecommenicationy — 1L§%

1,280,000  Spriny Capitsl Corp. 675 Horw 152028 1,261,205 1,230,400
340,000 Sprint Conmunications Inc, 11.500 How-15-2021 13,610 191,850
1ATOO00  Speint Corp, 1475 Sep-15-201 1,543,380 1539525
IBO000  Sprint Corp, 7125 Tun-15-2024 182,007 184,200
400,222 3446273
Tramgportation — 1L3%
TI0000  Meovia Logwties Services LLOSPL Logiatics
Finance Corp, 1444 BETS Aug-01-2020 70,682 ER4,000
Trucking & Lesaing — it
RO000 DAE Fusding LLC 1444 5750 M- 152033 24,256 B42.550
TOTAL UNITED STATES TLI1T, 361 TLETI 25

The accompanying notes are an intégral part of these financial statements.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund
(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Schedule of Investments (Continued)

March 31, 2019
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)
PFRINCIPAL INTEREST MATURITY
AMOTNT* RATE DATE COST YALUE

NOTES AND DEBENTURES (Con tinned)
VENEITURLA - 0L2%

Soverclgn — 0.1%
5 0000 Veneroels Covernment Enernational Rond + T.750% Oet-13-2019  § 150 § WTETS
1000000 Vi ha (e k ticnal Hond 1+ B.a50 Oct-13-2024 478,500 302,500
56,000 510,175
TOTAL VENEZTELA &5, 0 510,175
TOTAL NOTES AND DERENTURES 105,757,165 201,102,426
TERM LOANS (FUNDED) = £.5% -
TRELAND = §.4%
Mom Captive Diveraified — L4%
B34336 Awclon TLR Bomower 1 (U5 LLC Term B-3 4488 Jao- 15-2025 B3 684 B2B526
TOTAL TRELANT HIL R L]
UNITED STATES - 81%
Cable - Satellite — 1.5%
336326  Charter Conemunications Operating LLC Term B 4,500 Apr-30-2025 1316927 1928080
Comgnmer Frodncts — 0.1%
217,591  TOMS Shoes L.LC Initial Term B.000 Oct-30-2020 21068 170,80
Food & Beversge — 0.5%
1,008,140 Amemerk Services Ing, U5 Term B-3 4349 Mar-11-2023 1,013,088 1,001 520
Lodging — 0.5 %
1,000,000  Hilton Worldwide Finance LLC Term B-2 LIl Oct-25-3023 o710 97950
Miedia Entertainment — 03%
G0 Lemar Medin Corp, Term B 4,250 Mar-14-H125 E15450 E13.027
Pugloping — QL4%
831955 HReynolds Group Holdings Inc. Incremental 1S,
Term 549 Feh-06-2023 &5, 707 ETLTIE
Retallers— L%
4,430,507 PetSmart Inc. Tanche B-2 5430 Mar-11-322 4,152,748 3904, T0S
TOTAL UNITED STATES 11,159,332 10,565,151
TOTAL TERM LOANS (FUNDELD) 12,023,016 11,758,777
NIUMBER OF
SHARES
COMMON STOCKS —0.4%
TUNITED STATES = 0.4%
Ol & Coan — 04 %
TLE27 Berry Pemoleum Co, LLC 671,420 Ba0424
Bo MWD Holdings LLC * B2, 750 1,341
1,474,170 B, TES
TOTAL UNITED STATES 1LAT4,1T0 01,765
TOTAL COMMON STOCKS 1,474,170 FOLTES
TOTAL INVESTMENTS - #9.4% § 11935038 5 11801968
OTHER ASSETS IN EXCESS OF LIABRITITIES - 0.6% 1345350
NET ASSETS - 100 0% § 115148558

The accompanying notes are an intégral part of these financial statements.
13
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Schedule of Investments (Continued)

March 31, 2019

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Security is exempt from registration under Rule 14l A of the Secaritien Act off 1933, These securities muy be repold in tansactions
exzmpt from registration, normally to galified instituticnal buyes,

Medium Term Notes,

Payment in Kind,

Real Fatase Iovestment Trast.

The secirity i a perpetual bomd and has no definite naxturity date.

Varishle Rate Security. Rates disclosed are thet which wens in effectat March 31, 20189,

Denctes & siep-up bond, The rate indicated in the curnent coupon s of March 31, 2019,

“The maturity date shown is the original mabwity of the security, Sacutity is curently in bealkruptcy sad will contine to be reported
ustil fimal recovery smount i determined through bankruptcy procesdings.

Moo Bcome producing secwEy.

g Expressed in local corrency, ms unless indicated.

"TTPER B

Farward Forelgn Currescy Contracts
CONTRACTS mlmn TUNREALIZED

SETTLEMENT DATE COUNTERPARTY TO DELIVER GAIN {LOSS)
Apr02-2019 Morgan Somley & Co, Inerationalple AUD 307286 USD m«g 5 B4l
Apr02- 2019 URS AG AT 68,138 USD 48,000 (402
Apr-02-2019 Cititumk, MLA, BRL 14335650 USD  Lg7R®2 (4,727
Apr02-2015 Ctitank, NLA. HRL 14335650 USD 3,700,000 1638
Miay-03-2010 Cieibank, MLA, BARL 14800 USD 158,558 ]
Apr-02-2019 Goldman Sachs rmaticnsl BRI BEMIT  USD 53456543 (76359)
Apr02-2019 Goldman Sacts bnzmaticnal BAL TLEMIIT  USD  S9ESTAET J24.535
Blmy-03-2019 G Sachs F BAL S958000 USD 1,500,000 (27,920)
May-14-2015 Cititunk, MLA, FUR 34982 USD 3544150 61078
Migy-14-2010 Coldman Sacks Enmmaticns] ELTR, #8721 USD 41,518 15,742
May-14-2019 TPlorgan Chase Bk, MLA, ELR 4114514 USD 4722112 BAGES
May-14-2019 UBS AG ELR 199585 USD 29,147 4,196
My 14-2019 Cleitank, MLA, GHP 53766 USD 6905309 (23284)
May-14-2019 Ctibank, MLA. gRp TH65  USD 1019387 12,575
Aprd2-2019 (oldman Sachs Enmaticnsl GRP s UsD 70,552 1462
Apr02-2019 Morgan Stmley & Co. hierstiomlpe  GEP 128420 USD  LE91B42 1B.428
Apr-02-m19 UBS AG GRP $88,137  USD TR0,000 13,627
Aprd2-2019 (oldman Sachs Inmaticns] MR 430,177,333.000 USD 30,194,210 (14872)
Apr-02-2019 (Goldman Sachs Inematicnsl DR 401507333000 USD 28265212 AT
Apr02-2019 (holdman Sachs Inmmaticnal Y 20470 USD 13320901 67,045
Apr02-2019 URS AG Y 676960 USD 400,000 (3,641)
Apr2-2019 TPhforgan Chase Rank, A WO 250,057,781 USD 13,533,264 120600
Aprg2-219 URS AG KIXN 12546997 USD GI7.528 10402
Aprd2-119 (Goldman Sachs Inmmations] RUR 682015 USD 2,550,000 (26,719)
Apc02-2019 Gholdman Sacha E ional RUB  LSR2AE706 USD 24610996 511,510
Apr-3G-2019 Goldman Sache Inemational RUR 15,895,845 USD 245000 4250
Apr02-3016 Goldman Sache Iniemational TRY 5707500 USD 1,000,000 (10,248
Apr2- 20109 Coldman Sachs E icnal TRY TEE000  USD 330,000 5m
Apr-02-2019 UBS AG THY 168,148,776 USD 29,396,538 (366,266)
Apr-30-2019 UBS AGH Y 1359050  USD 230,000 (1475)
Apr82-2019 URS AG ZAR 1585421 USD 1080264 2341
— I

CONTRACTS INEXCHANGE TUNREALIZED

SETTLEMENT DATE COUNTERPARTY TO RECEIVE FOR GAIN (LOSS)
Apr2-201% Goldmsn Sachs Internationsl AU 1,003,727 USD 20043 0§ (7,148
Aprd2-2019 FISRC Bank plc AU 1,X0479 USD  B75A4TI (3,303)
Apr02-2019 TPMorgan Chese Rk, ML A, AUD IBEE  USD 194982 {1,882)
Aprg2-2015 Morgan Semley & Co International ple~ AUD W00 USD 275,858 (2.754)
Apr-30-2019 Morgan Seanley & Co Entenatioral ple AUD 3072816 USD 2263590 (B.447)
Aprg2-2019 UBS AG AUD TR USD 254527 (2,505)

The accompanying notes are an intégral part of these financial statements.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Schedule of Investments (Continued)

March 31, 2019

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Forward Forelgn Corrency Coniracty (Contlnped)

CONTRACTS INEXCHANGE UNHEALIZED
RECEIVE FOR

SETTLEMENT DATE COUNTERFARTY T GAIN (LOSS)
Aprd2-2019 Citibede, LA, HRRL 14338650 USD  Imisn  § (131,554
Aprf2-2019 Citibasle, NLA, BREL 35650 USD  3E7TRER 42T
Ape 22015 Goldman Sacks International BRL MY USD £1.937,741 (2,404 508)
Aprdi-2019 Gholdrrzn Sauc b Inbernational REL MY USD 55456543 Te389
Wemy-03- 2019 Grobdman Sacha International HRE. 168313 USD 35743247 (328,147)
Apr-17-2019 Buare by Bk PLC ELR 120,736 USD 140,046 (4,284)
My 142019 Citibamie, LA, ELR 2400000 USD 27600 31,002)
Mimy- 142019 Citibamir, MLA, GHP 170685 USD 225,000 (2077
Ape02-2019 Gholdman Sac bt International GRF 218,558 USD 291,001 (6,156)
Ape2-3019 HSBC Rank ple GHP G17.540 USD 21,08 (1663 4)
Apr{2-2019 TPhdorgan Chase Famk, N A, GRP 01,859 USD 514,557 {10,941)
Apr{2-2019 Morgan Stanley & Co, Internatiomald e~ GEP EETH0Y  USD 914,533 {18,557
Apr30-2018 Mosgan Semley & Co Internstionad e GHP 1784530 USD 1,694,189 {18,254)
Aprfil-2019 Groldrman Sac b Internatiomal MR 415842333000 USD 29351047 (348,636
Apr02-3019 ol Saac bt Inbermtiomal MR 4158402335000 USD 29104211 Ba01
Apr30-2019 Gioldrzn Sacks Internationsl DR 401,507333,000 USD 25173976 ®5TIT)
Apr30-2019 Gholdman Sac by International MR 864500000 USD 200,000 199
Apr02-2019 Crobdrean Sacbe Tnfermagional WY LEEASLI00 USD 14515080 (TA648)
Apr2g-2019 Croldmapn S ke Infermptiomal Y LOIBAS0ZRS  USD  1RXT102 ($8,137)
Aprd2-2019 TPMiegen Chase Hamk, NLA, IFY 455 653,79 USD 4 2VREH0) (FL36T)
Aprdi2-2019 TPhdcrgan Chase Fank, ML A, MXN  ISBOSTTRL USD 133071m 1515
himy-03-2019 TPhorgan Chase Fank, HLA, WMXN  ISBOSTTEL USD 1347051 {2¥7,118)
Apr{2-2019 URS AG MXN 12,546997  USD E5140 (4,567)
Moy 03- 2019 URS AG LN WEEETM  USD 054255 (134723
Apr{2-2019 Choldman 5acbe Infernasional RLE 468,700 USD 450,000 (149
Apr{2-2019 CGolkdman Sachs International RUB 172202331 USD 26060545 155,100
Apr30-2018 Choldman Sachs International RUB  LSEXAETO6  USD 24515678 (548,171)
Apr2-2019 Grokdrean Sa b Intermpticmal THY 16280955  USD 30,163,024 {1,344,556)
AprJ0-2019 Gholdman 5 by Inbernaticmal TRY RPN  USD 1,000,000 (31,996)
Apra2-2018 URSAD THY 18300821 USD 3400675 (147,207
Apr-30-2019 UBSAG TRY 168,148,276 USD 28787628 47
Apr02-2018 Chokdman Sachs International ZAR SEEx USD 42003 {1,534)
Apr2-2019 TPiiorgen Chase Bamk, N A, TAR 1407BITH  USD LML (35,336)
Apr{2-2019 URSAG ZAR M52 USD £3,619 (1284)
Apr-30-2018 UBSAG ZAR 1556421 USD 1076628 (247T)
L
Total Net Unrealized (Loss) on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts i {45550
Carrency Logend
AUD - Australias Dollar MEXN - Mexics Peso
HRL - Hemrlian Resl RUR - Russisn Ruoble
EUR - Fuwo TEY - TikihLiaa
GHP -  [Hritish Pound USD - LIS Dollsr
DK - Isdosesian Rupish AR - South Afticen Rand
TFY - Ispenese Yen

The accompanying notes are an intégral part of these financial statements.
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2018 31
2018 31
312,396,322 305,048,558 33,140,475
3,331,954 361,983
358,990 360,447 39,159
4,089,365 444,269
2,700,576 293,391
1,501,434 163,116
3,281 356
14,526 1,578
317,050,141 34,444,327
6,908,929 750,586
3,139,188 341,041
384,875 41,813
557,171 60,531
639,536 69,479
353,210 38,373
11,982,909 1,301,823
305,067,232 33,142,504
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77,924,634 20,841,900 3.739 406
30,751,926 443,682 69.311 7,530
4,711,176 444,959 10.588 1,150
46,268,406 5,907,005 7.833 851
35,293,911 7,166,328 4.925 535
38,922,643 8,099,447 4.806 522
49,650,967 13,719,894 3.619 393
1,257,423 287,568 4.373 475
17,352,067 3,076,411 5.640 613
2,934,079 478,980 6.126 666
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2018

31

51,184 21,843,147 2,373,039
64,981 218,828 23,773
22,061,975 2,396,813
2,772,415 301,195
2,425,928 263,553
211,820 23,012
173,276 18,825
151,049 16,410
142,616 15,494
69,551 7,556
34,655 3,765
40,225 4,370
6,021,535 654,180
16,040,440 1,742,633
239,804 26,052
9,532,250 1,035,584
21,815 2,370
(122,311) (13,288)
9,671,558 1,050,718
(6,036,322) (655, 786)
(6,357,895) (690,722)
(1,529) (166)
(12,395,746) (1,346,674)
(2,724,188) (295,956)
13,316,252 1,446,678
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2018 31

16,040,440 1,742,633
9,671,558 1,050,718

(12,395,746) (1,346,674)

13,316,252 1,446,678

(7,867,451) (854,720)

(4,428,869) (481,152)

(634,343) (68,915)

(5.204,684) (565, 437)

(4,176,784) (453,766)

(4,961,269) (538,992)

(4,252,557) (461,998)

(77,945) (8,468)

(1,875,023) (203,702)

(385, 688) (41,901)

(33,864,613) (3,679,052)

10 (20,959,919) (2,277,086)
(41,508, 280) (4,509,460)

346,575,512 37,651,964

305,067,232 33,142,504
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2018 31

2013
2010 10

2018 31
10

2018 31 98
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946

3,331,954
250,000
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30
30 2018 31

2018 31

2018 31

3.5

2018 31
Tokyo Stock Exchange
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2018 31

2018 31

15
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2018

31

275,796,745 1,320,897 277,117,642

23,482,197 23,482,197

3,335,670 3,335,670

653,761 653,761

459,288 459,288
2,700,576 2,700,576

459,288 305,315,188 1,974,658 307,749,134
6,908,929 6,908,929
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2018 31
59,841 0.3
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0.70
0.01 15,000
30
0.02 15 0.0125 45 0.0050
45,000
10,000
8,400
0.80
0.05
10
2018 31
2018 31
2,467,571 9,822,590 52,848 3,744,812 474,032 5,030,820 665,002 5,504,605

(3.696,913) (14,843,007) (442,495)  (31,202,803) (372,133)  (3,977,862)  (3,361,051) (27,743,385)
(1,229,342)  (5,020,507) (389,647)  (27,457,991) (101,899) 1,052,958  (2,696,049) (22,238,780)

2,833,587 15,309,525 2,361,878 11,585,927 13,648,610 55,000,548 141,683 594,019
(1,787,223)  (9,637,562)  (6,951,855) (34,009,715)  (2,118,426)  (8,331,959) (21,685) (86,091)
1,046,364 5,671,963  (4,589,977) (22,423,788) 11,530,184 46,668,589 119,998 507,928
2,572,857 14,714,087 243,445 1,608,516 25,461,513 122,915,449
(2,023,423) (11,631,615) (367,919)  (2,411,279) (21,143,123) (143,875,368)

549,434 3,082,472 (124,474) (802,763) 4,318,390  (20,959,919)
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2018 31
3.958 72.349 10.236 8.355 5.430
0.184 3.305 0.487 0.383 0.246
(0.043) 0.175 0.822 (0.185) (0.151)
0.141 3.480 1.309 0.198 0.095
(0.360) (6.518) (0.957) (0.720) (0.600)
3.739 69.311 10.588 7.833 4.925
3.56 4.81 12.79 2.37 1.75
1.74 1.73 1.73 1.73 1.74
4.63 4.64 4.59 4.63 4.63
2018 31
4.959 3.909 3.883 5.601 6.647
0.229 0.177 0.188 0.265 0.305
0.098 0.013 0.662 0.374 (0.081)
0.327 0.190 0.850 0.639 0.224
(0.480) (0.480) (0.360) (0.600) (0.745)
4.806 3.619 4.373 5.640 6.126
6.59 4.86 21.89 11.41 3.37
1.74 1.75 1.73 1.74 1.74
4.66 4.56 4.62 4.63 4.63
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(¢

2,700,576
a
6,908,929
é
2018 31
9,532,250 9,532,250
(122,311) (122,311)
9,532,250 (122,311) 9,409,939
(6,357,895)
2018 31
a (284,540,423)
e 554,618,337
d
Q@
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2018 31
2,700,576 (6,908,929)
2,700,576 (6,908,929)
(6]
Barclays Bank PLC® 28,246 (2,881) 25,365
Citibank, N.A. @ 67,191 (7,419) 59,772
Goldman Sachs International® 1,465,391 (1,465,391)
HSBC Bank plc® 52,127 (52,127)
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. @ 1,012,066 (1,012,066)
Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc® 69,359 (69,359)
UBS AG™® 6,196 (6,196)
2,700,576 (2,615,439) 85,137
(¢
2
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@

Barclays Bank PLC® 2,881 (2,881)

Citibank, N.A.® 7,419 (7,419)

Goldman Sachs International® 4,910,767 (1,465,391) 3,445,376

HSBC Bank plc® 53,862 (52,127) 1,735

JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.® 1,699,159 (1,012,066) 687,093

Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc® 217,194 (69,359) 147,835

UBS AG® 17,647 (6,196) 11,451
6,908,929 (2,615,439) 4,293,490

@

2

14
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2013
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22,500,000
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Assets and Liabilities

March 31, 2018

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Assets
Investments in securities, at value (cost $312.396,322) £105,0458 558
Cash equivalents 3,331,954
Foreign currency, al value (cost $358,990) 360,447
Interest receivable 4,089,365
Unrealized gain on forwerd foreign currency contracts 2,700,576
Receivable for imvestments scld 1,501,434
Dividend receivable 3,281
Other assets 14,526
Total assels 317,050,141
Liabilities
Unrealized loss on forward foreign currency contracts 6,908,929
Payable for investments purchased 3,139,188
Redemptions payable 284,875
Accrued management fecs 557171
Acerued distributor fees 639,336
Accrued expenses 353,210
Total liabilities 11,982,909
Met assets attriburable 1o redeemable unithelders $305,067.232
BRL Class RUB Class
S77.924,634/20,84 1,900 units % 3.73% B35, 922 643/8,009 447 units  § 4. 806
JPY Class TRY Class
830,751,526/443 682 units b 69,311 £49.650,967/13,719,804 umts § in19
GEP Class FAR Class
$4.711,176/444 959 units & 10588 £1,257,423/287 568 units £ 4.373
LIS Class MM Class
§46,268,406/3 507,005 units £ 7.833 $17,352,067/3.076,41 1 units § 5.640
IDR Class ALID Class
£35,293,911/7,166,328 units $ 4,925 £2,934,079/478 980 units § 6126

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Operations

Year Ended March 31, 2018

{Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Iovestment Income

Interest (net of foreign tax withholdings $51,184) % 21,843,147
Dividends {net of foreign tax withholdings $64,981) 218,828
Total investment mcome 22,061,975
Expenses
Distributor fees 27712415
Management foes 2425928
Custody 211,820
Agent company fees 173,275
Administative, accoumting, and transfer agent 151,049
Professional 142,616
Loan servicing 69,551
Trustee fees 34,655
Other 40,235
Total expenses 6,021,535
Met investment income 16,040,440

Net realized and unrealized gain (loss) on investments, foreign currency
translation/transactions and derivative condracts
Met realized gain (loss)

Investments 2309804
Forward foreign currency contracts 4532250
Foreign currency transactions 21,815
Futures contracts (122300)
Net reelized pain 9.671,558
Met change in unrealized gain (loss)
Investments 16,036,322}
Forward foreign currency confracts (6,337,855}
Forzign currency translation (1,529}
et change in unrealized gain (loss) (12,395 746)
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss) on investments, foreign currency
translation‘transactions and derivative contracts (2,724,188)
Net increase in net assets resulting from operations £ 13,316,252

———— — ]

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these [nancial stalements,
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund
{A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Statement of Changes in Net Assats
Year Ended March 31, 2018
{Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

From operations
Net investment income £ 16,040,440
Net realized gain 9,671,538
Net change in unrealized gain (loss) {12,395,746)
Nel increase in net assets resulling from aperations 13,316,252
From distributions to unitholders
BRL Class {7,867 451}
JPY Class (4,428 864)
GBP Clasgs (634, 343]
IS0 Class (5,204,684}
TDER. Class (4,176,784)
RLIB Class (4,961,269
TRY Class (4.252,557)
ZAR Class {77,945)
MXN Class (1,875,023)
AUD Class (385,688)
Total distributions (33,864.613)
From participant transactions
Met {decrease) in net assets resulting from participant transactions (Note 10) (20,950.919)
Net (decrease) in net assets (41,508,230
Mel assets
Beginning of year 346,5’."5.5]3,_-
End of vear S305,067,232

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2018

{(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

| Organization and Investment Objective

WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund {the “Fund™) was formed on October 4,
20110 as a sub-trust of the Western Asset Offshore Funds (“Trust™), & unit trust established by a trust
deed under the Trusis Law (as amended) of the Cayman Islands and registered under the Mutual Funds
Law (2013 revision) of the Cayman Islands. The Trust is structured as an umbrella unit trost, which
allows 1t fo create multiple sub-trusts, with the aim of segregating assets and liabilitics of cach sub-trust.
As of March 31, 2018, there were 10 sub-trusts of Western Asset Offshore Funds, Western Asset
Managrement Company Limited “WAMCL™) is the Trust's Manager. Western Asset Management Compaty
LLC("WAM™), formerly known as Western Asset Management Company, Western Asset Management
Company Pte. Ltd. (“Western Asset Singapore™™), Western Asset Management Company Lid. {“Western
Aszet Tokyo™), Western Asset Management Company Distribuidora de Titulos e Valores Mobilidrios
Limitada {"“Western Asset Brazil”), and Western Asset Management Company Pry. Led. (“Western
Asset Melbourne™) are the sub-investment managers to the Fund (collectively the “Tovestment Manager™).
BNY Mellon Fund Management (Cayman) Limited 15 admimstrator and trustee to the Fund. The Bank
of New York Mellon, a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation, is
the custodian and sub-administrator to the Fund. The Bank of Mew York Mellon (Singapore Branch)
i% the registrar and transfer agent to the Fund, Mitsehishi UFY Morgan Stanley PR Sccuritics Co. Lod.
(Japan) is Agent Company and Distributor to the Fund,

The invesiment ohjective of the Fund iz to seek to provide unitholders with a long-term fotal return
consisting of income and capital gains through a diversified portfolio of investrnents mainly consisting
of glabal corporate bonds, including high vield bonds and bonds of emerging markets 1ssuers, The
Fund may also invest in securities or asset classes that are outside traditional high yicld or emerging
markets benchmarks, such as non-agency mortgage-backed securities, preferred securitics and subordinated
securities, The Fund offers multiple hedged elasses.

AtMarch 31, 2018, the Fund had one unaffiliated unitholder who held 98% of the Fund's unils oulstanding.
The Fund may be materially impacted by the actions of this unithalder.

4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting

In conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the Uniled States of America (“115.
GAAP™), the Fund uses the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, income and expenses are recorded
as earned and incurred, respectively.

The Fund is an investment company which follows accounfing and reporting guidance in the Financial
Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification 946, Financial Services - Investment

Companies,

Use of Estimates

The preparation of Minancial statemenis, in conformity with LS. GAAF requires management to male
estimates and assurnptions that affect the reported amounts ofassats and liabilities, diselosure of contingent
assets and liabilities 2t the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of increases and
decreases in net assers from aperations during the reporting petiod. Actual results could differ from
thoge estimates.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements {Continued)

March 31, 2018

{Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

2, Summary of Significant Acconnting Policies (Continued)

Cash Equivalents and Foreign Currency
Cash equivalents and foreign currency consist of cash and foreign currency on deposit with financial
institutions. Cash equivalents are carried at cost, plus accrued interest, which approximates fair value.

The: Fund considers all highly lguid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased
to be cash equivalents, Cash equivalents include 53,331,954 in money market accounts, Cash held in
banks pernodically exceeds the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation’s (“FDIC") insurance coverage
of 3250, (KK, and as a result, there is a concentration of credit risk related to amounis in excess of the
FDIC insurance coverage,

Security Transactions and Investment Income

Security mansactions are accounted for as of trade date. The cost of securities delivered and the net
gain or loss on securities sold are determined vsing the first-in, firgt-out method. Interest income carned
on securities is recorded netof applicable withholding taxes on the aceneal basis, Interest income includes
accretion of discounts and amortization of premiums which are recorded using the effective yield method.
Dividend income is recorded on the ex-dividend date net of applicable withholding taxes.

Functional and Presentation Currency

Items included in the Fund’s financial stalements are measured vsing the currency of the primary
economic environment in which it cperates. The majority of issuances, redempiions, and valuations
of the umis are effected and denominated in the IS

Foreign Curreney Translaton/ Transactions

Investment securities and other assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
inte USD ameunts based upon prevailing exchange rates on the date of valuation. Purchases and sales
of investment securities, income and expense itemns, and issuancs and redemptions of units denominated
in foreign currencies are translated into USD amounts hased upon prevailing exchange rates on the
respective dates of such transactions

The Fund does not iselate that portion of the results of operations resulting from fluctuations in foreign
exchange rates on investments from the fTucluations arising from changes in market prices of securities
hetd. Such fluctuations are included within the net realized and unrealized gain or loss on investments
on the Statement of Operations.

Met realized foreign exchange gains or losses arise from sales of foreign currencies, incliding exchange
gains and losses on the settlement of forward foreign currency contracts, currency gains or losses
realized between the trade and settlement dates on securities fransactions, and the difference between
the amounts of dividends, interest, and foreign withholding taxes recorded on the Fund's books and
the USD equivalent of the amounts aciually received or paid, Wet unrealized foreign exchange gains
of losses arise [rom changes in the fair values of assets and liabilities, other than investments in securities
and derivative contracts, on the date of valuation, resulting from changes in exchange rates,

Certain foreign security and currency transactions may invelve considerations and risks not typically
associated with those of USD denominated transactions a5 a result of, among other factors, the possibility
of lower levels of governmental supervision and regulzation of foreign securities markets and the possibility
of political or economic imstability.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2018

{Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

2, Summary of Significant Acconnting Policies (Continued)

Income Taxes

According to the current laws of the Cayman Tslands, there is no income, estate, corporation, capital
gains or other taxes payable by the Fond, As a result, no provision for income taxes has been made
in the financial statements.

The Fund intends to conduct its affairs so that it will not be deemed to be engaged in trade or business
in the LLS. and, therefore, none of its income will be treated as “effectively connected™ with a ULS,
trade or business carried on by the Fund, Effectively connected income is subject 1o US. federal income
tax at the graduated rates applicable to LS, domestic corporations. Certain categories of income that
are not “effectively connected™ but are derived from ULS. seurces, including dividends and interes
income, are subject to a LLS. tax of thirty pereent. However, under the portfolio interest exemption,
the thirty percent tax does not apply to portfolio interest earned, For the vear ended March 31, 2018,
interest earned by the Fund qualifies under the portfolio interest exemption.

The Fund 15 subject to the suthoritative guidance with respect 1o accounting for and disclosure of
uncertainty in tax positions, Which requires the Fund to determine whether a tax position is more likely
than not o be susiained upon examination. Management has analvzed the Fund's tax positions for
all open tax years and has concluded that as of March 31, 2018, there are no unceriain tax positions
that would require financial statement recogniton or disclesure, The Fund's pelicy 15 to recognize
inferest and penalties, if any, related to uncertain tax posilions as 2 component of income tax expense.
For the year ended March 31, 2018, the Fund Jid not recognize any interest or penalties for uncertain
lax positions.

Issuances and Redemptions of Units of Participation

Fund units are issued in multiple classes (sach a “Class™ and, collectively, the “Classes™). The Fund
currently offers a Brazilian Real (“BRL") Class, Japanese Yen (*JPY™") Class, British Pound (“GBF™)
Clazs, United States Dollar (“TISD) Class, Indonesian Rupiah (*1DR"™) Class, Russian Ruble (“RUB™)
Class, Turkish Lira (“TRY ™) Class, Smith African Rand (“ZAR™ Class, Mexican Peso (“WXN™) Class, and
Australian Dollar (AT Class (each, except the USD Class, isa *Hedged Class™). The BRL Class, USD
Class, IDR Class, RUB Class, TRY Class, ZAR Class and the MXN Class are denominated in USD,
the GBP Class in GEE the IPY Class in JPY and the AUD Class in AUD {each a “Denomination
Currency™}, in which issuances, redemptions, and valuation of units are effected and in which units
are denominated.

The net assct value of each Class is determined in the Denomination Currency on the relevant Dealing
Diay. A Dealing Day is every husiness day on which federal, state or local banks are open for business
in New York, London, Japan and the Cayman Islands and the New York Stock Exchange, London
Stock Exchange and Tokyoe Stock Exchange ave open for rading. Issuances and redemptions of Fand
units are made on such days, based upon the closing net asset value. A sales charge of up 10 3.5% of
the met asset value may be charged and retained, by the Distributor, For the vear ended March 31,
2018, the Disinbutor has warved the sales charge,
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

{A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Motes to Financial Statements {Continued)

March 31, 2018

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Bssuances and Redemptions of Units of Participation (Continued)

The Trustee, inconsultation with the Imvestment Manager, may temparanby suspend the determination
of the net asset value of the Fund, and the issuance and redemption of the Fund's units, and may postpone
the date of payment of redemption proceeds if, among other reasons, during any period when it is not
reasonably practicable for the Investment Manager to fairly determine the value of the Fund's net
asgets, There were no such occurrences during the vear ended March 31, 2018,

Allocation of Income, Expenses, Gains and Losses

[ncome, expenses, and realized and unrealized gams and losses are allocated on a daily basis to cach
Class ofunils based upon the relative portion of net assets of each Class, The Fund will apply adjustments
to the valuation of its Classes in order to specifically credit or charge to the relevant Class of units
any applicable grins, losses and expenses penerated by hedging transactions with respect to such Classes (e g.,
all costs associated with hedging transactions relating to the JPY Class of units are borne by the JPY
Class ofunits). All Classes of units will bear ratably any gains, losses and expenses generated by hedging
non-USD denominated investments to the functional currency.

Redemptions Payahle

Redemptions are recognized as liabilitics when the amount requested in the redemption notice becomes
fixed. This will generally eccur either at the time of the receipt of the notice or on the last day of a
fiseal periad, depending on the nature of the redemption request. Az a result, redemptions paid after
the end of the year, but based upon year end net asset values, are reflected ag redemptions payable on
the Statement of Assets and Liabilities at March 31, 2018, Redemption notices received for which the
dollar and unit amounts are not fixed remain in capital until the net asset value used 1o determing the
redemption and unit amounts are determined,

Distributions to Unitholders

Distributions from net investment income, net realized or unrealized gaing and/or capital are declared
by the Fund on the fifleenth (15%) day of each month. Distributions are paid in cash or in-kind, as
may be determined by the Investment Manager, untess the unitholders elect to reinvest in additional
units, Cash distributions with respect to a Class are paid in the Class Diepomination Currency,

3. Valuation

The Fund has adopted procedures for determining the fair vahie of its investments each Dealing Day.
Under these procedures, the Fund has delegated its anthority 1o a pricing committee governed by the
Investment Manager to determine the value of the Fund's investments each Dealing Day. The notes
below describe in greater detail the methodologies used to value the Fund's investments,

The Fund uses both the mcome and market approaches to establish the fair value of its vestments,
Use of particular techniques and inputs may vary over time based on availability and relevance as
markel and economic conditions evolve,
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements {Continued)

March 31, 2018

{Expressed in U.5. Dollars)

3 Valoation (Continued)

The Invesument Manager considers pricing technigues it deems relevent and appropriate when making
Fenr vahie detenminations, When determining the reliability of third party pricing information for investments
cwned by the Fund, the Investment Manager, among other things, conducts due diligence reviews of
pricing vendors, monitors the daily change in prices, and reviews transactions ameong market participants.
In addition, prices which change from the prior day by greater than a pre-established threshold will
be verified against additional pricing sources, when available, or by evaluation of verifiable changes
to the model inputs that impacted the resulting fair value,

Exchange traded options, warrants, and publicly traded U5, and non-1. 8. equity securities are generally
valued at the official closing price of, or the last reported sale price on, the exchange or markel on
which such securities are traded, as of the close of business on the day the securities are being valued
or, lacking any sales, at the last available bid price. Futures contracts arc valued at the last settlement
price at the end of each day on the board of trade or exchange upon which they are traded.

Fixed-income securities, including short-term securities purchased with mere than 60 days left 1o matuarity,
are generally valued at prices abtained from one or more pricing vendors, Vendors value such securnities
based on one or more inputs described in the following table. The table provides examples of inputs
that are commonky relevant for valuing particular classes of fixed-income securitics, inwhich the Fund
is authorized to invest. However, these classifications are not exclusive, and any of the inputs mav be
used to value any other class of fixed-income security,

Fined-income class and Derivatives Examples of inputs ]
All All benchmark yiclds, transactions, bids, offers,
quotations  from dealers and  electrome  trading
systemns, spreads, and other relationships observed
the markcts among comparakle secumities; and
proprictary pricing madels such as vield measures
caleulated using factors such as cash flows, financial
or collateral performunce, and ether reference data
(eollectively referred to as “standard inputs™).

Corporate bonds and notes Standard inputs snd new issue data,

Bonds ard notes of government and government | Standard inputs.

|agencies

Mortgage-backed and astel-backed obligatons Standard mpuls, prepayment informstion, defpult

|rates, delinquency and loss assumptions, collateral
| charactenistics, credit enhancements and specific
| deal informution.
Structured products (incloding Interest Cnly and | Standard ioputs, ples npew issue data, monthly
Prisicipal Only securities amd Collateralized Maortgage | payment information and collateral performance,
and Cellateralized Debt l‘_'.'lhligﬂiuﬂs]

Loans, lozn participations and loan assipaments Transacticns, bids, offers, snd quotations from
dealers.
Student loans Eﬁhhda'td inputs including the weighted average life
tnf'.hc loans.
25
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

{A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Motes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2018

(Expressed in U.S, Dollars)

3. Valuation (Continued)
Fixed-income class and Derivatives Exnmples of inputs
Swaps and other derivatives Standlard mmpuis and intercst rate curves, interest rate

volatilines, credit spreads and recovery rates on the
underlying reference securitics, index spreads,
foreipn exchange spot and forwanl curves, and
foreign exchange volanlines.

‘Where the livestment Manager deens it appropriate to da so (such as when vendor prices are unavailable
or not deemed to be representative), fixed income securities will be valued in good faith at the mean
guoted bid and asked prices that are reasonably and timely svailable or al prices for securities of comparable
malurity, quality and type.

Shert-term securities purchased within 60 days w manenty are valeed at amortized cost, which approximates
fair value.

Securities and investments for which representative market quotations are not readily available or are
considered unreligble are fair valued in good faith by the Investment Manager. Various inputs may be
reviewed in order to make a good faith determination of a security”s Fair value, These inputs include,
but are not limited to, the type and cost of the security; contractual or legal restrictions on resale of
the security; relevant financial or business developments of the issuer; actively traded similar or related
securities; conversion or exchange rights on the security; related corporate actions; significant events
occurring after the close of trading in the security; and changes in overall marke! conditions. Fair
valuations and valuations of invesiments that are not actively trading invelve judgment and may differ
materially from valuations that would have been used had greater market activity occurred.

If third party evaluated vendor pricing is neither available nor deemed to be indicative of fair value,
the Investment Manager may elect to obtain indicative market quotations (“broker quotes') directly
from a breker-dealer. Indicative market quotations are typically received from established market participants.
The Investment Manager has requested transparency to view the underlying inputs which support these
market quotations, When transparency to the underlying inputs is received from the broker then the
security may be considered Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy if the inputs are ohservable. Ifthe inputs
are nod transparent or are found to be unobservable, then the securitics are categorized as Level 3 of
the fair value hietarciy.

If broker quotations are not received as ofthe valuation date, the most recent available broker quotation(s)
may be used. However, adjustments are made to the most recent broker quotationds) based on interpolated
changes in the yields of associated benchmark securities from the date upon which the broker quotation
was received to the valuation date. Typically, benchmark securitics arc comprised of certain treasury
securities with standard maturities. Specifically, the interpolated change in the yield is caleulated using
an interpolation factor which measures the duration of the security being priced versus the duration
of the benchmark securities with durations immediately greater than and less than the security being
priced, The interpolated yield change is then applied 1o the duration of the security to caleulate the
implicd change in price.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust}
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2018

A Valuation (Continued)

Over-the-counter financial derivative instrumenis, such as forward foreign currency contracts, oplions
conlracls, swaplions contracts, or swap apgreements, derive their value from underlving asset prices,
indices, reference rates, and other inputs or a combination of these factors, These conlracls ane normally
valwed on the basis of pricing service providers or broker dealer quotations. Depending on the product
and the terms of the transaction, the value of financial derivative instruments can be estimated by a
pricing service provider using a series of techniques, including simulation pricing models. The pricing
madels use inputs thal are observed from actively quoted markets such as issuer details, indices, spreads,
interest rates, vield curves, and exchange rates.

Centrally cleared swaps transacted on a multilaterz] or trade facility platform, such as a registered
exchange, are vahued at the daily settlement price determined by the respective exchange. For centrally
cleared credit default swaps, the clearing Fucility reguires its members to provide actionsble price levels
across complete term struciures. These levels along with external third party prices are used to produce
daily settlement prices, Centrally cleared interest rate swaps are valued using & pricing model that
references the underlying rates including the overnight index swap rate and London Interbank Offored
Rate ("LIBOR™) forward rate to produce the daily setflement price. These securilies are sategorized
as Level 2 of the fair value hiersrchy.

The various mputs that are used in determining the fair value of the Fund’s assets and lisbilities are
summarized into the broad levels lsted below:

# Level 1 - guoted prices im active markets for identical investments

& Level 2 — other significant observable inputs (including quoted prices for similar invesiments,
interest rates, prepayment speeds, credit nsk, ete. )

#® Level 3 - sigmficant unchservable inputs, including the Investment Manager®s own assumpiions
in determining the fair value of investments. Level 3 fair value techmiques inchede (i)
the use of propristary models that require the use of judpment and the application of
varieus assumptions including, but not limited to, prepayment assumptions and default
rate assumptions, and (1) the solicitation of valuations from third parties (typically,
broker-dealers), Third-party valuation providers often utilize proprietary models that
are subjective and also require the use of jud mment and the application of various assumptions
meluding, but not limited to, prepayment assumptions and default rate assumptions.

The valuation levels are not necessarily an indication of the risk or liquidity associated with investing
in those securitics.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2018

{Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

3. Yalnation (Continued)

The following is a summary of the levels within the valustion hierarchy used in valuing the Fund's
assets and labilities carmied at fair value:

Assets
Other
Significamnt Signilicant

Quoted Observable Unehservable

FPrices Inputs Inputs
Deseription {Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Motes and Debentures £ — $275,796745 & 1320897 % 277,117,642
Term Loans (Funded) — 23482197 = 23,482,197
Exchange Traded Fund — 3,335670 — 3,335,670
Preferred Stocks — — 653,761 653,761
Common Stocks 459 258 — -— 459288
Forward Foreign Currency

Contracts - 2,700,576 -- 2,700,576
Tatal 3 459288 § 305315188 & 19746858 5 307,749,034
Liabilitics
Other
Significant 5i cant

Quaoted Di'g:n“k l’mﬁmhu

Prices Inputs Inpurs
Descriplion (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 33 Total
Forward Foreign Curtency

Contracts s — § 6508929 § — § 6,908,929

It is the Fund's policy to recognize transfers in and transfers out at the fair value as of the beginning
of the vear.

4. Loans, Loan Participations and Loan Assighments

The Fund may acquire loans, by acling as 2 member of the original lending syndicate of the loans or
through an assignment from ancther lender, and may also purchase loan participations (ie., participation
interests in other lenders’ portions of [oans). The underlying portfolio may alse include loans, loan
participations and other types of loans, including bridge loans and debtor-in-possession facilities,

Investments in leans and loan participations may subject the Fund to liquidity qisk, Loans and loan
parficipations may be mnsferable among financial instiotions, but may not have the quidity of comentional
debt securities and are oflen subject to restrictions on tesale, such as the need for the consent of the
lead or agent bank of the lean or the borrower, thereby making (hem potentialky illiguid.

28

242/332



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notas to Financial Statements {(Continued)

March 31, 2018

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

4. Loans, Loan Participations and Loan Assipnments (Continued)

Certain of the loan parficipations or assigmments acquired by the Fund may invobve unfunded commitments
of the lenders or revolving eredif facilities under which a borrower may from time to lime borrow and
repay amounts up to the maximum amount of the facility. In such cases, the Fund would have an obligation
1 advance its pertion of such additional borrowings upon the terms specified in the loan documentation.
Such an chligation may have the effect of requiring the Fund o inerease its imvestment in & company
at a time when it might not be desirable to do so, including at a time when the company’s Mnancial
condition makes it unlikely that such amounts will be repaid.

At March 31, 2018, the Fund did not have any unfonded loan commitments.

LS Payment-In-Kind Sccurities

The Fund may invest in payment-in-kind securities (“PIK"). PIKs give the issuer the option at each
interest payment date of making interest payments in either cash or additional debi securities. Those
additional debt securities usually have the same terms, including matunity dates, inflerest rates, and
associated risks as the origing] bonds. The daily market quotations of the original bonds may include
the accrued interest and require a pro rata adjnstment from the unrealized gain or loss on investments
to interest receivable on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities,

For the year ended March 31, 2018, with respect to in-kind payments from PIK securities, the Fund
received 539,841, or 0.3% of total imvestment income. This amount 35 ineluded within interest income
on the Statement of Operations,

0. Morigage-Backed Securities

The Fund may invest in mortgage-backed securities (“MBSs"), which are a type of financial security
that are rypically secured by a mortgage or a pool of mortgages. A MBS must ariginate from a regulated
and autherized Minancial instiration and it can either be related to rezsidential or commereial real estate.
The structure of a MBS is sometimes known as a “pass-through”, where the interest and principal
payments made by a borroWer are passed through to the MBS investor.

7. Forward Foreign Currency Contracts

The Fund may enter into a forward foreign currency contract to hedge against foreign currency exchange
rate risk on its nen-TISD denominated scourities and units or to facilitate settlement ofa foereign currency
denomunated portfolio transaction. A forward foreign currency contract is an agresment hetween two
partigs to buy and sell a currency al a set price with delivery and senlement at a future date. The contract
is marked to market daily and the change in value is recorded by the Fund as an unrealized gain or
less, When a forward foreign currency contract is closed, through either delivery of the currencies or
offsel by entering into another forward forcign currency contract, the Fund recognizes a realized gain
or loss equal to the difference between the value of the contract at the time it was opened and the value
of the contract at the timse it 15 closed,

29

243/332



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
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March 31, 2018

(Expressed in U.S, Dollars)

1. Forward Forelgn Currency Contracts (Continued)

Forward foreizn currency contracls involve elemenis of market risk in excess of the amounts reflected
an the Statement of Assets and Lisbilities. The Fund bears the rigk of an unfaverable change in the
forcign exchange rate underlying the [orward foreign currency contract. Risks may also arise upon
entering inte these contracts from the potential inability of the counterparties to meel the terms of
their contracts.

8. Futures Cantracts

The Fund may use fitures contracts to manage exposure to the relevant markets, Buving fuhares increases
a fund's exposure to the underlying mstrument. Selling futares decreases a fund's exposure to the
uniderlying instrument, or allows the fund to hedge other fund investments. Futares contracts involve,
to varying degrees, credit and market fsks.

Futures contracts are valued based upon their quoted daily settlement prices, Upon entering into a
futures contract, the Fund is required to deposit with its futures broker, an amount of cash, 115, Government
and Agency Obligations, or select sovereign debt, in accordance with the initizl margin requirements
of the broker, board of trade, or exchange. Futures contracts are markad to market daily and an appropriate
payable or receivable for the change in value (Mvariation margin®™) is recorded by the Fund. Gains or
losses arc recognized but not considered realized until the contracts expire or are closed.

The Fund enters into futures contracts anly an exchanges or boards of trade where the exchange or
board of trade acts as the counterparty to the transaction. Thus, credit risk on such transactions is
limited to the failure of the exchange or board of trade. Losses in value may ariss from changes in
the value of the underlying instruments or 1T there is an lliguid secondary market for the contracts.
In addition, there iz the risk that there may not be an exaet correlation between a fitures contract and
the underlying instrument.

. 3 Charges and Fees

Investment Manager Fee
The Investment Manager's fec is accrued daily and payable quarterly in arrears at an annual rate of
0,70% of the average daily net assets of the Fund.

Trustee Fee
The Trustee fee is accrued daily and payable quanterly in arrears at an annual rate of 0.01% of the
average daily net assets of the Fund or a minimum of $15,000 per year,

Administrator Fee

The Administrator fee is acerued daily and payable quarterly in arrears at an annual rate of 0.02% on
the first $3 Billion or less, 0.0125% on the next $1.5 hillion and 0.0050% on the amount over $4.5
hillion of the average daily net assets of the Fund or a minimum of $45,000 per year,

Registrar and Transfer Agent Fee
The annual Registrar and Transfer Agent fee for the Fund iz $10,000. The annual maintenance fee for
each Class is 58,4010,
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9. Charges and Fees {Continped)

Distributor Fee
The Dhstributor fiee 15 acerved daily and payable quarterly in arrezes at an annual rate of 0_80% of the
average daily net assets of the Fund,

Agent Company Fee
The Agent Company fee is accrued daily and payable gquarterly in arrears at an annual rate of 0.05%
of the average daily net assets of the Fund,

10, Units of Participation
The following represents the Fund's unit activity for the year ended March 31, 2018:

Year Ended March 31, 2018
BEL IV GHEP 'S0
Uity A Unils _Amoust  Usits _Amoewsd  _ Units  _Amessl
Units isseed 2467571 § 9,832 990 LEad & 3744812 474032 § 5000820 BES,DO2 § 5 504605
Lipdls redeermed (36969113 (4R05 007 (S82 495 (3]1,202,80%) {372,133 (3,977 862 1'1_'.!&1_02} {27,741 38%5)
et increase (decreass) (12203420 §  (S000507)  (IRD.EST) S0IT A48T 0) 101,899 & 1051958 {2,606043) 523 238 T80}
R RUB THY FAR
Umits Amiast Umids Ansaiant Units Amount Units Amount
Llnzts ipaued LE3I 58T § 15300 528 1361 878 § 11 5BS82T 13 E4E,610 § 55,000,548 141,683 & sd ol
Unity redeemed (1, TBT 223y (6378627 [6.051835) (.000,TIE) (21184261 (RIT,55 (21,625 (ER031)
el Ingresse (Jocmasc) ]I'D'-'lﬁiﬁ-l- S_I .'EIS\T:'EIE !ém GBTTR22,427 788 1L 8300184 § 46,668 8% 119998 § 507928
XN AL Tl
Uity Amomni Units Ameunt 1'niits Amasnt
Llnets dasued 2572857 § LT Ed AT 243,345 § 108216 25461,518 § 122,%1 5,440
Unfzs pedesmed (2023433 (FLEILGIS) { 36T, S8 (2411275 {21, 145, 120 rlﬂ.ﬁ?!.ﬂ]
Met imcrense (docrease) 500434 § 3082472 {124.474) % {802, 763) 4318390 g {20 GE0,519)
il
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(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

1L Financial Highlights

Wear Ended March 31, 2018
Selected Per Uinit Data BRL JPY GRP USh IDR
Mt asset value, begirming of yoar ] 3038 & Ti49 & 10.236 & 8355 5 5430
Met invesirment 'ern:"_“ ) 0154 335 0.487 0,383 244
et realized and unrealized pain (Joce) (LT K] 0,175 {1,622 {0.185) {0151}
Total meoms from wvesiment aperations 0,141 3480 1305 0198 LS
Digtnbphors to unitholders (03600 (6. 518% {0,957} {10,720 {1,000}
© Met asset value, cad of vear 5 3,739 § 69.311 § 10.58E § 7.831 5 4925
i T e —— ——— | A L T et
Total renarn 44™ 356 481 12.7% 237 175
Ratiog to Average Nel Asseis
Expenses %5 1.74 1.73 1.73 1.73 1.74
et mvestment imcome % .63 4.64 459 463 463
Year Ended March 31, 2018
Selected Per Unit Dala RLUE TRY LAR ol Bty | ALUD
Met uaset value, bepinning of year i 4959 % 3,909 § 31881 5 5601 § 6,647
Met mvestment incoms"! 0,229 0177 0188 0.255 0.303
Wit realized and unrealized gain (o) 0,098 003 (.66 374 (0.021)
Total imeame from invastment apernons 0.327 0.150 0850 L6389 224
[hsmbutiens 1o unithodders R {0.430) {0,360) {10600 (0.745)
Met assct value, cod of year 5 48065  3aly § 4373 § 5640 8 G126
Tatal renirn % .59 4.56 2189 11.41 337
Ratios to Average Net Assels
custs % 174 175 1.73 1.74 1.74
Net investment ncome 466 4.56 462 4.63 463

M Wet investment incame per sit has been caleulaied based upon average units cutstanding for the year,
& Total return caleulntion i buved on the valus of o single unét of participation outstanding throughoul the year. 1t repressrts the
percetdage change in ihe et wisel value per wnit between the beginning and cod of the year, excluding distribulions to unitholders.

The abeve ratios are calculated for the participating unils as a whole, An individual unitholders total
retuen and ratios may vary from these ratios based on the timing of capital unit transactions.

1. Derivative Instruments

The Fund may fransact in a variety of derivative instruments including futures and forwards for trading
ptrposes with each instrument’s primary risk exposire being interest rate and foreign exchange risk.
With the exceplion of futures, the fair value of these derivative instruments is incloded as a separate
line jtem within the Statement of Assets and Liabalities by contract type.

32

246/332



EDINETOOOO

OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund
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12.

Derivative Instruments (Continued)

The following tables provide information about the fair values and the location of derivatives not accounted
for as hedging instroments which are included within the Statement of Assets and Liabilities at March
31, 2018 and are grouped by derivative fype:

Assel

Forcign
Exchange Risk

Forward Foreign Curreney Conlracts 2 2,700,576

Liability
Derivatives™

Foreign

Forward Foreign Currency Conlracts 5 6,508,929

M Generally, the logation for assct derivatives is receivables amrealized gaim and for liohility desivatives is pavabies and
unrealized (loss).

The following tables provide informarion about the effect of derivatives within the Fund’s Statement
of Operaticns for the year ended March 31, 2018, The first table provides additional detail about the
amounts and sources of gains or losses realized on derivatives during the year, The second table provides
additional information about the change in untealized gain (loss) resulting from the Fund's derivatives
during the year. The realized and unrealized gaing and losses from derivatives ane presented as separate
line itemns on the Statement of Operations.

Amount of Realized Gatn (Loss)
on Derivatives Hecognized
Foreign Imterest
Exchange Risk Rate Risk Total
Forward Foreign Currency
Contracts L) 9,532,250 § — % 9,532,250
Futures Contracts -— {122.311) {122,311)
Tolal 3 68532250 5 (122311 % 4,409,939
Change in
Unrealized
Gain {Loss)
on Derivatives
__ Becognired
Forclgn
Exchange Risk
Forward Foreign Currency Contracts 5 (6,357,895
i3
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12, Derivative Instraments {Continned)
During the year ended March 31, 2018, the volume of derivarives activity for the Fund was as follows:

Monthly

Average
_ Yelues
Farward Currency Contracts to Deliver!” 5 (284,540,423)
Forward Currency Contracts to Receive'® 554,618,337

n

This ameint, comvertsd to presentations] cusrency whens apphicable, comresponds to the representative average pavable
vilue at seetlement date based on the monthly activity of the Fund.
Thiz amount, converted 1o presentational currency where applicable, corresponds to the representative average receivable
valoe at settlenent date based on the moeibly activity of the Fund,

[Fil

13. Offsetting Assets and Liabilities

By using derivative instruments, the Fund is exposad to the eounterparty’s credit risk, the risk that
derivative counterpartics may not perform in accordance with the contractual provisions offset by the
value of any collateral received, The Fund®s exposure to credit risk associated with counterparty
non-performance is limited fo the unrealized gairs inherent in such transactions that are recognized
within the Statement of Assets and Liabilitics. The Fund minimizes counterparty credit rigk through
credit limits and approvals, credit monitoring procedures, execuling master nefting arrangements, and
manzging margin and collateral requirements, as appropriate. The Fund records counterparty credil
risk valuation adjustments, 1f matenal, on certain derivative assets in order 1o appropriately reflect
the credit quality of the counterparty, These adjustments are also recorded on the market quotes received
from counterparties or other markel participants since these quotes may not fully reflect the credit
risk of the counterparties to she derivative instruments.

For financial reporling pirposes, the Fund does not offsel denvative assets and liabilities that are subject
to netting arrangements within the Statemnent of Assets and Liabilities. Information is presented below
for all denivative assets and liabilities that are subject to an enforceable Master Netting Agreemaent
(“MNA").

Offsetting of Derivative Assets and Lishilities at March 31, 2018

Amounis Presented in the
Statement of Asscts and Liabilities

Assels Liahilities
Forward Foreign Carrency Contrasts -3 2700576 5 16,508 525y
Total dervative wssets ansd llabilities in (ke Statement of Assets &
Liakaliries subject 1o a MNA 5 2,700,576 & {6,908, 92%)
34
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(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements {Continued)
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{(Expressed in U.S, Dollars)

13. Offsctting Assets and Liabilities (Continued)
Derivative Assels and Collateral Received

Gross
Amounis of
Assels
Presented in
the Statement
of Assets and Financial Cash Received
Liabilities Insirument as Collaieral Net Amonnt'™
Barclays Bank PLC™ 5 B2 5 (2881) § — & 253455
Cribank, M.A ™ 67.1%1 (7.41%) -- 59772
Goldman Sachs International™! 1,465,341 {1465 350 — —
HEBC Rank ple'™ 52,127 (32,127) - =
IP%organ Chise Bank, M.A™ 1,012,066 {1,012 066) = —
Mergan Stanley & Co,
Internationzl plet? 69,359 (68,355) - —
LIRS 4G 6,196 6,196} — —
Total s 2700576 § (2615439 % — & 85137

M Net amount reprosents the net amennt receivable from the counterparty in the eveat of defiult,

#1 Crver the Counter.

Derivative Liabilities and Collateral Fledged

Grogs
Amonnts of
Liabilities
Fresented in
the Statement
of Assets and Financial Cash Pledged
Liabilities Instrument  as Collateral  Net Amount!"
Burchays Bonk PLC™ s LEEI 8§ (2881 % — & B
Citibank, M. 4,5 7419 (7419 — —
Gioddman Sachs International = 490,767 (1,465,397) — 3445376
HEBC Bank ple™ 43,862 (52,127 — 1,735
IMMargan Chase Bank, Noa = 1,699,159 (1012068 = GET 03
Morgan Stanley & Co.
International ple™" 217,194 {69,355) - 147,835
LIBS AGE 17,647 (6,196) — 11,451
Tertul 5 GHIEFY 5 (2615439 § — 5 4,793 490

m

et amount represeats the net amaunt payablz due to the counterparty m the cvent of defiulr
S {hver the Couriter,

is
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14. Fund Tnvestment Risks
Lower-Rated Securities Risk

The Fund may invest in lower-rated securities, which are commonly referred 1o as “junk bonds” or
“high yizld" bonds. Lower-rated securities reflect a greater possibility that adverse changes in the
financial condition of the issuer arin general economic conditions, or an ynanticipated rise in interest
rates, may impair the ability of the ismer to make payments of interest and principal. Additionally,
lower-rated securities are generally less liquid than higher-rated scouritics. The inability or perceived
inability of issuers to make timely payments of interest and principal and limitations in liquidity would
likely make the values of securities held by the Fund more volatile and could limit the Fund's ability
to sell its securities at prices approximating the values placed on such securilies,

Investment in Emerging Market Issuers

The Fund may invest in emerging market instruments which are subject to eertain eredit and market
risks. The securitics and currency markets of emerging market countries are generally smaller, less
developed, less liguid and moere volatile than the securities and currency markets of the United States
and other developed markets, Disclosure and regulatory standards in mamy respects are less stringent
than in other developed markets, There also may be a lower level of monitoring and regolation of
securities markets in emerging market countries and the activities of investors in such markets and
enforcement of existing regulations may be extremely limited, Political and economic structures in
many of these countries may be in their infancy and developing rapidly, and such countries may lack
the social, political and economic stability charactenstics of more developed countries.

Imvestinent in Morlgage-Backed Secunties

Investments in securities collateralized by residential real estale mortgages are subject to certain credit
and hguidity risks, When market conditions result in an increase in defaull seles of the underlyving
mortgages and the foreclosure values of underlying real estate properiies are materially below the
outstanding amount of these onderlying mortgages, collection of the full amount of accrued interest
and principal on these investments may be doubtful. Such market conditions may significantly impair
the value of these invesiments resulting in a lack of correlation between their credit ratings and values.

Investment in Nop-115, Securitics

The Fund invests in securities of non-118, issuers which present certain special risks, including those
resulting from famure political, legal, and economic developments, which could includs changes in
currency exchange rates or exchange control regulations, expropristion of assets, confiscatory taxation,
nationalization of assets, imposition of withholding or other taxes, adverse changes in investment capital
or exchange control regulations, polittcal changes, diplomatic developments, diffieulty in obtaining
and enforcing judgments against non-U.S, entitizs, the possible impesition of the applicable country's
governmental laws or restrictions, and the reduced svailability of public information concerning issuers.
Additionally, issuers of non-115, securiti=s are not generally subject to uniform accounting, auditing
and financial reporting standards or ather regulatory practices and regquiremenis comparable to those
applicable to LLS. issaers. In the event of natienalization, expropriation or other confiscation of assets,
the Fund could lose its entire investment in a securnity,
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14. Fund Investment Risks (Continued)
Investment in Non-1LS, Securities {Contimed)

The costs associated with investment in debt securities of non-U.3, issuers, including withholding
taxes, brokerage commissions and custodial fees, may be higher than those associated with investment
in debt securities of U5, issuers. In addition, non-15. securities ransactions may be subject to difficulties
associated with the settlement of such transactions. Won-U S, markets have different elearance and
seftlement procedures which in some markets have at times failed to keep pace with the volume of
transactions, thereby creafing substantial deluys and settlement failares, Delays in settlement could
result in temporary periods when assets of the Fund are uninvested and no return is eamed thereon.
Settlement failures could also adversely affect the Fund's performance. The inability of the Fund to
make intended security purchases due to settlement problems could cause it 1o miss attractive investrent
opportanities. [nability w dispose of a parifolio security due to settlement problems could result in
losses 1o the Fund due to subsequent declines in valye of the portfolio sccurity,

Sovereign Debt Risk

The Fusd ey invest in sovereign debl instrurments which ean invobvea high degree of fisk. The governmental
entity that centrols the repayment of sovereign debt may not be able or willing to repay the principal
and/or interest when die in accordance with the terms of the debt, A povernmental entity's willingness
ar ability W repay principal and interest when due may be affected by, among other factors, its cash
flow situation, the extent of its reserves, the availability of sufficient foreign exchange on the date a
payment 32 due, the relative size of the debt service burden to the economy as a whole, the governmental
entity”s policy toward the Infernational Monetary Fund, the political constraints to which a governmental
entity may be subject, and changes in governments and political svatems,

Non-Publicly Traded and Rule 144A Securities Risk

The Fund may invest in non-publicly traded and Rule 1444 securities which may invelve a high degree
of business and financial risk and may result in substantial losses. These securities may be less liquid
than publicly traded secunitics, and the Fund may take longer o liguidate these positions than would
be the case for publicly traded securities. Although these securities may be resold in privately negotiated
transagtions, the prices realized from these sales could be less than those originally paid by the Fund,
Further, companies whose securities are nol publicly traded may nat be subject to the disclosure and
other investor protection reguirements thal would be applicable iftheir securities were publicly maded,
Conscquently, these securities may be difficult to value,

Hedging Transactions Risk

Hedgmng strategies in general are usually intended to limit or reduce investment risk, but can also be
expected lo limil or reduce the potential for profit. Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the exient that
assets of the Fund attributable 1o a particular Class of units are insufficient to satisfy the liabilities
associated with a hedging transaction with regpect Lo such Class of units, such amount of the liabilities
that exceed such asscts may be borne by the other Classes of units of the Fund.
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14. Fund Investment Risks (Confinned)
Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the nisk that fixed income securities will decline in value becanse of changes in
inkercst rates, As nominal interest rates rise, the value of certain fixed income securities held by the
Fund 15 likely 1o devrease. A nominal interest rate can be described as the sum of a real inlerest rate
and an cxpected inflation rale. Fixed income securities with longer durations iend o be mone sensitive
to changes in interest rates, usnally making them more volatile than securitics with shorter durations.
Duration is vsed primarily as 2 measure of the sensitivity of a fixed income’s market price to interest
rate (i.e., yield) movements.

Liguidity Risk

The Fund may invest in assets and derivatives that may not be able to readily sell or dispose of, including
securities whose disposition is restricted by securilies laws. The effect of liguidity risk is particularly
pronounced when low trading volume, lack of a market maker, large position size, or legal resirictions
{including daily price fluctuation limits or “circui breakers™ or an affiliation with the issucr of a seourity)
limit or prevent the Fund's ability to initiate a ransaction, sell assets, or unwind derivative positions
at desirable prices. The Fund ig alse exposed to Haquidity fisk when it has an obligation to purchase
particular securities (for example, as a result of entering into reverse repurchase agrecments, writing
a put, or ¢losing out a short position).

Concentration of Risk

To the extent the Fund concentraies its investments in one or more countries, the value of the Fund's
assets will be especially affected by economic, political and otlier factors affecting such country or
couniries, and may fluciuate more widely than the value of a fund that invests in a greater number of
countries,

Derivative Instruments Risk

The Fund may invest m various derivatives which may present additional risks and costs that are different
from and, in certain cases, greater than the risks and costs prezested by nvesting directly in secunties
and other maore traditional investments. Following are additional risk factors concerning the use of
dernivatives:

o Monagement Risk: Derivative products are specialized ingtuments that require investment lechniques
and risk analyses different from those associated with stocks and bonds, The successfial use of
derivatives requires sophisticated management and an ynderstanding not only of the underlying
instrument but alse of the derivative fiself, In particular, the use and complexity of derivatives
require the maintenance of adequale controls to monitor the transactions entered inte, and the
ability 1o assess the risk that a derivative adds to the Fund's portfiolio.
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14. Fund Investment Risks (Continued)

Derivative Instruments Risk (Contimmed)

& Counterparty Credit Risk: The use of derivatives subjects the Fund to the risk that the counterparty
will not be able or willing to make timely settlement payments or otherwize meet its obligations,
especially during unusually adverse market conditions, IF the counterparty defaulls, the Fund
will have contractual remedies, but the Fund may be unable to enforce iis contractual rights,
Counterparty nisk is more pronoumneed if 2 counterparty”s obligations exceed the amount of collateral
held by the Fund (if any), the Fund is unable to exercise its interest in collateral upon default by
the counterparty, or the termination value of the instrument varies significantly from the
marked-to-market vahse of the instrument.

& Docwmentation Risk; Many dermvative imstraments have documentation risk. Because the contract
foreach over-the-counter derivative transaction is individually negotiated with a speailic counterparty,
there exists the risk that the parties may interpret contrectual terms differently. 17 that cccurs,
the cost and umpredictability of the legal proceedings requited for the Fund o enforce its contractual
rights may lead the Fund 1o decide not to pursue its claims against the counterparty. The Funed
therefore, assumes the risk that it may be unable to obtain payments the Investment Manager
believes are owed to them under derivatives instruments or those payments may be delayed or
made only after the Fund has incurred the costs of litigation,

15 Confinrencies and Commitments

In thie normal course of business, the Fund enters into contraets that contain a variety of representations
and warranties, which provide general indemnifications. The Fund®s maximum exposure under thess
arrangements is unknown, as this would involve future claims that may be made against the Fund that
have nol yet occurred. Based onexperience, management is of the view that the risk of loss in connection
with these potential indemnification obligations is remole; however, there can be no assurance that
material liabilities related to such obligations will not arise in the future that could adversely impact
the business of the Fund.

16. Line of Credit

Effective September 4, 2013 and amended as of November 28, 2017, the Fund participates in an up
to 22,500,000 unsecured, 364-day, comminted, credit agreement (“Credil Agreement™) with The Bank
of New York Mellon (“BNYM"). The Credil Agresment was made available to finance temporarily
the repurchase or redemplion of shares of the Fund, failed trades, payment of dividends, settlernent
of trades and for other short-term, temporary or emergency general business purposes. Loans under
the Credit Agreement are charged interest at a fluctuating rate per anmum equal to the sum 1.25%
plus the Federal Funds Rate, The Credit Agreement also requires the Fund fo pay 0.12% per annum
commitment fee based on the average undrawn amount of the Credit Agreement. As of March 31,
2018, the Fund had no outstanding loans. During the year ended Mareh 31, 2018, the Fund did not
utilize the Credit Agreement.
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17. Subsequent Events

Asof May 30, 2018, the date the financial statements were available to be issued, no subsequent events
or transactions had occurred that would have materially impacted the financial slatements as
presented.
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12 686,138 74,542 1,109,542 120,541

686,138 74,542 1,109,542 120,541

13 25,378,626 2,757,134 28,197,666 3,063,394

13 459,793 49,952 395,798 42,999

14 35,061,841 3,809,118 32,406,435 3,520,635

11,597,685 1,259,972 16,844,419 1,829,978

72,497,945 7,876,177 77,844,318 8,457,007

16,17 (15,666,888) (1,702,051)  (17,679,249) (1,920,674)
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2019 19
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44,795,780 4,866,614 49,718,161 5,401,381
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED 12

Statement of financial position as at 31 March 201%
Registered No, 2479672

ot 2019 2018
5 5

FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets 12 686,138 1,109,542
TOTAL FIXED ASSETS 686,138 1,108,542
CURRENT ASSETS
DEBTORS: amounts flling due within one year 13 25,378,626 28,197,666
DEBTORS: amounts flligg due after more than one
yedr 13 459,793 305,798
Invvestments 14 15,061,841 32,406,435
Cash at bark and in hand 11,597,685 16,844,419

T2,4%7 945 77,844,318
CREDITORS: amouns falling diee within one year la, 17 (15,666,888) (17,679,24%)
NET CURRENT ASSETS 36,831,057 60,165,069
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 57,517,195 61,274,611
CREDITORS: amounts faling due after more than one
year 16 {48,205) (196,579)
Provisions for lnbilties 17 (1,623,200) (309,861)
NET ASSETS 55,845,790 60,768,171
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital 18 11.050,010 11,050,010
Retained eamings 44,795,780 49,718,161
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS 55,845,790 60,768,171

The notes on pages 13 to 28 form an integeal part of these financial statements.

The financial sjatements on pages 11 to 28 were approved for issue by the board on its behalf by:

M. Zelouf Date: 19" June 2019
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED 1

Statement of income and retained earnings
for the year ended 31 March 2019
Registered No. 2479672

Mote 2019 20018
£ ]

Turnover 4 73,349 360 B4, 060,544
Administrative expenses 5.6,7.8,9 (67,935,216) (69,653,046)
Irterest receivable and similar income b 945,363 720,275
Interest payable and similar expenses 5 (9,978) (5.893)
Profit before taxation 6,349,529 15,121,880
Tax on profit 1] (1,270,910% (1,791.441)
Profit for the financial year 5,077.619 13,330,439
Retained earnings at the begimning of the year as

previously stated 49,718,161 53,887,722
Profit for the financial year 5,077,619 13,330,439
Drvidends 11 (10,004,000} (17.500,000)
Retained earnings at the end of the year 44,795,780 49,718,161

All amounts are in respect of continuing activities.

The notes on pages 13 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Motes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 13

1. General information

Western Asset Management Company Limited (“the Company™), is an investment manager, principally
providing investment management services to both external clients and to clients of its affiliates
{collectively “Western™). The Company is authorised by the FCA and makes its Pillar 3 diselosures on
its website — www. westernasset.com.

The Company is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled under the laws of England
and Wales, The address of its principal place of business is 10 Exchange Sguare, Primroge Street,
London EC2A 2EN. The ultimate parent company is Legg Mason Ine. (*Parent™).

2. Statement of compliance

These individual finaneial statements of the Company have been prepared in compliance with United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102, “The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Treland” (“FRS 102™), and the Companies
Act 2006,

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policics applied in the preparation of these financial stalements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation
These separate financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the recognition of certain financial assets and liabilities measured at
Tair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 102 requires the use of certain
eritieal pecounting estimates. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition
seldom equal the related actual results. Included within provisions for liabilities is an amount
related to dilapidation costs, which the Company expecis to incur under the terms of its tenancy
agreement. There is some uncertainty around the amount provided for as management are unable
to determine the scale of restoration works that will be enforced by the landlord at the end of the
Company’s lease. The amount provided for is based on management’s best estimate and based on
an internal assessment. Further details are provided in Note 17,

{b) Exemptions for qualifving entities under FRS 10
FRS 102 allows a qualifying entity certain disclosure exemptions, subject to certain conditions,
which have been complied with.

The Company has taken advantage of the following exemptions:

(i} from disclosing a reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end
of the period;

{ii} from preparing a statement of cash flows, on the basis that it is a qualifving entity and the
statement of cash flows included in the consolidated financial statements of the Parent
includes the Company's cash flows;

(i) from disclosing details of financial instruments, on the basis that it is a qualifying entity and
disclosure of financial instruments such as trade receivables and trade payables are included
in the consolidated financial statements of the Parent.
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Motes to financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2019 14

3. Summary of significant accounting policies feomtinued)

{iv) from disclosing detail of certain share-based payment amrangements required under FRS 102
section 26 in respect of shares based payments of the Parent issued to employees of the
Company by the Parent which are presented in those financial statements.

(v} from disclosing the Company’s key management personnel compensation in total, as required
by FRS 102 paragraph 33.7.

{c) Functional currency
The funetional and reporting currency of the Company is U$ Dollar, as the directors consider this
to be the most appropriate currency for the Company”s business,

(d) Foreign currency translation
Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated into US Deollars at the balance sheet
date. Transactions during the period expressed in foreign currencies are translated into US Dollars
at the rate of exchange ruling in the month in which they eccur. Any foreign exchange differences
are taken to the Statement of Income and Retained Eamings in the year in which they arise.

Foreign currency non-monetary assets are carried in the balance sheet translated into US Dollars at
historic rates of exchange. This is determined using the menth end rate of exchange for the month
in which they were acquired,

The £/ US Dollar rate used at the balance sheet date is 1.299733 (2018: 1.403334)
The average rate for the balance sheet for the year was 1,308142 (2018: 1.339243)

() Revenue recognition
Tumnover or revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and

represents the amount receivable for investment management services rendered, net of any rebates
allowed and value added taxes. Revenue in respect of performance fees is recognised in the
financial statements at the end of the related contractual performance period when all performance
criteria have been met and the outcome of the ransaction can be measured reliably.

(f oyee benefits
The Company provides a range of benefits to employees, including annual bonus arrangements,
paid holiday arrangements and defined contribution pension plans.

(i) Short Term Benefits
Short term benefits, including holiday pay and other similar non-monetary benefits, are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the service is received.

(i) fneentive Plans
The Company operated an Employee Benefit Trust (“EBT™) as part of the overall
remunetation strategy for employees.  Annually, a bonus award, as determined by the
Company, may be paid into the EBT. Where the EBT is considered to remain under the
control of the Company, the assets and liabilities of the EBT are included in the Company’s
financial statements until they become fully vested and are paid to the relevant employees.
See Motes 7 and 8 for further detail.

The Company has set up a Group Personal Pension Plan, which is a defined contribution

seheme and is administered by a third party, Contributions to the pension scheme are charged
to the Statement of Income and Retained Earnings. See Note 9 for further details.
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Motes to financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2019 15

3. Summary of significant accounting policies feomimued)

() Emplovee bhenefits (eomtinued)

(iil) Anmeral Bowus Plan
The Company operates an annual bonus plan for employees. An expense is recognised in the
Statement of Income and Retained Earnings when the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation to make payments under the plan as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made.

(iv) Share Based Payments
Under the EBT, the Parem awards cligible employees restricted shares of the Parent. The
Company has accounted for such share-based payments in line with FRS 102 as equity settled
transactions. The recharge from the Parent is recorded as an intercompany payable position,
with a corresponding charge in the Statement of Income and Retained Earnings as services are
rendered.

Under the Parent’s share option plan, the fair value of stock options issued are measured at
grant date, then, periodically as shares vest and employees become unconditionally entitled to
the shares, an employee expense is recognised, with no adjustments recorded for changes in
market value of the Parent for the shares granted.

{g) Taxation
Taxation expense for the period comprises curvent and deferred tax recognised in the reporting
period. Tax is recognised in the Staternent of Income and Retained Eamings.

Current or deferred faxation assets and habilities are not discounted.

(i} Current Tex
Current tax is the amount of corporation tax payable in respect of the taxable profit for the year
or prior years. Tax is calculated on the basis of 1ax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the period end.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

{ii} Deferred Tax
Deferred tax arises from timing differences. These timing differences arise from the inclusion
of income and expenses in tax assessments in periods different from those in which they are
recognised in financial statements.

Deefierred 1ax is recognised on all timing differences at the reporting date. Unrelieved tax losses
and other deferred tax assets are only recognised when it is probable that they will be recovered
against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits.

Deeferred tax is measured using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the period end and that are expected to apply to the reversal of the timing difference,
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 16

3, Summary of significant accounting policies (contimed)

{h) Tangible fixed assets
The cost of tangible fixed assets is their purchase cost, including any incidental expenses of
acquisition. Depreciation is caleulated 1o write off the cost of the tangible fixed assets on a straight
line basis over their expected economic lives, The principal annual rates used for the purpose are:

IT & Communications equipment 33%
Office equipment 20 - 33%

Depreciation is charged on a monthly basis and a full month’s charge is made in the month
following acquisition,

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the remaining life of the relevant lease. Depreciation
for artwork is nod provided as no diminution of its value is expected.

(i) Dividends
Dividends and other distributions to the Company's shareholder are recognised as a lability in the
financial statements in the period in which the dividends and other distributions are approved by
the board of directors. These amoeunts are recognised in the Statement of Income and Retained
Eamings.

() Investment
The Company's investment in the EBT and Western Asset Liquidity Funds ple (“WALF") are
current asset investments and are stated at fair value, Changes in fair value are recognised as fair
value adjustments through the Statement of Income and Retained Eamings.

(k) Cash and cash equivalents
Caszh and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term

highly liquid investments with original maturitics of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.

(I} Leased assets
At inception the Company assesses agreements that transfer the right to use assets. The asscssment
considers whether the arrangement is, or contains, a lease based on the substance of the arrangement,
See Note 19 for further details.

(i) Finanee leased assers
Leases of assets that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership are
classified as finance Jeases. Finance leases are capitalised at commencement of the lease as
assets at the fair value of the leased asset. Incremental direct costs, incurred in negotiating and
arranging the lease, are included in the cost of the asset,

Asgets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful life of the asset,
Assets are assessed for impairment at each reporting date. The capital element of lease
abligations is recorded as a liability on inception of the arrangement.

(i} Operating leased assets
Leases that do not transfer all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as operaling
leases, Payments under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Income and Retained
Earnings on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Motes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 17

3. Summary of significant accounting policies feamtinued)

(1) Lease incenfives
Incentives received to enter into an operating lease are credited to the Statement of Income and
Retained Earnings, to reduce the lease expense, on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

(m} Financial instruments
The Company has chosen to adopt Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial
instruments.

Section 11 {Basic Financial Instruments) and Section 12 {Ciker Financial Instruments) were issued
under FRS 102 and provide guidance for recognising, derecognising, assessing impairment, and
measuring and disclosing financial instruments, Section 11 applies to basic financial instruments,
such as trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other payables, bank loans,
intercompany pavables and common and preference shares. Section 12 applies to other more
complex financial instrumems and transactions such as derivatives, including currency futures and
forward foreign exchange contracts,

Basic financial instruments are generally recognised at cost or amortised cost,

Derivatives are complex financial instruments and are initially recognised at fair value on the date
a derivalive contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value. Changes
in the fair value of derivatives are recognised in Statement of lncome and Retained Earnings as
appropriate, The Company has no derivatives at 31 March 2019,

{n) Pravisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. See Note 17 for further details.

Contingent liabilities arise as a result of past events when (i) it is not probable that there will be an
outflow of resources of that the amount cannot be reliably measured at the reporting date or (i)
when the existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of uncertain future
events not wholly within the Company's control, Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the financial
statements unless the probability of an outflow is remote or the outflow is immaterial.

4, Tumover
Turnover, which is stated net of value added tax, represents the amounts receivable for the management

of investment partfolios for clients and an allocation of turnover from the Company's affiliates where
the Compary is responsible for servicing the client.
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Motes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 18

4. Turnover fecontinued)

The geographical location of the clients is analysed as follows:

20109 2018
3 b
United Kingdom 10,771,964 13,777,024
United States of America 16,928,853 15,998,090
Europe {exclhuding United Kingdom) 12,431,090 13,241,469
Rest of the World 33,217,453 41,043,961
73,349 360 84,060,534
5. Operating profit
2009 2018
] ¥

This & stated after charging / (crediting)
Auditors' remuneration - audit services 189,847 157807
Auditors' remuneration - other services pursuant to legislation 4,070 4114
Lease of office premises 1,767,752 1,795,450
Gain on foreign exchange (58.459) (3.458)
Interest payabl: and similar charges 9978 5,893
Diepreciation - on tangible owned fixed assets 457518 476,276
Depreciation - on tangible fived assets held under finance kases 24,666 27068
[mterest receivable (281,7%6) (325,057)

Income from current asset mvestments

- Realised gains - EBT (90,057) {144,485)
= Unrealised Joss 106,744 127,448
- Gains on nvestments - WALF {680,254} (378,181}

6. Information regarding directors and employees

Employment costs incurred by the Company and included in administrative expenses comprise:

019 2018
£ 3
Wages and salaries 16883324 18,068,130
Social security costs 2418062 2628804
Restricted stock and stock options in parent Company 533,030 937,022
Oither pension costs SRS 919,802
20755401 ¥2,553,758
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6. Information regarding directors and employees {continued)

The average monthly number of persons (including executive directors) employed by the Company
during the year was:

2019 2018
M, Mo,
By activity
Paortfolio management 26 23
Marketing & client services 15 18
Administration 25 ]
66 B6
Aggregate directors' emoluments related to the highest paid director are as follows:
2019 2008
5 3
Emoliments 1,553,778 1429116
Pension contributions 41466 19278
Employee deferred benefits 558,774 629,456
2154018 2,097 850

Retirement benefits are accruing to 1 (2018: 1) director under a defined contribution scheme. Share
options were exercised by nil (2018: 1) directors during the year and represents the highest paid director.

The emoluments of the other 2 dircetors (201 8: 2) are paid by the Parent or other group companies which
make no recharges to the Company. These two directors are employees and { or directors of the Parent
and / or a number of fellow subsidiaries and it is not possible to make an accurate apportionment of their
emoluments in respect of the Company.  Accordingly, the above details include no emoluments in
respect of these two directors,

Additionally, during the year 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014 EDIP schemes partially vested and a cash
amount of $172,595 was paid by the Company 1o the highest paid director,

7. Share-based payments

The following share-based award programme, which is settled in equity of the Parent is in operation by
the Company for eligible executive directors and key employees.

Legy Mason Inc. resiricted stock unit plan
The Parent issues restricted stock units to certain employees subject to continued employment with the
Company. Vesting oceurs over a four vear period with 25% of the gramted restricted stock units

becoming vested and distributed in shares, which are available to be sold within a few days of the vesting
date each year. Ownership of the restricted stock units are transferred to the employee once vested.
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8. Incentive plans
The Company has one active EBT for the employee deferred incentive plan.

The trustees appointed to “The Western Asset Management Company International Employee
Deferred Incentive Plan™ (“EDIP™) are “Intertrust Group™.

There is no cash balance in the current year (2018: 80) held in the EBT. Investments held by the
EBT are disclosed in Note 14,

As at 31 March 2019, awards made under the EDIP vest between one and four years, and any
unvested awards are forfeited if an employee leaves the Company for any reason other than
retirement. All forfeitures revert to the Company. The expense related to the awards and any gains
or losses associated with them are recorded in the year in which the awards vest. The method of
settlement of the awards either in cash or the Parent’s issued restricted stock is at the discretion of
the Western Asset compensation commitiee.

EDIP awards totalling 51,723,446 were made to senior employees attributable to the financial year
ended 31 March 2019 {in May 2018, EDIP awards made for the 2018 financial year: $1,803,260).

An acerual for awards totalling $1,601 888 (2018: 81,318,704) is included in these financial
statements, and this total amount will be contributed to the EDIP. In addition $150,623 {2018
$126,444) has been provided in respect of employer's national insurance payable on these awards,

The expense recorded in the Statement of Income and Retained Eamnings for the EDIP is $1,224,549
(2018%: $1,073,841) and the employer's national insurance on this amounts to $154,852 (2018
$160,336).

9. Pension

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The scheme is a Group Personal
Pension Plan which is run and administered by Scottish Widows, an unrelated third party.

The pension cost charge represents contributions payable by the Company to the fund and
amounted to $920,985 (2018: 5919,802). At 31 March 2019 there were no pension contributions in
arrears (2018; $0).

10. Tax on profit

a. Tax on profit
2019 2018
b3 b1
Current year tax charge 1,329,789 1,765,664
Adjustments in respect of prior periods - see note (¢) 20,986 117,557
Adjustments. in respect of FX difference of prior periods 6,116 -
Current year tax charge 1,356,891 1,883,221
Deferred taxation - current vear timing differences (84,981 (91,780)
Total tax on profis 1,271,910 1,791 441
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10, Tax on profit (continued)

b. Reconeiliation of tax charge

Tax assessed for the year ended 31 March 2019 is higher than (2018: lower than) the standard rate of
corporation tax in the UK for the year ended 31, March 2015 199 (20182 19%)

019 2018
3 3

Profit before taxation £, 349,529 15,121,880
Expected tax at standard rate of 19% (2018: 19%) 1,206,410 873,157
Effects of
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 29801 24929
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 20986 117,557
Adustments in respect of FX difference of prior periods 6,116 -
Adpstments for reduction in corporation tax rate on timing differences 9.99% 10,798
Unprovided adjustiment in respeet of current year tax charge {1.401) -
Group relief from group companies - { 1,235,000)
Tatal year tax charge 1,271,910 1,791,441

The current year tax charge has not been adjusted by group relief from other group companies as no
group relief has been granted.

¢. Deferred tax
Employee
Fined Assets  pemuneration Total
5 % 5
Asset as at | Apeil, 2018 155,941 239 857 395,798
Adjustmerits in respect of prior periods (13,251} (7.735)  (20986)
Curremt year eredit 34,498 50,483 B4 081
Asset as at 31 March, 2019 177,188 282 605 458,793

The timing differences related to: (i) accelerated capital allowances on fixed assets: and (ii) the issuance
of deferred compensation awards to employees on which a corporate tax deduction can be taken when
the deferred compensation vests and is distributed to participants.

The directors consider that it is more likely than not that there will be sufficient taxable profits in the
future such as to realise the deferred tax asset and therefore the asset has been recognised in these
financial statements,

d. Tax rate changes
The tax rate for the current period is the same as the prior period as there was no change in the UK
Corporation tax rate, which remained at 19% sinee 1 April 2017. On the basis that the UK Corporation

tax will decrease to 17% from 1 April 2020, the Company’s deferred tax balances have been effected
at the lower rate,
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11. Dividends
Dividends of $10 million were declared and paid during the year to the Company's sole shareholder
Western Asset Management (Cayman) Holdings Limited (2018: $17.5 million), equating to $9%.99 per
ordinary share (2018: $174.98) and there are no amounts outstanding in relation to dividends included
in these financial statements.

12. Tangible assets

IT& Conmmmicaions  Furnitue & Oftice Lasserherkl
Equipene Fivugs  Baquipment A lmprovennts Tiaul
% ] ] H ] H

Cosr
Asat | April 2018 636,610 44592 100,861 136,457 3,736,678 4,615,098
Additions 56379 - - - 2401 58,780
Dieposak. (128.875) - - - B {128,875
Asg at 31 March 2019 Sed, 114 4492 LU 136,457 1,739,079 4,545,003

Accumwipted depeeciation

Asat 1 Aprd 2018 317117 0% 1416 - 1,163,818 1,505,556
Charge for the financial veor 180,158 £99 25,398 - 275,729 452,184
Disposals {128,875) - . - - (128,875)
As at 31 Masch 2019 IRE A0 1,107 9814 - 3430544 3,058,865
Net book vl

31 March 2019 L4 alis 11047 L6457 28535 1IN
31 March 2013 209,493 4284 445 L3GAS]  STAE LLoS

The net book value of tangible assets includes an amount of $69,886 (2018: $94,551) in respect of
office equipment held under finance leases.

13, Debtors
2009 2018
5 b ]

Amounts flling due within one year :
Trade debtors 12,498,786 15,371,005
Amounts owed by group undertak ings 11,434,432 11,258,268
Orther debtors 360,653 472,705
Prepayments and accrued ncome 1,084,755 1,095,688

25,378,626 28,197,666
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13, Debtors feoniimted)

Amounts owed by group undertakings includes a $10.8 million loan to an affiliate. The loan bears
interest at 12-month LIBOR plus .125% with a maturity date of May 28, 2020. The remaining balance
is unsecured, interest free, has no fixed date of repayment and is repayable on demand.

The Company makes available to all employees interest-free season ticket loans which are repayable
by ten monthly installments, The balance of 80,005 (2018: $91,942) is included in other debtors.

Amounts falling due after more than one year from Deferred Tax is $459,793 (2018: $395,798). Sec
note 10 for further details,

14, Investments

The Company has an investment of $2,847,191 (2018: $2,847,020) in EDIP. This plan is invested in a
range of investment funds managed by Western,

During the vear, the EBT penerated realised gains of $90,057 (2018: $144 485), and unrealised loss of
$106,743 (2018: gain $127,448).

The Company has an investment in the US Dollar fund in the WALF series, The WALF fund is a
highly rated money-market fund and has same day liquidity, The principal investment objective of the
fund is the preservation of capital. This investment is carried at fair value and at the balance sheet date
was 532,214,650 (2018: 529 559,415). The share class in which the Company is invested, is a no-fee
share class, thereby maximising the Company's return, The Company provides investment
management services to the fund.

The Company classifies its financial assets within the EBT, which are shares and other variable-yield
securities at fair value through Statement of Income and Retained Earnings.

The Company classifies its financial assets within WALF at fair value through Statement of Income
and Retained Earnings,

Financial assets designated at fair value through Statement of Income and Retained Earnings at
inception are those that are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis.
Information about these financial assets is provided internally on a fair value basis to the Company's
key management personnel. The Company's strategy is to invest in funds, designated at fair value
through Statement of Income and Retained Eamings upon initial recognition.

The fair values of financial instruments traded in active markets are based on quoted bid prices on the
balance sheet date, A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. As the funds
invested in by the Company are priced daily based on net asset value (NAV) with subseriptions and
redemptions occurring at NAV, the funds are considered to be measured at a quoted price in an active
market, :

Net gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of fair-valued financial assets, are presented
in the Statement of Income and Retained Earnings, together with related interest and dividend income
within “Interest receivable and similar income™ in the peried in which they arise,

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted bid prices at the
balance sheet date and these securities are included in (a).
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14, Investments (confimed)

The Company closely monitors the valuation of assets in markets that may become less liquid.
Determining whether a market is active requires the exercise of judgment and is determined based on
facts and cireumstances of the market for the investment being measured. The Company does not hold
investments where the investments have no active market.

The Company follows the FRS 102 hierarchy to estimate fair value:

{a) The best evidence of fair value is a quoted price for an identical asset in an active market,

{b) When quoted prices are unavailable, the price of a recent transaction for an identical asset
provides evidence of fair value as long as there has not been a significant change in economic
circumstances or a significant lapse of time since the transaction took place.

() If the marker for the asset is not active and recent transactions of an identical asset on their own
are not a good estimate of fair value, an entity estimates the fair value by using a valuation
technigque.

The tables below present investments which include the ERT assets carried at fair value.

2019 {a) {b) {©) Total

Fair value through profit and lss § 4 £ 5

Listed mvestments

- Irish Stock Exchange 35,061,541 - - 35,061,841
Total assets 35 061,541 - - 35,061,841

2018 {a) (b} (e} Total

Fair value through profit and loss £ 3 g £

Listed investmenis

- Irish Stock Exchange 32406435 - - 32406435
Total assets 32406435 - - 32406435

During the years ended 2019 and 2018, the Company did not hold investments categorised as (b) or (¢) and
correspondingly there were no transfers involving {b) or (c).

15, Financial risk management
Financial risk factors

The Company’s activitics expose it to a variety of financial risk: market risk (including currency risk,
fair value interest rate risk, cash flow imerest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Company’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by an internal risk management department adhering te principles and
policies approved by the board of directors. The Company has written principles for overall risk
management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest
rate risk, credit risk use of derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.
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15, Financial risk management feomtiniecd)
(a) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk
The Company, being US Dollar functional, and operating intermationally, is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily to Sterling, Euro and Yen,
Foreign exchange risk arises from fiture commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities which are denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s functional currency. The
estimated fair value of derivative instruments reflects the estimated amount the Company would
receive or pay in an arm's length transaction. The amount is determined using quoted prices
from independent third parties. During the year the Company mitigated its foreign exchange
risk by the use of derivative instruments administered by an affiliate, specifically currency
forward contracts. During the vear, the Company made a foreign exchange gain of $58,459
{2018 gain of $8,438).

(ii) Price risk
The Company™s investments held by the EBT are diversified in accordance with the guidelines
of the EBT. As all investments are held by the EBT, the risk and reward of investment returns
are borne entirely by the EBT"s participants, the Company is not exposed to price risk relating
to its ERT. The Company is not exposed to commodity price risk. The Company is indirectly
exposed price risk as revenues may fluctuate based on assets under management, interest rates
and the returns of the fixed income markets,

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a Company-wide basis. Credit risk arises from cash deposits with banks
and financial institutions, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments, credit exposures to
clients from owtstanding fee receivables and loans made to group Companies. All the Company's
banking relationships are with highly rated banks for short term deposits and are limited to those
with a Moody®s rating of at least Baal, or with a Standard and Poor's rating of at least BBB+. The
Company assesses the credit quality of clients, taking into account their financial statements,
regulatory position, past experience and other factors, Intercompany loans may be considered only
after assessing the impact projected cash flows under stress testing scenarios and ensuring the
Company’s minimum liguidity tolerance levels are maintained.

{c) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that cash may not be available at a reasonable cost to pay obligations when
due. The Company performs monthly cash liguidity monitoring against set limits to ensure funds
are available to meet such requirements.

{d) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Company’s only significant interest-bearing asset is cash, the Company’s income and
aperating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.
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16. Creditors
2019 28
$ 3
Amounts faling due within one vear:
Amounts owed to group undertak ings 3,322,718 2,323,743
Ohbligations under finance leases 19,569 18,240
Taxation and social security 2,649,966 3,426,108
Accnak and deferred income 9,674,635 11,911,158
15,666,888 17,679,249
Amounts falling due after more than one year:
Accroals and deferred income - 122,604
Ohbligations under finance leases 48,205 73,975
' 48,205 196,579

The net finance lease obligations to which the Company is commitied are:

2019 2018
5
In one year or less 19,569 18,240
Berween one and two vears 48,205 73,975
67,774 92,213

The total value of finance leases repayable by instalments, any part of which falls due after more than
five years is nil (2018: nil).

Amounts owed to group undertakings are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed date of repayment and
are repayable on demand.

17. Provisions for liabilities

Where leasehold office space becomes vacant or is sublet at market rates below the Company’ s master
lease rates, the Company provides for all costs, net of anticipated or contracted income, to the end of
the lease or the anticipated date of the disposal or sublease. This provision relates to office space in 10
Exchange which was sublet in 2011 and is surplus to the Company’s requirements. The provision is
expected to be utilised over the life of related leases to 2020.

The Company is currently a tenant of 10 Exchange Square and is due to vacate in early fiscal year 2020.
There is a clause in the tenancy agreement relating to dilapidation work which must be undertaken
before the property is vacated. The amounts provided are based on the current estimate of future costs
determined on the basis of the present condition of the property. In arriving at this provision, the
expected cash flows have been adjusted by assigning an appropriate probability weighting based on the
level of dilapidation work likely to be carried out.
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17. Provisions for liabilities feomfinued)

For the year ended 31 March 2019, a provision of $1,462 200 (2018: $218,569) has been made for the
estimated costs of the dilapidation repairs, with the increase on the provision fully charged to the
Statement of Income and Retained Earnings for the year ended 31 March 2019, The prior year provision
of $218,56% was included within accruals and deferred income falling due within one year as at 31
March 2018 and has been reclassified to provisions for liabilities as at 31 March 2019,

2019 2018

5 b
Carrying amount at 1 April 309,861 392,670
Amounts rechssified from acerualks and deferred income 218,569 -
Amounts charged! (utilised) during the year 1,094,770 {B2,809)
Balance at 31 March 1,623,200 309,861

18. Called up share capital
2019 2018
b3 b1

[ssued, called up and fully paid
100,010 (2018: 100,010 ordinary shares of 81 each 100,010 100,010
10,950,000 (2018:; 10,950,000) redeemable preference shares of §1 each 10,950,000 10.%50,000

11,050,010 11,050,010

The preference shares carry no rights to participate in the profits of the Company, and no voting rights.
The Company may redeem the preference shares at par, at any time subject to the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006. On redemption, and at the diserction of the directors, the preference shares may
be converted to ordinary shares of similar par value.

19. Financial commitments

The Company had the following future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases for each of the following periods;

__ 2019 2018
5 5
Land and buildings pavmems due
Wot later than one year 1,908217 2372416
Later than one year and not later than five years 38,570 2,101,974
1,946,796 4,474,390

The Company signed a 15 year lease for office premises which was effective May 2005, and under the
terms of which the Company had an initial rent free period of three years,

Provision for rental payable was made in the financial statements during the rent free period, and this

iz being released to the Statement of Income and Retained Earnings so as to spread this benefit evenly
over the period of the lease.

293/332



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Wotes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 28

20, Related party disclosures

The Company is exempt from disclosing related party transactions with other companies that are wholly
owned within, and reported on the consolidated financial statements of, the group.

Consolidated financial statements of the group, in which the Company is included are publicly available,
as disclosed in Mote 21.

21. Controlling parties
The immediate parent undertaking is Western Asset Management (Cayman) Holdings Limited.

The ultimate controlling party is Lege Mason Inc, (“Parent™), a Company incorporated and registered
in the United States of America and listed on the New York Steck Exchange.

The only group into which the Company’s results are consolidated is the group that is headed by Legg
Masaon, Inc, Copies ol the consolidated financial statements of Legg Mason, Inc. are available from 100
International Drive, Baltimore, MD 21202, USA,

Further information can be found on the Lege Mason, Inc. website "www.leggmason.com” under
"Investor Relations”,
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Independent Auditors® Report

The Trustee
WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi- Currency) Fund, a sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore
Funds

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of WA High Income Corporate Bond
(Multi- Currency) Fund(the “ Fund” ), which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities
and schedule of investments as of March 31, 2018, and the related statements of operations
and changes in net assets for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements.

Management®s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors® Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors®
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity"s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity"s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, inall material
respects, the financial position of WAHigh Income Corporate Bond (Multi- Currency) Fund as of
March 31, 2018, and the results of its operations for the year then ended in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles.

KPMG
Cayman Islands
May 30, 2018
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Independent Auditors® Report

The Trustee
WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi- Currency) Fund, a sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore
Funds

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of WA High Income Corporate Bond
(Multi- Currency) Fund, which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities and schedule
of investments as of March 31, 2019, and the related statements of operations and changes in
net assets for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management®s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors® Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors®
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity"s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity"s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, inall material
respects, the financial position of WAHigh Income Corporate Bond (Multi- Currency) Fund as of
March 31, 2019, and the results of its operations for the year then ended in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles.

KPMG
Cayman Islands
May 29, 2019
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Independent auditors® report to the members of Western Asset Management Company Limited
Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion, Western Asset Management Company Limited"s financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the company®s affairs as at 31 March 2019 and
of its profit for the year then ended;

< have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ilreland”, and
applicable law); and

« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual report and financial
statements (the “ Annual Report” ), which comprise: the statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2019; the statement of income and retained earnings for the year ended 31 March
2019; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the
significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ( 1SAs
(UK)™) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK are further described in the
Auditors® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC"s
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

ISAs (UK) require us to report to you when:
- the directors® use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial statements is not appropriate; or
« the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the company®s ability to continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from
the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

We have nothing to report in respect of above matters.
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However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not
a guarantee as to the company®s ability to continue as a going concern. For example, the
terms on which the United Kingdom may withdraw from the European Union are not clear, and it
is difficult to evaluate all of the potential implications on the company®s trade,
customers, suppliers and the wider economy.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the
financial statements and our auditors® report thereon. The directors are responsible for the
other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. ITf we identify an apparent material
inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude
whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic report and Directors® report, we also considered whether the
disclosures required by the UK Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the
audit, ISAs (UK) require us also to report certain opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic Report and Directors” report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information
given in the Strategic report and Directors® report for the year ended 31 March 2019 is
consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with applicable
legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic
report and Directors® report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors® responsibilities set out on page 6,
the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance
with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view.
The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
company”s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditors”® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors” report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is
located on the FRC"s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our auditors® report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company®s
members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for
no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for
any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for
our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
e certain disclosures of directors™ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
e the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Colleen Local (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

19 June 2019
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